
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JUNE 28, 2011 - 10 A.M.
               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila
County Attorney, to Officer Brian Hudson of the Globe Police Department.

 

 

B Recognition of the following 8 employees for May's "Spotlight on Employees"
Program: Linda Allinson, Jonathan Destea, Cindy Salas, Lee Alexander,
Kevin Fane, Jamie Cunningham, Eddie McGuire and Diana Ortiz

 

 

C Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) by
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of recent
legislative activities.

 

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No.
11-02 amending Ordinance No. 98-01 - Open Outdoor Fire pertaining to the
use of fireworks in unincorporated areas of Gila County.
(Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

B Public Hearing -Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No.
11-03 amending the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering
Ordinance. (Matthew Bolinger)

 

 

C Public Hearing  - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
11-06-07, which approves Gila County Planning and Zoning Department
Case No. CUP-11-01, an application submitted by Susan and Richard Ray
for a Conditional Use Permit on Gila County Assessor's tax parcel number
301-52-003K, located at 4997 Walnut Lane in Pine, Arizona, to allow
for multi-family duplex use.  (Bob Gould)

 

 

D Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No.
11-04 amending the Gila County Building Code Ordinance pertaining to
the changes proposed by the Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board
(Gila County Planning and Zoning Case #BCO-11-01.)  (Joe Mendoza)

 

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 



A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors
and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors)  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) Grant in the amount of $24,300 from the Arizona
State Library, Archives and Public Records for a Centennial Experience
Grant for the period of June 16, 2011, through August 3, 2012, and
authorize the Chairman to sign related documents.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2011-2012 fiscal
year budget for the Gila County Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion
to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2011-2012 fiscal
year budget for Gila County.  (Don McDaniel)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. A11PC00100
between the Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila
County Juvenile Detention Center, allowing Gila County Juvenile Detention
Center to provide contracted bed space for tribal juvenile offenders for the
period of April 1, 2011, through March 31, 2012, at the negotiated rate of
$131.40 per juvenile per day with the option to renew this contract on a
yearly basis ending March 31, 2016.  (Kendall Rhyne)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement No. 308-11
between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila County Division
of Community Services, Housing Department, whereby the Arizona
Department of Housing will allocate funds in the amount of $330,000 which
will be used to help residents who meet program qualifications with
housing rehabilitation for the period effective upon execution by the
Arizona Department of Housing through June 1, 2013.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments from
the Board of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding their
proposal to improve ecological conditions and to authorize continued
livestock grazing on six allotments along the Salt River within the Globe
and Tonto Basin Ranger Districts, Gila County, Arizona.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve Service Agreement No.
6880.102/7-2011 between Gila County and Gila Sweeping LLC whereby
the contractor will provide parking lot sweeping services from July 1, 2011,
to June 30, 2014, in a not to exceed amount of $4,550 per year.
(Steve Stratton)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Solar Renewable Energy
Credit Purchase Agreement - Grid-Tied Photovoltaic System (APS
Contract #17914) between Gila County and Arizona Public Service
Company for solar energy funding in conjunction with PV Advanced
Concepts at no up-front capital investment by Gila County.
(Steve Stratton)

 

 



I Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Letter of Intent with Tioga
Energy whereby Tioga will provide for privately owned solar photovoltaic
(PV) energy generating system(s) to Gila County and to authorize the
Chairman's signature on the Letter of Intent.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a letter
to Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (formerly known as Cyprus Miami Mining
Corporation) to terminate the County's lease of buildings known as the
"Armory Property" effective July 1, 2011, as provided in A.R.S. §38-511. 
(Steve Stratton)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the proposal from the Gila County
Courthouse Security Committee to expend $200,000 for Courthouse
security and implement the proposal on July 1, 2011.  (Berthan DeNero)

 

 

L Information/Discussion/Action to exercise the thirty day termination
clause in Contract No. 060110-1 between Gila County and IWC, LLC for
janitorial services in County facilities in Globe, AZ, authorize staff to
immediately hire temporary workers to perform the required janitorial work,
and authorize staff to prepare a new call for bids for janitorial services in
Globe, AZ.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4), the board may vote
to go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney
and to instruct its attorney regarding the board's position.  (Steve
Stratton)

 

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of an Application for Fireworks Display submitted by Fireworks
Productions of Arizona on behalf of Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold,
Inc.-Miami Operations to provide a fireworks display on July 4th at
Freeport-McMoRan's minesite.

 

 

B Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures, LLC dba Rimside
Grill & Cabins to temporarily extend the Rimside Grill patio area in order to
serve liquor in that area on August 5-6, 2011, and August 21, 2011, during
special events.

 

 

C Approval of a Service Agreement between Gila County and JCG
Technologies whereby JCG Technologies will be provide for the installation,
software and maintenance of the Liberty Court Recording Solution System
for Gila County Superior Court in the amount of $40,557.01 from June 28,
2011, to June 27, 2012.

 

 

D Approval to accept a Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement (ACJC
Grant No. VA-12-020) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission in the amount of $17,600 for the period of July 1,
2011, to June 30, 2012. 

 

 

E Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-06-05 authorizing the Gila County  



E Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-06-05 authorizing the Gila County
Probation Department's participation in the FY 2011-2012 Family
Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative
Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying that a
matching fund requirement of $2,308 for the Program will be provided by
the County. 

 

 

F Approval of Attachment No. 1 to the Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015
between Gila County, on behalf of Gila County Juvenile Detention Center,
and the United States Marshals Service to increase the detainee days and
cost indicated in the original Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 by at
least twice the original estimate of 150 detainee days and cost of $19,710 in
order to meet the juvenile housing demands of the United States Marshals
Service.

 

 

G Approval of Invoice No. SRS-2011-004 in the sum of $2,851 for Gila
County’s Service Fee to the Partnership for Rural America for the
Reauthorization of Secure Rural Schools funding.

 

 

H Approval of request submitted by the Gila Employment & Special Training
(GEST) Department to waive fees for use of the Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall in
order to conduct a GEST program event on June 30, 2011.

 

 

I Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. HG854565) with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the
amount of $12,000 to provide continued Tuberculosis Control Program
services for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

J Approval of the renewal of a Real Estate Lease Agreement between High
Desert Humane Society, Inc. and Gila County at a cost of $500 per month
for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

K Approval of a Maintenace Agreement between Gila County and VBrick
Systems Inc. whereby VBrick will provide for the maintenace of the live
video recording system used in the recording of ballots while in the
tabulation room in the counting center in the amount of $8,167.06 from
March 24, 2011, to March 23, 2014. 

 

 

L Authorization for the Chairman to sign a Transit Agreement between Gila
County and the San Carlos Apache Tribe for the distribution of LTAF II
(Local Transportation Area Funds) funds to the San Carlos Tribe Transit
Program in the amount of $5,000.  

 

 

M Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to
Contract No. 6510.526.REC04/8-2010 between Gila County and C.L.
Williams Consulting Inc. to extend the contract period to July 31, 2012, for
engineering services on the Pine Creek Canyon Road Project.  Contract
term, July 1, 2011, through July 31, 2012. 

 

 

N Authorization for the Chairman to sign two separate Intergovernmental  



N Authorization for the Chairman to sign two separate Intergovernmental
Agreements and a Transit Agreement for the distribution of LTAF II (Local
Area Transportation Funds) to the following entities: City of Globe Senior
Center in the amount of $10,000; City of Globe Arizona Eastern Copper
Spike Train Excursion in the amount of $10,000; and the Payson Senior
Center in the amount of $10,000. 

 

 

O Approval of Amendment No. 2,  Exhibit A, to Contract No. C051-09-02
between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office, and
the Gila County Community Services Division, Weatherization Assistance
Program, which allocates revision of line item fund amounts for
administration costs, training and technical assistance, and program
operations to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens
residing in Gila County for the period effective June 28, 2011, through
June 30, 2011.

 

 

P Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. C037-09-02 between the
State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office and the Gila
County Division of Community Services, Weatherization Assistance
Program, which allocates the revision of line item fund amounts for training
and technical assistance and program operations to continue to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the
period effective upon signatures by both parties through March 31, 2012.

 

 

Q Approval of reappointments to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board
for Ed Carpenter - Private Sector for an additional four-year term
retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015; Cliff Potts - Private Sector for
an additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015;
Jeri Byrne - Private Sector, for an additional four-year term from July 1,
2011 - July 2015; Diana Russell - WIA Dislocated Worker Program, for an
additional four-year term retroactive January 1, 2011 - January 1, 2015;
and Charlie Estrada - Labor Organization, for additional four year term
retroactive from April 1, 2011 - April 2015.

 

 

R Approval of a Service Agreement between Gila County and Tachyon
Networks Inc. whereby Tachyon Networks will provide voice
communications via satellite for the Sheriff's Office mobile command trailer
in the amount of $325 per month from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012.

 

 

S Approval of Site Lease Agreement 1005.340.HP/4-2011 between Gila
County and ACP Inc., whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the site and
radio equipment for $252.36 per month from July 1, 2011, to June 30,
2014.

 

 

T Approval of Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.RC/4-2011 between Gila
County and Rim Communications whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the
site and radio eqiupment for $975 per month from July 1, 2011, to June
30, 2014.  The monthly fee shall be increased 4% at the end of each 1-year
term.

 

 

U Approval of Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.341.DPM/5-2011 between Gila  



U Approval of Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.341.DPM/5-2011 between Gila
County and R&M Repeater LLC, whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the
site and radio equipment for $650 per month from July 1, 2011, to June
30, 2014.  The monthly fee shall be increased 4% at the end of each 1 year
term.

 

 

V Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Extended Supported Employment
Services Contract No. E5345511 between the Arizona Department of
Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, and Gila
County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST), to provide
extended supported employment services to vocational rehabilitation clients
through September 30, 2011.

 

 

W Approval of the May 3, 2011, BOS meeting minutes.  
 

X Approval of the March 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Constable

 

 

Y Approval of the April 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Constable

 

 

Z Approval of the May 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable

 

 

AA Approval of Human Resources reports for June 14, 2011, June 21, 2011,
and June 28, 2011.

 

 

BB Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 14,
2011, June 21, 2011, and June 28, 2011.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(G),
action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff
to study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K),
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may
present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken on
issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



ARF-557     Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney
Submitted By: Sharon Listiak, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney
Presenter's Name: Daisy Flores 

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to Officer Brian
Hudson of the Globe Police Department.

Background Information
Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, selects an officer quarterly for the Officer of the Quarter award from
the nominations from her staff.  The staff nominates an officer for his or her availability for preparation
and carrying out prosecution, their reports being complete and readable, court appearances, assistance
and cooperation with the attorney of record, and service above and beyond.  Two plaques will be
presented, one for the officer and one for his or her agency.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to Officer Brian
Hudson of the Globe Police Department.



ARF-639     Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Presenter's Name: Erica Raymond 

Information
Request/Subject
May Spotlight on Employees Program

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following qualities: team
work, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize the following 8 employees for May's
"Spotlight on Employees" Program: Linda Allinson, Jonathan Destea, Cindy Salas, Lee Alexander, Kevin
Fane, Jamie Cunningham, Eddie McGuire and Diana Ortiz

Suggested Motion
Recognition of the following 8 employees for May's "Spotlight on Employees" Program: Linda Allinson,
Jonathan Destea, Cindy Salas, Lee Alexander, Kevin Fane, Jamie Cunningham, Eddie McGuire and
Diana Ortiz



ARF-563     Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: Craig Sullivan 

Information
Request/Subject
County Supervisors Association Update of Activities

Background Information
Each year the Executive Director of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) visits all 15 counties in Arizona to provide the
Boards of Supervisors with an update of activities conducted by CSA including a discussion of the recent legislative session. 

Evaluation
Craig Sullivan, Executive Director of CSA, has requested to make a presentation to the Board of Supervisors on this date.

Conclusion
It would be advantageous to the Board of Supervisors, County staff and the public to receive an update of CSA activities to include
a discussion of recent legislative activities.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Mr. Sullivan present an update of CSA activities and discuss the recent legislative session with the Board
of Supervisors.

Suggested Motion
Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a
discussion of recent legislative activities.

Attachments
Link: CSA Year-End Report
Link: CSA Impact Handout
Link: CSA 6-28-11 Presentation to BOS



 

1 
 

FY 10-11 Association Report  
 

 

        
CSA’s Purpose 

 
The CSA is a non-partisan forum for Arizona’s  55 county 
supervisors to address important issues facing local 
constituents, providing a mechanism to share 
information and to advance a proactive state and 
federal policy agenda. 
 
 

           Executive Committee Membership 
 

             Hon. David Tenney, Navajo County 
          President 

 
            Hon. Max W. Wilson, Maricopa County 

          President Elect 
 

          Hon. Lenore Stuart, Yuma County 
         First Vice President 

 
           Hon. Richard Lunt, Greenlee County 

          Second Vice President 
 

              Hon. David Snider, Pinal County 
            Third Vice President 

 
              Hon. Elizabeth Archuleta, Coconino County 

            Immediate Past President 
 
 

        CSA PROFESSIONAL STAFF 
 

Craig A. Sullivan, Executive Director 
 

Todd Madeksza, Dir. of Legislative Affairs 
 

Penny Adams, Dir. of Finance & County Services 
 

Rod Ross, Legislative Associate 
 

Anabel Abarca, Research Analyst 
 

Yvonne M. Ortega, Administrative Assistant 
 

 
 

CORE GOALS 
 
 Protect and enhance county authorities and resources 

in order to promote efficient, responsive constituent 
services. 

 

 Develop and disseminate information to assist state 
and local decision-making. 

 
 

                       CORE CAPABILITIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                         

 
 

STRATEGIES 
 
 Advance a proactive policy agenda  
 

 Leverage statewide county supervisor lobbying force 
 

 Develop legislative champions statewide  
 

 Support membership via outreach and specialized 
support 

 

 Identify, prioritize and develop information products 
to assist state and local decision-making 

 

 Retain and develop a talented, knowledgeable 
workforce 

 

 Maintain a fiscally efficient, service-oriented 
organization 

CSA capabilities leveraged by: 
 County Supervisors 
 County Managers 
 Legislative Affairs Staff 
 Technical Experts 
 Affiliate Organizations 
 Contract Lobbyists 

 
ADVOCACY

STRATEGIC
COMMUNICATIONS

RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS

ADVOCACY

STRATEGIC
COMMUNICATIONS

RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS



 

2 
 

FY 10-11 Association Report 
CS

A 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l C
ha

rt
 

 



 

3 
 

FY 10-11 Association Report  
  

 
 
 

Advocacy and Policy Development 
 

 2010 Sixth Annual Legislative Policy Summit,  
Hosted by Graham and Greenlee Counties 
• 20 proposals analyzed for consideration 

 Seven of 11 initiatives enacted into law 
 Advocated county interests in the FY11 & FY12 state 

budget negotiations, results include: 
• Reduced fiscal input to counties from an 

estimated $150 million to an estimated             
$94 million 

• Maintained resource “flexibility” language to 
apply to any county expenditure 

• Prevented the transfer of state prisoners to 
county facilities for FY12 

 Defeated legislation harmful to county operations 
including proposals to: 
• Erode supervisors’ fiscal oversight responsibilities 
• Alter the legislative vacancy process by 

eliminating any role by the board of supervisors 
• Arbitrarily cap levies for public health, library and 

jail districts 
• Remove the board’s authority to efficiently 

manage county personnel system 
• Micromanage county administrative/meeting 

processes 
 Prepared testimony for CSA President David Tenney 

to deliver before committees, topics include: 
SB1278, SB1411, State Budget 

 Facilitated and prepared content for CSA leadership 
meetings with the Governor, and Senate and House 
Majority Leadership 

 Regularly communicated with Executive policy staff 
 Regularly briefed House and Senate Minority 

Leadership and staff 
 Briefed “Rural Caucus” regarding proposed fiscal 

impacts 
 Represented county interests in the following 

standing meetings:  
• Supreme Court Commission on Technology 
• Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
• Assisted the SACCNet grant application 

 
 
 

 
 

 Represented county interests in projects or policy 
workgroups related to the following: 
• County lot split regulations  
• Home-based kitchen and food product safety 
• Medical Examiner processes for body identification 
• Employers’ briefing of PSPRS/CORP/EORP/ ASRS 
• Retirement Reform stakeholder meetings 
• Regulatory Reform stakeholders meeting 

 Coordinated two multi-county Natural Resources 
Initiatives: 
• AZ Secure Rural Schools Coalition Action Team 
• Four Forest Restoration Initiative (4-FRI), including 

coordination with Congressman Gosar’s office 
• Coordinated efforts between CSA and the 

Economic Environmental Counties Organization 
(EECO)  

 Lobbied AZ Congressional delegation regarding: 
• Reauthorization of Secure Rural Schools and 

Community Self-Determination Act 
• Continuation of full funding of PILT (Payment in 

Lieu of Taxes) 
• Repeal of the 3% withholding tax on county 

purchases 
• Support for the Federal Tax Intercept legislation to 

assist crime victims 
 

Research and Information Products 
 

 2011 Legislative Summary 
 Analyses of FY11 & FY12 state budget impacts  
 County Budget Impacts Survey 
 County Revenue/Expenditure Report 
 “Federal Watch List: Issues of Concern to Az Counties” 
 County Primary and Secondary Property Tax 

Compilation 
 Developed a series of fact sheets:  

• “County VLT Revenue” 
• “County ALTCS Payments" 
• “Fund Balances in County Government”   
• “SB1411: Reduce Accountability, Oversight, 

Efficiency” 
 

Select Outcomes, Information Products and Support Services 



 

4 
 

FY 10-11 Association Report  
 

 

Media and Communication Outreach 
 

 Provided counties with press releases for local 
distribution on state budget county impacts, 
resulting in 12 news articles being published in 12 
newspapers statewide 

 Secured The Arizona Republic editorial: “Leave the 
counties alone,” February 23, 2011 

 Facilitated radio and television interviews between 
CSA President David Tenney and major media 
outlets.  Interviews broadcast nationally on NPR’s 
All Things Considered and locally on Channel 8’s 
Horizon and Cronkite News shows 

 Drafted letters and messages for counties, including 
pre-session correspondence to lawmakers, a 
CSA/AACo letter opposing the Senate budget plan, 
and thank-you letters to sponsors of CSA proposals 

 Provided county-specific information for             
2011 Report: Structurally Unbalanced: Cyclical and 
Structural Deficits in Arizona, prepared by the 
Morrison Institute for Public Policy 

 Panelist: “2011 State of Our State Conference” 
 Web platform: www.countysupervisors.org 
 CSA Legislative Update, weekly e-newsletter 
 Established fund raising relationships with 12 

businesses 
 Elevated public awareness via outreach to Capitol 

press corps and by supporting county public 
information efforts 

 Hosted 2011 Legislators and Supervisors Reception 
 Conducted weekly LPC briefings via tele-

conference/webinar 
 Facilitated Governor’s “County Government Month” 

Proclamation 
 Centennial Way Project Steering Committee 
 Provided legislative briefings to the following: 

• ACIP Public Practice Legal Seminar 
• AZ City/County Management Association 
• Association of County Planners 
• AZ Clerks of the Board Association 
• AZ Association of County Engineers 
• AZ County Directors of Environmental Health 

Services Association 
• AZ Civil Deputy Attorneys Association 
• Arizona Flood Plain Association 
• Gila Valley Leadership 

 

NACo Engagement 
 

 Facilitated/supported member participation in NACo 
 Advocated appointment of 34 members, including 

leadership positions 
 Sponsored member for County Leadership Institute 
 Supported members w/ NACo credentials voting 

process 
 Arizona Caucus Reception, Co-Sponsor 
 U.S. Senators and Supervisors Breakfast, Co-sponsor 
 Western Interstate Region, Ex Officio 
 Supported resolution urging the Bureau of Indian 

Affairs to dedicate a liaison to NACo 
 Assisted Coconino County’s successful bid to host a 

future WIR Annual Conference 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.countysupervisors.org/


Gila County 

Prepared by the County Supervisors Association – June 15, 2011 - www.countysupervisors.org 

 
 

 
 

 
ENACTED FY12 BUDGET 

 
STATEWIDE 

COUNTY IMPACT 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 
HURF Shift to DPS 
HURF Shift to MVD 
50% of SVP Costs at ASH 
100% of Rural RTC Costs 
Reduce State Share of JP Salaries 
Maricopa Superior Court Judge Salaries 
ACJC Grants to Indigent Defense 
Mandated County Transfers 
Inmate Shift  

($20.8 million) 
($12.3 million) 
($6.2 million) 
($5.1 million) 
($1.1 million) 
 ($9.0 million) 

($700,300) 
($38.6 million) 

Delayed 

($342,221) 
N/A 
N/A 

($383,812) 
($37,682) 

N/A 
($7,287) 

N/A 
Triggered FY12-13 

Enacted Fiscal Impact ($94.1 million) ($771,002) 
 

 
ESTIMATED AGGREGATE IMPACTS FY08-FY12  

 
STATEWIDE  

COUNTY IMPACT 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 
HURF Shifts 
Lost Revenue Streams 
Program Shifts 
Mandated Contributions 

($73.6 million) 
($17.8 million) 
($66.5 million) 

($130.1 million) 

($1,003,470) 
($599,708) 

($1,506,697) 
N/A 

Estimated Fiscal Impact ($288 million) ($3,109,875) 
 

 

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

$90,000,000

$100,000,000

FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012

FY2008-FY2012 County Impacts 

Mandated Contributions

Program Shifts

Lost Revenue Streams

HURF
$66.5M 

$47.0M 

$73.4M 

$94.1M 

 
STATE BUDGET IMPACTS 

*Costs of the inmate 
population shift have not 
been added to the FY2012 
total impacts.  
Implementation is set to 
begin July 1, 2012.  
 

$7.0M 



1 County Supervisors Association

Report to the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors

June 28, 2011



2 County Supervisors Association

County Supervisors Association

CSA’s Purpose:

CSA is a non-partisan forum for Arizona’s 55 county supervisors to address 
important issues facing local constituents, providing a mechanism to share 
information and to advance a proactive state and federal policy agenda.

Core Goals:

Protect and enhance county authorities and resources in order to promote efficient, 
responsive constituent services

Develop and disseminate information to assist state and local decision-making



3 County Supervisors Association

CSA County Services

Advocacy and Policy Development

Arizona Legislature and Executive Agencies
U.S. Congress and Federal Agencies

Research and Informative Products

Communication and Outreach

FY10-11 Association Report: Includes select outcomes, information products, and 
support services



4 County Supervisors Association

County Direction to CSA

2011 County Directives to CSA Staff:

1. State budget #1 priority

Minimize and mitigate fiscal damage to counties

2. Advance county-initiated CSA-sponsored legislation

3. Protect county interests before the legislature



5 County Supervisors Association

New Legislature, New Challenges

The largest Republican majority in state history (40 in House, 21 in Senate)

34 freshman legislators (27 members of the House)

Budget deficit and educational deficit
Significant time spent educating lawmakers and responding to harmful legislation

Large number of bills impacting county operations 



6 County Supervisors Association

Lawmakers Focused on “Getting in the Black”

Surplus/ 
Shortfall            

($ in Millions)

Counts 1 ¢ TPT as on‐going in FY11 – FY13

Source: 
JLBC



7 County Supervisors Association

Competing Budget Proposals

In January, Governor Brewer proposed a state budget with $65 million in 
county impacts, including:

Additional HURF Shift ($7.8M), 50% SVP Cost ($2.3M), ACJC grants ($2.2M)

Lower mandated county contributions ($34M to $21M)

The State Senate passed an alternative budget with $150 million in county 
impacts:

Senate budget included county impacts in Governor’s proposal, plus the prisoner 
shift, MVD shift, and higher mandated county “contributions”



8 County Supervisors Association

County Officials Respond to Budget Proposals

Legislative 
proposals to shift 
$150 million to 
counties drew a 
sharp response 
from county 
elected officials 
statewide.



9 County Supervisors Association

Adopted FY12 State Budget

Legislative leaders and the Governor negotiated and passed a final 
budget that included $94 million in county impacts and: 

Delayed the prisoner shift until July 1, 2012

Exempted ten counties from the MVD shift

Expanded the mandated county “contributions” to the five largest counties

Maintained flexibility language, allowing a county to meet any fiscal obligation 
from any source of revenue, including special taxing districts controlled by the 
board of supervisors



10 County Supervisors Association

Adopted FY12 State Budget

Enacted FY12 Budget
HURF Shift to DPS ($20.8 million)

HURF Shift to MVD ($12.3 million)

50% SVP Costs at ASH ($6.2 million)

100% of Rural RTC Costs ($5.1 million)

Reduce State Share of JP Salaries ($1.1 million)

Maricopa Superior Court Judge Salaries ($9.0 million)

ACJC Grants to Indigent Defense ($700,300)

Mandated County Transfers ($38.6 million)

Inmate Shift Delayed

Estimated Fiscal Impact ($94.1 million)

Gila County
($342,221)

N/A

N/A

($383,812)

($37,682)

N/A

($7,287)

N/A

Triggered FY12-13

($771,002)



11 County Supervisors Association

State Budget Impacts (FY08 – FY12)

$7.0M

ESTIMATED AGGREGATE IMPACTS FY08-FY12 STATEWIDE
COUNTY IMPACT

GILA COUNTY

HURF Shifts
Lost Revenue Streams
Program Shifts
Mandated Contributions

($73.6 million)
($17.8 million)
($66.5 million)

($130.1 million)

($1,003,470)
($599,708)

($1,506,697)
N/A

Estimated Fiscal Impact ($288 million) ($3,109,875)



12 County Supervisors Association

Budget Eliminates Structural Deficit Through FY13

Source: 
JLBC



13 County Supervisors Association

CSA Legislative Agenda

Seven of eleven CSA-sponsored bills enacted into law
HB 2197 charter schools; age restricted communities (Lesko)
HB 2372 conservatorships; guardianships; county reimbursement (Ash)
HB 2236 sharing revenue information; political subdivisions (Goodale)
SB 1291 prisoners; credits for fines (Griffin)
HB 2318 regional and public transportation authorities (Jones)
HB 2319 counties; primitive roads; maintenance (Jones)
SB 1362 structures; flood control (Antenori)

Four CSA-sponsored bills held by sponsor, defeated, or vetoed

SB 1427  flood control district; construction projects (Nelson) - Held
SB 1428 counties; employment of contractors; bids (Nelson) - Held
SB 1278  county assessor; permanent retrieval fund (Allen) - Defeated
SB 1186  2011 tax correction act (Yarbrough) - Vetoed



14 County Supervisors Association

Legislation Amended by CSA

Amended multiple bills to address county interests

HB 2005  subdivisions; acting in concert (Burges)
HB 2103  homemade food products; regulation; exception (Kavanagh) 
HB 2424  probate; wards; rights (Smith)
SB 1118  county medical examiner; identification protocol (Barto)
SB 1379  consumer fireworks; regulation (Antenori)
SB 1499  probate proceedings; omnibus (Driggs)
SB 1598  cities; counties; regulatory review (Klein)
SB 1609  retirement systems; plans; plan design (Yarbrough)
HB 2584  workers’ compensation; directed care (Burges)
SB 1178  county judgment bonds (Allen) 



15 County Supervisors Association

Legislation Opposed by CSA

CSA directly opposed the following bills:

HB 2207 special health care districts; procurement (Harper) - Held
HB 2501 rules; laws; ordinances; interpretation (Vogt)- Held
SB 1177 public intoxication; local laws (Allen) - Held
SB 1215 public meetings; call to public (Allen) - Held
SB 1411 elected county officers; authority (Smith) - Failed
SB 1541 sheriff’s deputies; overtime pay (Melvin) - Failed
SB 1286 counties; cities; permits; time limits (Klein) - Held

Educated legislators on pension reform, illegal subdivisions, homemade 
food products, county personnel systems, legislative vacancy process, 
probate, supervisor authority, public meetings, public intoxication, and 
many other issues.



16 County Supervisors Association

Legislation Opposed by CSA

In spite of CSA opposition, the following bills became law:

SB 1171 cities; acquisition of wastewater utility (Antenori)

SB 1313 public health districts; voter approval (Murphy) 

SB 1398 moving violations; assessment; equipment; enforcement (Biggs) 



17 County Supervisors Association

Legislation Opposed by Counties

Counties worked with Governor Brewer’s office on the following vetoes:

HB 2338 special districts; secondary levy limits (Olson)
Capped county health, library, and jail districts

HB 2650 county employees; merit system exemption (Burges)
Required counties to uncover employees

HB 2484 legislative vacancies; precinct committeemen (Gowan)
Eliminated supervisors’ role in replacing legislators

SB 2581 STOs; credits; administration (Mesnard)
Threatened county severance tax revenue

SB 1201 firearms omnibus (Gould)
Prohibited restrictions on firearms in county buildings

SB 1041 Arizona quality jobs incentives (Reagan)
Changed tax classifications for new/expanding businesses



18 County Supervisors Association

Next Steps

Evaluation of prisoner shift implementation
Determine size and scope of shift
Assessment of mitigation/reform strategies

Monitor prospects for special session 
Unemployment benefit extension
State personnel reform

Monitor state’s fiscal situation
AHCCCS lawsuit could create a $200 million deficit

Connect with counties, stakeholders, and legislators in preparation for 
next session

CSA county outreach (June – August)
Managers meetings in June and August

Reforms, cost saving measures



19 County Supervisors Association

Policy Development Process

Next steps:

County legislative proposals due August 15, 2011

CSA provided template; staff available to assist with evaluation

CSA Board of Directors meeting, September 15, 2011

CSA Legislative Policy Summit: 

Hosted by Navajo County
Show Low, Arizona
October 3-5, 2011



20 County Supervisors Association

CSA Legislative Summary
Annual summary document will soon be available on the 

CSA website: www.countysupervisors.org



21 County Supervisors Association

Report to the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors

June 28, 2011



ARF-566     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Health & Emergency Services Division Director
Submitted By: Sarah White, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information
Request/Subject
Ordinance No. 11-02 Amending Ordinance No. 98-01-Open Outdoor Fire

Background Information
On August 4, 1998, the Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance No. 98-01 which relates to open outdoor fires.

On July 3, 2001, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 01-07-02 amending Ordinance No. 98-01 by
increasing the civil penalty from a not to exceed amount of $100 to $500.

On May 31, 2011, the Board of Supervisors held a Work Session to review and discuss adopting a new ordinance to
amend Ordinance No. 98-01 to add language to the ordinance regarding the use of fireworks in unincorporated
areas of Gila County.  

Evaluation
This public hearing agenda item is to proceed and adopt this Ordinance as discussed at the May 31, 2011, Board of
Supervisors' Work Session relating to the use of fireworks in unincorporated areas of Gila County.  Per statutory
requirements, a notice of the public hearing was advertised in the official newspaper of the County for at least 15
days prior to the hearing.

Conclusion
At its May 31st Work Session, the Board of Supervisors reviewed and discussed adopting an ordinance to amend
Ordinance No. 98-01 - Open Outdoor Fire so that language could be added to the Ordinance regarding the use of
fireworks in unincorporated areas of Gila County.  A new ordinance is being proposed for adoption by the Board of
Supervisors to amend the previous ordinance related to open outdoor fires.  

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt an
Ordinance relating to the use of fireworks in the unincorporated areas of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 11-02 amending Ordinance No. 98-01 -
Open Outdoor Fire pertaining to the use of fireworks in unincorporated areas of Gila County.
(Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: Ordinance 11-02 Public Hearing Notice
Link: Ordinance 11-02 with proposed changes
Link: Ordinance 11-02 - Final



 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
will hold a public hearing at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona, 
and simultaneously broadcast to the Payson Board of Supervisors’ Conference Room at the 
County Complex, 610 E. Highway 260, Payson, Arizona to consider adopting Ordinance No. 11-
02, which amends Ordinance No. 98-01 – Open Outdoor Fires by including language regarding 
fireworks.  The hearing will take place at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, June 28, 2011.  The proposed 
changes are as follows: 

Add Definition 1.5 to state: 

1.5   Fireworks means any combustible or explosive composition, substance or   
  combination of substances, or any article prepared for the purpose of producing a  
  visible or audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, that 
  is a consumer firework or display firework as defined by A.R.S. §36-1601 (3) a. 

 
Amend Prohibition 2.1 to state: 

2.1 At any time when the United States Department of Agriculture, United States  
  Forest Service, issues an order under Title 36, Section 261.52 of the Code of  
  Federal Regulations placing certain restrictions on fires within Tonto National  
  Forest, it shall be unlawful for any person to build, maintain, attend, ignite or use  
  an open fire, bonfire, campfire or fireworks, except as provided in this Section. 

Copies of the proposed Ordinance No. 11-02 are available for public review at the Department of 
Health & Emergency Management, 5515 S. Apache Ave., Ste 400, Globe, Arizona 85501. 

Dated this 25th day of May 2011. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Publish:  Arizona Silver Belt:       One Publication:   June 1, 2011          Acct 109367 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
ORDINANCE NO. 11-02 AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 98-01- 

OPEN OUTDOOR FIRE 
 

 
 An Ordinance adopted by the Gila County Board of Supervisors relating to open outdoor 

fires. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-251(31) and 

§ 11-251.05 may make and enforce all local police, sanitary and other regulations not in conflict 

with general law; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is concerned about dry conditions, 

low humidity, increased windy conditions, high temperatures, and the chance of human caused 

fires is great; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has determined that the use of open 

fires contributes to this concern and threat; and 

 WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture, United States Forest Service, 

prohibits certain fires in areas designated by order; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors wishes to prohibit certain open fires 

at the same times when the United States Department of Agriculture, United States Forest 

Service, prohibits certain fires designated by order; and  



 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance 98-01 – Open 

Outdoor Fire on August 4, 1998, (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-12125); and  

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 01-07-02 on 

July 3, 2001, (Recorder’s Fee #2001-10029) amending Ordinance 98-01 – Open Outdoor Fire.  

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors that: 

 

OPEN OUTDOOR FIRE ORDINANCE 

 

 

SECTION 

 

 1.  Definitions 

 

 2.  Prohibition 

 

 3.  Penalties 

 

 4.  Applicability 

  

 5.   Effective Date; Emergency Declaration 

 

 

SECTION 1 

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

1.1 Open outdoor fire means any combustion of combustible material of any type 
outdoors. 

 

 2



1.2 Campfire means a fire not within any building, mobile home, or living 
accommodation which is used for cooking, personal warmth, lighting, ceremony, 
or aesthetic purposes, except at any developed recreation site. 

 
1.3 Barbecue means fixed or portable device where food is cooked on a metal frame 

over a fire fueled by a propane or gas source. 
 

1.4 Bonfire means a fire built outdoors for burning rubbish, waste material, or refuse. 
 
 
1.5  Fireworks means any combustible or explosive composition, substance or   
  combination of substances, or any article prepared for the purpose of producing a  
  visible or audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, that 
  is a consumer firework or display firework as defined by A.R.S. §36-1601 (3) a. 
 
 
SECTION 2 

 

PROHIBITION: 

 

2.1 At any time when the United States Department of Agriculture, United States 

Forest Service, issues an order under Title 36, Section 261.52 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations placing certain restrictions on fires within the Tonto National 

Forest, it shall be unlawful for any person to build, maintain, attend, ignite, or use 

a open outdoor fire, bonfire, campfire or fireworks, except as provided in this 

Section. 

 

2.2 EXCEPTIONS: 

 The following fires are excepted from the provisions of this Section: 

  
 A. Fires used only for cooking of food conducted on a barbecue  
 
 B. Any fire set or permitted by any public officer in the performance 

of official duty, if such fire is set or permission given for the purpose of 
weed abatement, the prevention of fire hazard or instruction in the 
methods of fighting fires. 

 

 3



 C. Fires set or permitted by the Director of the Department of 
Agriculture or County Agricultural agents of the county for the purpose of 
disease and pest prevention. 

 
 D. Fires set by or permitted by the Federal Government or any of its 

departments, agencies or agents of the state or any of its agencies, 
departments or political subdivisions for the purpose of watershed 
rehabilitation or control through vegetative manipulation. 

  
 E. Any other fire allowed by permit issued pursuant to A.R.S. §49-

501 et seq. 
 
 F. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit the 

occurrence of a public display of fireworks in the unincorporated areas of 
the county as approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 

SECTION 3 

 

PENALTIES: 

 

3.1 Each violation pursuant to this Ordinance shall result in a civil penalty not to 

exceed $500.00 for each violation. 

 

 

SECTION 4 

 

APPLICABILITY: 

 

4.1 This Ordinance applies within all unincorporated areas of Gila County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4



 5

SECTION 5 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE; EMERGENCY DECLARATION: 

 

5.1 The Board of Supervisors having determined, by unanimous vote, that expedited 

enactment of this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety of the County of Gila, Arizona, an emergency is hereby declared 

to exist and, therefore, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage, approval and adoption. 

 

          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
    __       
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
    __ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
ORDINANCE NO. 11-02 AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 98-01- 

OPEN OUTDOOR FIRE 
 

 
 An Ordinance adopted by the Gila County Board of Supervisors relating to open outdoor 

fires. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-251(31) and 

§ 11-251.05 may make and enforce all local police, sanitary and other regulations not in conflict 

with general law; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is concerned about dry conditions, 

low humidity, increased windy conditions, high temperatures, and the chance of human caused 

fires is great; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has determined that the use of open 

fires contributes to this concern and threat; and 

 WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture, United States Forest Service, 

prohibits certain fires in areas designated by order; and 

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors wishes to prohibit certain open fires 

at the same times when the United States Department of Agriculture, United States Forest 

Service, prohibits certain fires designated by order; and  



 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance 98-01 – Open 

Outdoor Fire on August 4, 1998, (Recorder’s Fee No. 1998-12125); and  

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 01-07-02 on 

July 3, 2001, (Recorder’s Fee #2001-10029) amending Ordinance 98-01 – Open Outdoor Fire.  

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Gila County Board of Supervisors that: 

 

OPEN OUTDOOR FIRE ORDINANCE 

 

 

SECTION 

 

 1.  Definitions 

 

 2.  Prohibition 

 

 3.  Penalties 

 

 4.  Applicability 

  

 5.   Effective Date; Emergency Declaration 

 

 

SECTION 1 

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

1.1 Open outdoor fire means any combustion of combustible material of any type 
outdoors. 

 

 2



1.2 Campfire means a fire not within any building, mobile home, or living 
accommodation which is used for cooking, personal warmth, lighting, ceremony, 
or aesthetic purposes, except at any developed recreation site. 

 
1.3 Barbecue means fixed or portable device where food is cooked on a metal frame 

over a fire fueled by a propane or gas source. 
 

1.4 Bonfire means a fire built outdoors for burning rubbish, waste material, or refuse. 
 
 
1.5  Fireworks means any combustible or explosive composition, substance or   
  combination of substances, or any article prepared for the purpose of producing a  
  visible or audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, that 
  is a consumer firework or display firework as defined by A.R.S. §36-1601 (3) a. 
 
 
SECTION 2 

 

PROHIBITION: 

 

2.1 At any time when the United States Department of Agriculture, United States 

Forest Service, issues an order under Title 36, Section 261.52 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations placing certain restrictions on fires within the Tonto National 

Forest, it shall be unlawful for any person to build, maintain, attend, ignite, or use 

a open outdoor fire, bonfire, campfire or fireworks, except as provided in this 

Section. 

 

2.2 EXCEPTIONS: 

 The following fires are excepted from the provisions of this Section: 

  
 A. Fires used only for cooking of food conducted on a barbecue  
 
 B. Any fire set or permitted by any public officer in the performance 

of official duty, if such fire is set or permission given for the purpose of 
weed abatement, the prevention of fire hazard or instruction in the 
methods of fighting fires. 

 

 3



 C. Fires set or permitted by the Director of the Department of 
Agriculture or County Agricultural agents of the county for the purpose of 
disease and pest prevention. 

 
 D. Fires set by or permitted by the Federal Government or any of its 

departments, agencies or agents of the state or any of its agencies, 
departments or political subdivisions for the purpose of watershed 
rehabilitation or control through vegetative manipulation. 

  
 E. Any other fire allowed by permit issued pursuant to A.R.S. §49-

501 et seq. 
 
 F. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit the 

occurrence of a public display of fireworks in the unincorporated areas of 
the county as approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
 

SECTION 3 

 

PENALTIES: 

 

3.1 Each violation pursuant to this Ordinance shall result in a civil penalty not to 

exceed $500.00 for each violation. 

 

 

SECTION 4 

 

APPLICABILITY: 

 

4.1 This Ordinance applies within all unincorporated areas of Gila County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4



 5

SECTION 5 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE; EMERGENCY DECLARATION: 

 

5.1 The Board of Supervisors having determined, by unanimous vote, that expedited 

enactment of this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety of the County of Gila, Arizona, an emergency is hereby declared 

to exist and, therefore, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage, approval and adoption. 

 

          PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011. 

 

ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
    __       
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  
Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
    __ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 

 

 



ARF-637     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Health & Emergency Services Division Director
Submitted By: Sarah White, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information
Request/Subject
Ordinance No. 11-03 Amending Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance

Background Information
On April 1, 1991, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering
Ordinance.

On August 1, 1995 and again on May 19, 1998, it was amended. In 2000, the Rural Addressing Department
upgraded their software to a block numbering system from a grid line system. 

In April 2011, the Rural Addressing Department made changes to amend the ordinance which included: a change
from a grid line system to a block numbering system, Rural Addressing will be required to do a public notice in two
consecutive issues in the contracted publications contractor, subsequent proposed name changes will not be
considered for 10 years, the Gila Count Board of Supervisors will have the authority to grant a variance, amend,
supplement, change, modify, suspend or repeal the ordinance following a public hearing and the fees increased due
to the increase in supplies. 

On May 31, 2011, the Board of Supervisors held a Work Session to review and discuss adopting a new ordinance to
amend the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance.

Evaluation
This public Hearing agenda item is to proceed and adopt this Ordinance as discussed at the May 31, 2011, Board of
Supervisors' Work Session. Per statutory requirements, a notice of the public hearing was advertised in the official
newspaper of the County for at least 15 days prior to the hearing.

Conclusion
At its May 31st Work Session, the Board of Supervisors reviewed and discussed adopting an ordinance to amend
the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. A new ordinance is being proposed for
adoption by the Board of Supervisors to amend the pervious ordinance relating to the street naming and property
numbering in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt an
ordinance relating to the street naming and property numbering in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing-Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 11-03 amending the Gila County Street
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance. (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: Ordinance 11-03 Public Hearing Notice
Link: Ordinance 11-03 with proposed changes
Link: Ordinance 11-03-Final

































































ARF-619     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director
Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Community Development Division
Department: Community Development Division
Division: Community Development Administration
Presenter's Name: Robert Gould, Director 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 11-06-07 Re: P&Z Dept. Case No. CUP-11-01

Background Information
Richard and Susan Ray, the applicants, have requested a Conditional Use Permit on Assessor's tax parcel no.
301-52-003K for property of which they are part-owners that is located at 4997 Walnut Lane, Pine, Arizona.  There
is an existing home on this parcel.  The property is owned jointly by several related families.  One of the owners
wants to finish the existing basement into a separate and distinct home, which will create a duplex.  The other
part-owners of the property have indicated that they approve the request.  Property is zoned R1 and does not allow
multi-family residences.

Evaluation
The intent of R1 zoning is to promote the development of single family dwellings and all other uses should be a
complement to that use.  The density district of this property is D35, so there is sufficient room for parking in the
case of multiple families occupying the residence.  Similar uses that are allowed in R1 with a conditional use permit
are bed & breakfast establishments and day care centers.

Conclusion
The proposed duplex will not expand past the existing building footprint and will be for family use only.  Staff has
inspected the site and finds that the property can accomodate the proposed duplex with minimum disruption to
neighbors and the sanitary facilities can be upgraded to accommodate the use.

Recommendation
Because the multi-family use is to be in an existing building and is allowed by the Zoning Ordinance through the
Conditional Use Permit, it is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 11-06-07
approving Planning and Zoning Department Case No. CUP-11-01 with five (5) stipulated conditions as outlined in
Exhibit "A" of the resolution, as follows:  

1. Any building permits that are necessary shall be obtained and the project shall be inspected and approved for
occupancy by the Building Dept.
2. All parking shall be accommodated on the site.
3. No additional homes to be allowed on the property because it will exceed the density district limits.
4. Violations of any of these conditions shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of this Conditional Use Permit.
5.  All units shall be for the use of family members only.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-06-07, which approves Gila County
Planning and Zoning Department Case No. CUP-11-01, an application submitted by Susan and Richard Ray for
a Conditional Use Permit on Gila County Assessor's tax parcel number 301-52-003K, located at 4997 Walnut Lane
in Pine, Arizona, to allow for multi-family duplex use.   (Bob Gould)

Attachments
Link: CUP-11-01 Legal Ad
Link: Staff Report
Link: Resolution No. 11-06-07



LEGAL NOTICE 

GILA COUNTY 


PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

AND 


BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Planning & Zoning Commission 
will hold a public hearing on Thursday, June 16, 2011, and the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, June 28, 2011 concerning 
CUP-11-Ol, filed by Richard & Susan Ray. Both the Planning & Zoning Commission 
hearing and the Board of Supervisors hearing will be held on at 1O:00am, on their 
respective dates, in the Board of Supervisors Conference Room in Globe, 1400 E 
Ash St. 

The Board of Supervisors hearing date will be continued if the Planning & Zoning 
Commission has not given a recommendation. Interested persons may file a 
statement in writing for or against the conditional use permit request or appear and 
be heard at the dates set forth. Citizens can mail their statements to the 
addresses listed below. 

CUP-ll-01 Richard & Susan Ray: Application for a conditional use permit on Gila 
County Tax Assessor Parcel 301-52-003K. The 
applicants are requesting to allow a multi-family 
dwelling in Rl zoning. 

Information on the above case is available for review at "the Gila County Community 
Development Department offices, located at 745 N Rose Mofford Way in Globe and 
608 E Highway 260 in Payson, during normal business hours. 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

By: 	 .(l~1 
Robert Gould, Community Development Director 

Board of -?~rvisors 

'~~ 1By: \ j)J\Af)~p,,0 
MarmA--5heppard, Cler of the Board of Supervisors 

Publications: 
Arizona Silver Belt 1 publication June I, 2011 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
CUP-11-01 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

June 8, 2011 
 
 
 

PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 

MULTI-FAMILY USE IN R1 ZONING 



 
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 MEETING DATE: June 16, 2011 
 
 CASE NUMBER: CUP-11-01 
 

LOCATION: The subject site is a 1.2 acre property in the unincorporated community of Pine. 
The site is off Walnut Lane. 

  
TAX PARCEL: 301-52-003K 
 
ADDRESS: 4997 Walnut Ln, Pine 
 
APPLICANT: Richard & Susan Ray, part owners 
  
REQUEST: "Finish basement add kitchen & two bedroom and two bathrooms to lower level of 

completed residence-family use only, no rentals-immediate ‘family compound’" 
 Note:  Because this level is independent of the rest of the home, it creates a 

separate and distinct home and makes the building a duplex 
  
PURPOSE: To request a Conditional Use Permit for a multi-family (duplex) use in a single 

family residential use zoning district 
  

II.  EXISTING LAND USE / ZONING DESIGNATION 
 

The subject site and surrounding properties in this neighborhood are within the R1-D35 zoning 
district. R1=(Residence One) D35=(Density District) This district is intended to promote the 
development of single family dwellings, intending that all other uses be installed, operated and 
maintained in a manner so as to complement, or at least be of a minimum disruption to such single 
family uses.  

 
III.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

Per the applicant, the citizen notification meeting, to inform property owners within 300' of the 
subject site of an intended zoning action, was held on May 24, 2011 in Mesa, AZ.  No property 
owners attended, but several called.  There were no negative responses. 

 
IV.  APPLICABLE  REQUIREMENTS 
 

Zoning requirements for Conditional Uses and Conditional Use Permits are provided in Section 103.11 
of the zoning ordinance. R1 district requirements are in Section 104.2, Item A, 5, a.  See the 
following excerpts: 
 
 

                      103.11 
                        CONDITIONAL USES AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 
 

1. GENERAL:   As defined in Section 102, Conditional Uses are those uses which, although not 
specifically permitted in a given zoning district, would become harmonious or compatible with 
neighboring uses through the application and maintenance of qualifying conditions.  
Conditional Use Permits shall be issued setting forth all qualifying conditions subject to the 
procedures for rezoning found in Section 105 Amendment Procedures. 



 

 
  3. HEARING: 
 

A. Upon receipt of a complete application and site plan and the non-refundable application 
fee, a hearing on the application shall be scheduled before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

 

B. The Planning and Zoning Commission may either deny the application, recommend its 
approval subject to qualifying conditions, or return it to staff for further study prior to a 
rehearing. 

 

C. Once a recommendation has been made by the Planning and Zoning Commission, a 
hearing on the application shall be scheduled before the Board of Supervisors. 

 

D. The Board of Supervisors may either deny the application, accept the recommendation of 
the Planning and Zoning Commission, modify the recommendation, or send the 
application back to the Commission for further study. 

 

E. Upon the final approval of the Board, a Conditional Use Permit shall be issued by the 
Department setting forth all qualifying conditions. 

 
 
 

Section 104.2, Residence One District 
 

  5. Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit:  
 

k.  Other uses which can become harmonious or compatible with neighboring uses through 
the application and maintenance of qualifying conditions. 

 
 
VI.  ANALYSIS   
 

A. Since this proposed multi-family dwelling will not expand past the existing building footprint and 
will be for family use only, there are few compatibility concerns. Some similar uses that are 
allowed in R1 zoning with a Conditional Use Permit are:  nursery schools & day care centers, bed 
& breakfast establishments, and churches, convents and parish houses. There appears to be 
plenty of available parking on the property. 

 
B. Staff has inspected the subject site and finds that this residential property can accommodate the 

proposed multi-family use (duplex) and has sufficient parking and the sanitary facilities can be 
upgraded to accommodate the use.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VII. RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 Because the multi-family use is to be in an existing building, could be compatible with the 
surrounding land uses and topography, and the use is allowed by the Zoning Ordinance through 
the Conditional Use Permit process, staff suggests: 

 
 That the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend to the Board of Supervisors approval of 

application CUP-11-01; that the 1.2 acre property at 4997 Walnut Lane, Pine, Arizona, currently 
recognized as tax parcel 301-52-003K, shall be allowed the multi-family duplex use, if and when 
the following conditions are met: 

 
1. Any building permits that are necessary shall be obtained and the project shall be inspected 

and approved for occupancy by the Building Department.  

2. All parking shall be accommodated on the site. 

3. No additional homes to be allowed on the property because it will exceed the density district 
limits. 

4. Violations of any of these conditions shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of this 
Conditional Use Permit. 

5. All units shall be for the use of family members only. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC Joe Mendoza 
  



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-06-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING GILA COUNTY PLANNING AND 
ZONING DEPARTMENT CASE NO. CUP-11-01, A REQUEST BY 
RICHARD AND SUSAN RAY FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ON 
GILA COUNTY ASSESSOR’S TAX PARCEL NO. 301-52-003K 
LOCATED AT 4997 WALNUT LANE, PINE, ARIZONA.    

 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission, at a duly noticed public 
hearing held on June 16, 2011, has recommended to the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, 
Arizona, that a Conditional Use Permit request, set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”, be adopted 
as provided in Section 11-829, Arizona Revised Statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, after holding a public hearing as provided by law, the Board of Supervisors of Gila 
County, Arizona, is of the opinion that the adoption of such recommendation would be in the 
best interest of Gila County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors, at a 
regularly scheduled and duly noticed public hearing did pass and adopt Gila County Planning 
and Zoning Department Case No. CUP-11-01, as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” and that 
said zoning request become effective July 27, 2011. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 

Resolution No. 11-06-07 Page 1 
 



Resolution No. 11-06-07 Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  

 Conditional Use Permit 
CASE NO. CUP-11-01 for 

Richard & Susan Ray 
4997 Walnut Lane, Pine, AZ 

Gila County Assessor’s Tax Parcel No. 301-52-003K 
 
 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a multi-family (duplex) use in a single family residential use 
zoning district. Parcel is located at 4997 Walnut Lane, Pine, AZ and is known as Gila County 
Tax Assessor Parcel 301-52-003K; Section 19, Township 12 N, Range 9 E, and is approximately 
.1.2 acres (+-).   
 
Because the multi-family use is to be in an existing building, could be compatible with the 
surrounding land uses and topography, and the use is allowed by the Zoning Ordinance through 
the Conditional Use Permit process, this application is approved with the following conditions: 
 

1.  Any building permits that are necessary shall be obtained and the project shall be 
inspected and approved for occupancy by the Building Department. 

2. All parking shall be accommodated on the site. 
3. No additional homes to be allowed on the property because it will exceed the density 

district limits. 
4. Violations of any of these conditions shall be grounds for suspension or revocation of this 

Conditional Use Permit. 
5. All units shall be for the use of family members only. 



ARF-618     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Joe Mendoza, Deputy Director/Chief Building Official
Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Community Development Division
Department: Community Development Division
Division: Community Development Administration
Presenter's Name: Joe Mendoza, Deputy Director 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Ordinance No. 11-04 Amending the Gila County Building Code Ordinance

Background Information
On August 4, 1986, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Gila County Building Code Ordinance.  Since that time,
the Ordinance has been amended.  Some of the more recent amendments are as follows:

On April 5, 2005, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Resolution 05-04-02 which added Section 7.1-Water
Conservation

On February 20, 2007, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 07-02-06 which amended Section
1-Building Code; Section 2-Title; Section 3-Rules nd Definitions; Section 5-Continuity; Section 7-Rules and
Regulations; Section 8-Permits; Section 12-Violation and Penalties and Section 15-Redress and Fee Schedule.

On October 23, 2007, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 07-10-04 which amended Section 1-Building
Code;Section 4. Advisory Board; Section 8-Building Permits and Section 16-Amendment.

On March 17, 2009 the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 09-03-08 which amended Chapter 11-Energy
Efficiency.

Evaluation
The changes proposed in Ordinance No. 11-04 address the concerns of the Advisory & Appeals Board in regards to
time limits for appeals hearings and give them access to the County Attorney if needed.

Conclusion
The Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board took notice of the fact that there was no time limit specified in the
Building Code Ordinance for setting or posting dates for appeal hearings. They also noticed that there was no
provision for assistance from the County Attorney’s Office at appeals hearings. By unanimous vote, they
recommend that the changes listed above be made to the Gila County Building Code Ordinance.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the changes proposed by the Advisory & Appeals Board be approved by the Board of
Supervisors through the adoption of Ordinance No. 11-04.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 11-04 amending the Gila County Building
Code Ordinance pertaining to the changes proposed by the Building Safety Advisory & Appeals Board (Gila County
Planning and Zoning Case #BCO-11-01.)  (Joe Mendoza)

Attachments
Link: Ordinance No. 11-04
Link: Display ad
Link: Building Code Ordinance w/red lines
Link: Building Code Ordinance



GILA COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 11-04  
AMENDING THE GILA COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE GILA COUNTY BUILDING CODE 
ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS ON AUGUST 4, 1986, AND  RECORDED IN THE GILA 
COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE BY DOCKET 678 PAGE 337-344. 

 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA FINDS THAT: 
 

1. It is necessary to preserve the public health, safety and welfare of all Gila County 
residents by amending our current regulations. 

2. This ordinance shall amend Section 4 of the Gila County Building Code Ordinance. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA: 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF GILA COUNTY TO AMEND SECTION 4 OF THE GILA 
COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 4.  ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 
G.  Appeals 
4. (amend sentence) Upon receipt of a Notice of Appeal, and after posting of public notice as 
required, the The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing of the for an appeal 
within fifteen (15) DAYS OF RECEIPT OF THE Notice of Appeal. (add) Public notice of the 
hearing shall be posted seven (7) days prior to the hearing date.   
 
10.  (add sentence) The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney 
be present at appeal hearings. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 

 
 



DISPLAY AD 

GILA COUNTY 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION & 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a 
public hearing on Thursday, June 16th

, 2011 at the Gila County Courthouse, Board of 
Supervisors Hearing Room located at 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ and the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, June 28th, 2011, at the same location (Gila 
County Courthouse, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ) concerning an amendment to the Gila 
County Building Code Ordinance Planning and Zoning Case# BCO-11-0 1 submitted by 
Community Development Director, Robert Gould amending the following sections: 

GILA COUNTY BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE 
SECTION 4. ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 

G. Appeals 
4. (amend sentence) Upon receipt 0/ a ;V·otice o/Appeal, and after posting (ffpuhlic }'lotice as 
required, the The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing of-the for an appeal 
within fifteen (15) DAYS OF RECEIPT OF THE Notice of Appeal. (add) Public notice of the 
hearing shall be posted seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

10. (add sentence) The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney 
be present at appeal hearings. 

Interested persons may file a statement in writing for or against the zoning change request or 
appear and be heard at the date set forth. Citizens can mail their statements to the addresses listed 
below. 

Information regarding this application will be available for review in the Gila County 
Community Development Departments located at 1400 E. Ash Street in Globe, Arizona and at 
608 East Highway 260 in Payson, Arizona. Citizens may also call the offices at 928-425-3231 
EXT 8514 (Globe) or at 928-474-9276 (Payson), during normal business hours. 

By: £~&UI 
Ro ert A. Gould, Commuruty Development DIrector 

Board of Supervisors 

~ - ~ 
y: () /' . . ~~ 

'~;'( Marian Shep rd, Chief Deputy 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

Arizona Silver Belt: One Publication: May 25,2011 Acct 101556-20 

f--- - ---- --



- 1 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE 

OF THE COUNTY OF GILA 

As amended November 30, 1987, 

February 1, 1993, April 5, 2005, February 20, 2007, October 23, 2007, March 17, 2009 and 

June 28, 2011 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 

REGULATING THE ERECTION, CONSTRUCTION, ENLARGEMENT, ALTERATION, 

REPAIRING, MOVING, REMOVING, DEMOLITION, CONVERSION, OCCUPANCY, 

EQUIPMENT, AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES IN THE 

COUNTY OF GILA; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION 

OF FEES THEREFORE; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVISORY BOARD. 

 

Building regulations provide an important service to the community in maintaining property 

values and in prohibiting the construction of unsafe or unhealthy structures. 

 

The purpose of the Building Code is to provide minimum standards safeguarding life or limb, 

health, property and public welfare.  This is accomplished by regulating and controlling the 

design, construction, quality of materials, used and occupancy, location and maintenance of all 

buildings and structures within the County. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 

ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

SECTION 1.     BUILDING CODE 
 

 The following described documents containing the following described codes, as the 

same now exist or may hereafter be amended, or as specifically amended herein, are hereby 

adopted by reference, as if fully set out herein, as the Building Code of the County of Gila, 

Arizona, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 3, § 11-861 through 

11-866. 

 

 At least three copies of the Building Code shall be filed in the Office of the Clerk of the 

Board of Supervisors and kept available for public use and inspection.  Solely for the purpose of 

satisfying this requirement, the Globe and Payson offices of Community Development are 

designated as branch offices of the Office of the Clerk of the Board.  One copy of the Building 

Code will be kept in the Office of the Clerk of the Board, one copy of the Building Code will be 

kept in the Globe office of Community Development and one copy of the Building Code will be 

kept in the Payson office of Community Development. 

 

 



- 2 - 

 

A. The 2003 edition of the International Building Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc., including Appendix C (GROUP U – AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS) as well as 

the following amendments: 

 

1. Delete the language in Section 308.2 Group I-1 and replace with the following: 

 

This occupancy shall include buildings, structures or parts thereof housing more 

than 10 persons, on a 24-hour basis, who because of age, mental disability or 

other reasons, live in a residential environment that provides supervisory care 

services.  The occupants are capable of responding to an emergency situation with 

out physical assistance from staff.  This group shall include, but not be limited to, 

the following: 

Residential board and care facilities 

Assisted living centers 

Halfway houses 

Group homes 

Congregate care facilities 

Social rehabilitation facilities 

Alcohol and drug abuse centers 

Convalescent facilities 

A facility such as the above with 10 or fewer persons shall be classified as a 

Group R-4 Condition 1 or shall comply with the International Residential Code in 

accordance with Section 101.2 where the building is in compliance with Section 

419 of this code. 

 

 2. Delete the language in Section 308.3 Group I-2 and replace with the following: 

 

This occupancy shall include buildings and structures used for medical, surgical, 

psychiatric, nursing, custodial, personal, or directed care on a 24-hour basis of 

more than five persons who are not capable of self-preservation by responding to 

an emergency situation without physical assistance from staff.  This group shall 

include, but not be limited to, the following: 

   Hospitals 

Nursing homes (both intermediate-care facilities & skilled nursing 

facilities) 

Mental hospitals 

Detoxification facilities 

A facility such as the above with five or fewer persons shall be classified as 

Group R-3 or shall comply with the International Residential Code in accordance 

with Section 101.2. 

 

3. Delete the language in Subsection R-4 of Section 310.1 Residential Group R, 

and replace with the following: 

 

R-4 Residential occupancies shall include buildings arranged for occupancy as 

residential care/assisted living homes including not more than 10 occupants, 

excluding staff. 



- 3 - 

 

310.1.1 Condition 1.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide supervisory care services, in which occupants are capable of self 

preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 

from staff.  Condition 1 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified 

as a Group I-1. 

 

310.1.2 Condition 2.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide personal or directed care services, in which occupants are incapable of 

self preservation by responding to an emergency without physical assistance from 

staff.  Condition 2 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 

Group I-2. 

 

R-4 occupancies shall meet the requirements for construction as defined in Group 

R-3 except as otherwise provided for in this code, and Section 419 or shall 

comply with the International Residential Code in accordance with section 101.2 

where the building is in compliance with Section 419 of this code. 

 

4. Replace the definition of PERSONAL CARE SERVICE under Section 310.2 

Definitions with the following definition: 

 

PERSONAL CARE SERVICE.  Assistance with activities of daily living that 

can be performed by persons without professional skills or professional 

training and includes the coordination or provision of intermittent nursing 

services and the administration of medications and treatments. 

 

5. Replace the definition of RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING 

FACILITIES under Section 310.2 Definitions with the following definition: 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES.  A building or part 

thereof housing a maximum of 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, 

who because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised 

residential environment which provides supervisory, personal, or directed 

services.  This classification shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

residential board and care facilities, assisted living home, halfway houses, group 

homes, congregate care facilities, social rehabilitation facilities, alcohol and drug 

abuse centers and convalescent facilities. 

 

 6. Add the following definitions to Section 310.2 Definitions: 

 

DIRECTED CARE SERVICE.  Care of residents, including personal care 

services, who are incapable of recognizing danger, summoning assistance, 

expressing need, or making basic care decisions. 

 

SUPERVISORY CARE SERVICE.  General supervision, including daily 

awareness of resident functioning and continuing needs. 

 



- 4 - 

7. Amend Section 406.1.4 Separation by adding the following to paragraph 1: 

Doors shall be self-closing and self-latching.  In buildings protected with an 

automatic fire sprinkler system, including the private garage, the room finish 

material shall be permitted to be a minimum ½ inch gypsum board applied to the 

garage side. 

 

8. Add Section 419 as follows: 

 

 RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING HOMES 

 419.1 Applicability. The provisions of this section shall apply to a building or 

part thereof housing not more than 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, 

who because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised 

residential environment which provides licensed care services.  Except as 

specifically required by this division, R-4 occupancies shall meet all applicable 

provisions of Group R-3. 

 

 419.2 General. Buildings or portions of buildings classified as R-4 occupancies 

shall meet all the applicable provisions of Group R-3, may be constructed of any 

materials allowed by this code, shall not exceed two stories in height nor be 

located above the second story in any building, and shall not exceed 2000 square 

feet above the first story except as provided in Section 506. 

 

 419.3 Special Provisions. R-4 occupancies having more than 2000 square feet of 

floor area above the first floor shall be of not less than one-hour fire resistive 

construction throughout. 

 

419.3.1. Mixed Uses.  R-4 occupancies shall be separated from other uses as 

provided in Table 302.3.2. 

 

 419.4 Access and Means of Egress Facilities. 

 

 419.4.1 Accessibility. R-4 occupancies shall be provided with at least one 

accessible route per the Arizonans with Disabilities Act.  Sleeping rooms and 

associated toilets shall be accessible. 

  Exception: Existing buildings shall comply with the requirements of the 

International Existing Building Code.  Bathing and toilet facilities need not be 

made accessible, but shall be provided with grab bars in accordance with 

ICC/ANSI A117.1. 

 

  419.4.2 Exits  

    

 419.4.2.1 Number of Exits. Every story, basement, or portion thereof shall 

have not less than two exits. 

 Exception: Basements and stories above the first floor containing no sleeping 

rooms may have one means of egress as provided in Chapter 10. 

 



- 5 - 

 419.4.2.2 Distance to Exits. The maximum travel distance shall comply with 

Section 1004, except that the maximum travel distance from the center point 

of any sleeping room to an exit shall not exceed 75 feet. 

 

 419.4.2.3 Emergency Exit Illumination. In the event of a power failure, exit 

illumination shall be automatically provided from an emergency system 

powered by storage batteries or an onsite generator set installed in accordance 

with the National Electric Code. 

 

 419.4.2.4 Emergency Escape and Rescue. R-4 occupancies shall comply 

with the requirements of Section 1025, except that Exception 1 to Section 

1025.1 does not apply to R-4 occupancies. 

 

 419.4.2.5 Delayed egress locks.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, delayed 

egress locks shall be permitted in accordance with Sections 1008.1.3.4 and 

1008.1.8.6. items 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6. 

 

 419.5 Smoke Detectors and Sprinkler Systems 
 

 419.5.1 Smoke Alarms.  All habitable rooms and hallways in R-4 

occupancies shall be provided with smoke alarms installed in accordance with 

Section 907.2.10. 

 

 419.5.2 Sprinkler Systems. R-4 occupancies shall be provided with a 

sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.2.7.  Sprinkler 

systems installed under this Section shall be installed throughout, including 

attached garages, and in Condition 2 facilities shall include attics and 

concealed spaces of or containing combustible materials.  Such systems may 

not contain unsupervised valves between the domestic water riser control 

valve and the sprinklers.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, such systems shall 

contain water-flow switches electrically supervised by an approved 

supervising station, and shall sound an audible signal at a constantly attended 

location. 

 

9. Amend Section 507.2 Sprinklered, one story by adding the following to 

Exception 2: 

   

 Such buildings may contain other occupancies, without H fire areas, provided that 

such occupancies do not occupy more than 10 percent of the area of any floor of a 

building, nor more than the tabular values permitted in the occupancy by Table 

503 for such occupancy. 

 

 Exception: Group H fire areas as permitted by Section 507.6. 

 

 10. Amend Section 507.3 Two story by adding the following: 

   

Such buildings may contain other occupancies, without H fire areas, provided that 

such occupancies do not occupy more than 10 percent of the area of any floor of a 



- 6 - 

building, nor more than the tabular values permitted in the occupancy by Table 

503 for such occupancy. 

 

Exception: Group H fire areas as permitted by Section 507.6. 

 

11. Amend Section 1008.1.2. Door swing, Exception 3 by adding “and R-4” after  

 R-3. 

 12. Amend Section 1008.1.9 Panic and fire exit hardware by adding the following 

exception to paragraph 2 after the words “. . . unless it is panic hardware or fire 

exit hardware.” 

 

Exception: A main exit, of a Group A use, in compliance with Section 1008.1.8.3 

Exception 2. 

 

 13. Amend Section 1009.3 Stair treads and risers Exception 5 by replacing “7.75  

  inches” with “8 inches” as maximum riser height. 

 

 14. Amend Section 1024.3 Assembly other exits by replacing the word “exits” with 

the words “means of egress” in the phrase “shall be provided with additional 

exits”. 

 

 15. Delete Chapter 11 ACCESSIBILITY and replace with the Arizonans with 

Disabilities Act (Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 41, Chapter 9, Article 8) and the 

Arizonans with Disabilities Act Implementing Rules (Arizona Administrative 

Code, Title 10, Chapter 3, Article 4) which incorporates the Americans with 

Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities. 

 

 16. Delete Chapter 13 ENERGY EFFICIENCY. 

 

 17. Delete the language in Section 1503.4 Roof Drainage and replace with the 

following: 

   

  Design and installation of roof drainage systems shall comply with Section 1503.4 

and the Arizona State Plumbing Code. 

 

 18. Amend Section 1503.4 Roof Drainage by adding sections 1503.4.2. through 

1503.4.4.2 as follows: 

 

  1503.4.2 Where required.  All roofs, paved areas, yards courts and courtyards 

shall drain into a separate storm sewer system, or a combined sewer system, or to 

an approved place of disposal. 

 

  1053.4.3 Roof design. Roofs shall be designed for the maximum possible depth 

of water that will pond thereon as determined by the relative levels of roof deck 

and overflow weirs, scuppers, edges or serviceable drains in combination with the 

deflected structural elements.  In determining the maximum possible depth of 

water, all primary roof drainage means shall be assumed to be blocked. 

 



- 7 - 

  1503.4.4 Overflow drainage required.   Overflow (emergency) roof drains or 

scuppers shall be provided where the roof perimeter construction extends above 

the roof in such a manner that water will be entrapped if the primary drains allow 

buildup for any reason. 

 

   1503.4.4.1 Separate systems required. Overflow roof drain systems shall 

have the end point of discharge separate from the primary system.  Discharge 

shall be above grade, in a location, which would normally be observed by the 

building occupants or maintenance personnel. 

 

   1503.4.4.2 Overflow drains and scuppers. Where roof drains are required, 

overflow drains having the same size as the roof drains shall be installed with 

the inlet flow line located 2 inches (51 mm) above the low point of the roof, or 

overflow scuppers having three times the size of the roof drains may be 

installed in the adjacent parapet walls.  Scuppers shall be sized to prevent the 

depth of ponding water from exceeding that for which the roof was designed 

as determined by the plumbing code.  Scuppers shall not have an opening 

dimension of less than 4 inches (102 mm).  The flow through the primary 

system shall not be considered when sizing the secondary roof drain system. 

 

 19. Amend Section 1604.8.1 General by replacing the words “the uplift and sliding” 

with “those”. 

 

 20. Amend Table 1607.1 number 27, Residential occupancy, Uninhabitable attics 

without storage by adding the following footnote: 

 

   i. For trussed systems, this live load need not be considered as acting 

simultaneously with other live loads imposed upon the ceiling framing or its 

supporting structure. 

 

 21. Amend Table 1607.1, number 27, Residential Occupancy, One- and two-family 

dwellings, Uninhabitable attics with storage to read 40 psf under the Uniform 

column and Habitable attics and sleeping areas to read 40 psf under the Uniform 

column. 

 

 22. Amend Section 1704.5 Masonry Construction by adding the follow exceptions: 

 

   3. Masonry fences six feet or less in height above grade 

 4. Masonry retaining walls four feet or less in height from bottom of 

footing to top of wall unless supporting a surcharge or impounding 

flammable liquids. 

 

 23. Amend Section 1804.2 Presumptive Load Bearing Values by deleting the 

words “at or” found in the first paragraph in the phrase “. . .for supporting soils at 

or near the surface. . .” 

 



- 8 - 

 24. Amend Table 2902.1 Minimum Number of Required Plumbing Facilities by 

deleting the requirement for a service sink under number 2, classification business 

and number 6, classification mercantile. 

 

 25. Delete Section 3109 SWIMMING POOL ENCLOSURES AND SAFETY 

DEVICES. (Semi-Public and Public swimming pool enclosures and safety 

devices are regulated by the Arizona Administrative Code Title 18 Chapter 5 

Article2.) 

 

 26. Delete Chapter 34 EXISTING STRUCTURES. 

  

 27. Delete Section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

B. The 2003 edition of the International Mechanical Code published by the International 

Code Council, Inc., including Appendix A (COMBUSTION AIR OPENING AND CHIMNEY 

CONNECTOR PASS THROUGHS) as well as the following amendments: 

 

 1. Amend Section 305.5 Protection against physical damage by    

  deleting all words that appear after the word “bored”. 

 

 2. Delete Section 306.5 Equipment and appliances on roofs or    

  elevated structures. 

 

3. Delete Section 306.6 Sloped roofs. 

 

4. Delete  Section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 

C.  The 2003 edition of the International Residential Code published by the International 

Code Council, Inc., including Appendix G (SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS) and 

Appendix H (PATIO COVERS) as well as the following amendments:  

 

1. Amend Section R105.2 Work Exempt From Permit, Building, paragraph 1 by 

adding the words “used as garages, carports, storage sheds, tool sheds, 

playhouses, garden structures and other similar non-habitable uses,” after the 

phrase “one-story detached accessory structures,”. 

 

2. Amend the definition of EXTERIOR WALL in Section R202 DEFINITIONS 

by deleting the first sentence and replacing it with the following: 

  

 An above-grade wall that defines the exterior boundaries of a building. 

 

3. Replace Table R301.2(1) with the following table: 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 9 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE R301.2(1) 

CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA FOR  

GILA COUNTY 

ROOF/GROUND 

SNOW LOADS * 

          (psf) 

  below 2000 ft  

  2000 to 4500 ft  

  4500 to 6000 ft  

  Above 6000 ft  

= Roof 0 / Ground 0 

= Roof 20/ Ground 25 

= Roof 40/ Ground 50 

= per historical data available 

WIND 

SPEED 

90 m.p.h. – 3 second gust wind velocity 

75 m.p.h. – fastest mile wind speed 

SEISMIC 

DESIGN 

CATEGORY** 

B includes the following sites 

and vicinities: Pine, Strawberry, 

Payson, Control Rd., Christopher 

Creek, Rye, Gisela, Jakes Corner, 

Punkin Center, Tonto Basin, 

Young, Armer Ranch, Carrizo 

and Canyon Day 

C includes the following sites and 

vicinities: Roosevelt Lake Dam, 

Roosevelt, Globe, Miami, Claypool, 

Hayden, Winkelman, Rose Creek 

Campground, Aztec Peak, Armer 

Mountain, Cutter, San Carlos, Sawmill 

and Seneca Lake 

WINTER  

DESIGN 

TEMPERATURE 

  4500 ft and above  

  below 4500 ft 

= 15° 

= 24° 

ICE SHIELD 

UNDERLAYMENT 

REQUIRED 

 

NO 

FLOOD 

HAZARDS 

As determined by the Floodplain Department/Engineer 

AIR 

FREEZING 

INDEX 

Less than 1500 cumulative degree days below freezing County-

wide 

MEAN 

ANNUAL 

TEMPERATURE 

 

61.8° average County-wide  

 

SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM 

WEATHERING Moderate at 4600 feet and above 

Negligible below 4600 feet 

FROST 
(footing depths) 

Below 4900 feet Bottom of footing must be a min. of 12” 

below finish grade and a min. of 12” into 

undisturbed soil. 

4900 feet and 

above 

Bottom of footing must be a min. of 18” 

below finish grade and a min. of 12” into 

undisturbed soil. 

TERMITES Moderate to Heavy 

DECAY None to Slight 



- 10 - 

*  Roofs must be designed to support loads as specified in R301.6 or the snow load 

shown here, whichever is greater.  (Ground Snow Load x .8 ≈  Roof Snow Load) 

** See Seismic Design Category maps maintained by Community Development for 

locations not listed. 

 

5. Amend Table R301.5 Minimum Uniformly Distributed Live Loads to read 40 

psf under the LIVE LOAD column for Attics with storage and Sleeping rooms. 

 

6. Amend Table R301.5 Minimum Uniformly Distributed Live Loads, Attics 

with storage, by adding the following footnote: 

 

 g. For trussed systems, this load need not be considered as acting 

simultaneously with other live loads imposed upon the ceiling framing or its 

supporting structure. 

 

7. Amend Section R309.1 Opening protection by adding the following: 

 

 Doors providing opening protection shall be self-closing and self-latching. 

 

8. Amend Section R309.2 Separation required by replacing “1/2 inch gypsum 

board” where it appears with “5/8 inch Type X gypsum board or equivalent”. 

 

9. Amend Section R310.1 Emergency escape and rescue required by adding the 

following: 

 

 Such openings shall open directly into a public street, public alley, yard or court. 

 

10. Amend Section R311.2.2 Under Stair protection by replacing “1/2 inch gypsum 

board” with “5/8 inch Type X gypsum board or equivalent”. 

 

11. Amend Section R311.5.3.1 Riser height by replacing “7 ¾ inches” with “8 

inches” as the maximum riser height. 

 

12. Amend Section R322.1 Scope by replacing the words “Chapter 11 of the 

International Building Code for Group R-3” with “the Arizonans with Disabilities 

Act”. 

 

13. Amend Section R320.1 Subterranean termite control by deleting the words “In 

areas favorable to termite damage” and replacing them with the words “In areas 

subject to termite infestation”. 

 

14. Amend Section R401.5 Compressible or shifting soil by adding the words “In 

lieu of a complete geotechnical evaluation,” to the beginning of the paragraph. 

 

15. Amend Table R1003.1 SUMMARY OF REQUIREMENTS FOR MASONRY 

FIREPLACES AND CHIMNEYS by adding footnote “b” to Horizontal 

reinforcing. 

 



- 11 - 

16. Delete Section N1102.1.7 Crawl Space Walls.  

 

17.  Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

18. Amend Section M1403.2 Foundations and supports by deleting the words “unit 

of a heat pump” and replacing them with the words “mechanical systems”. 

 

19. Amend Section M1411.3.1 Auxiliary and secondary drain systems by adding 

the following after the first sentence in this section: 

 

 Such piping shall maintain a minimum horizontal slope in the direction of 

discharge of not less than one-eighth unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (1% 

slope). 

 

20. Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

21. Amend Section G2415.9 (404.9) Minimum burial depth by deleting the words 

“except as provided for in Section G2415.9.1” and replacing them with the words 

“for metal piping and 18 inches (457mm) for plastic piping with caution tape 6” 

above plastic pipes.” 

 

22. Amend Section P2503.6 Water-supply system testing by adding the words 

“This pressure shall be held for at least 15 minutes.” After the words “…by an air 

test of not less than 50 psi (344kPa).” 

 

23. Amend Section P2803.6.1 Requirements of discharge pipe by deleting the 

words “The discharge pipe shall be installed so as to drain by gravity flow and 

shall terminate atmospherically not more than 6 inches (152mm) above the floor.” 

and replacing them with the words “The discharge pipe shall be installed so as to 

drain by gravity flow and shall terminate atmospherically not less than 6 inches 

(152mm) nor more than 24 inches (610 mm) above the finish floor or finish 

grade.” 

 

24. Amend Section P3103.1 Roof extension by inserting the number “6” in the blank 

for “inches above the roof” and inserting the number “6” in the blank for “inches 

above the anticipated snow accumulation”.  Also, add the words “whichever is 

greater” after the words “inches above the anticipated snow accumulation”. 

 

25. Amend Table 3503.1 by replacing it with the following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 12 - 

TABLE E3503.1 
                SERVICE CONDUCTOR AND GROUNDING ELECTRODE CONDUCTOR SIZING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm. 
a. Where protected by a metal raceway, grounding electrode conductors shall be electrically bonded to the metal raceway at both 

ends. 
b. No. 8 grounding electrode conductors shall be protected with metal conduit or nonmetallic conduit. 

c. Where not protected, No. 6 grounding electrode conductors shall closely follow a structural surface for physical protection.  

The supports shall be spaced not more than 24 inches on center and shall be within 12 inches of any enclosure or termination. 
d. Where the sole grounding electrode system is a ground rod or pipe as covered in Section E3508.2, the grounding electrode 

conductor shall not be required to be larger than No. 6 copper or No. 4 aluminum.  Where the sole grounding electrode system is 

the footing steel as covered in Section E3508.1.2, the grounding electrode conductor shall not be required to be larger than No. 4 
copper. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONDUCTOR TYPES AND SIZES-THHW, 

THW, THWN, USE, XHHW 

 
(Parallel sets of 1/0 and larger conductors are permitted in 

either a single raceway or in separate raceways) 

Service or Feeder 

Rating (Amperes) 

MINIMUM 

GROUNDING 

ELECTRODE 

CONDUCTOR SIZE 
a
 

Copper 

(AWG) 

Aluminum      and    copper-clad 

                                  aluminum 

(AWG) 

≤ 30°C 

(86°F) 

>30°C 

(86°F) 

Copper 

(AWG) 

Aluminum 

(AWG) 

4 2 100  8
b
 6

c
 

3 1 110  8
b
 6

c
 

2 1/0 125 100 8
b
 6

c
 

1 2/0 150 125 6
c 

4 

1/0 3/0 175 150 6
c 

4 

2/0 4/0 

or two sets of 1/0 

200 175 4
d 

2
d
 

3/0 250 kcmil 

or two sets of 2/0 

225 200 4
d
 2

d
 

4/0 

or two sets of 

1/0 

300 kcmil 

or two sets of 3/0 

250 225 2
d 

1/0
d
 

250 kcmil 

or two sets of 

2/0 

350 kcmil 

or two sets of 4/0 

300 250 2
d
 1/0

d
 

350 kcmil 

or two sets of 

3/0 

500 

or two sets of 250 kcmil 

350 300 2
d
 1/0

d
 

400 kcmil 

or two sets of 

4/0 

600 

Or two sets of 300 kcmil 

400 350 1/0
d 

3/0
d 

500 kcmil 750 kcmil  400   



- 13 - 

26. Delete the language in Section 3802.7 and amend it to read as follows: 

  

 Sink, wash basin, tub, or shower receptacles.  All 125-volt, single-phase, 15-

and 20-ampere convenience receptacles that are located within 6 feet of the 

outside edge of any sink, wash basin, tub, or shower shall have ground-fault 

circuit-interrupter protection for personnel. 

 

27. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

changing the language in subsection 2 to read “Threaded rigid metal conduit and 

fittings.” 

 

28. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

changing the language in subsection 3 to read “Threaded intermediate metal 

conduit fittings.” 

 

29. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

deleting subsections 4 and 5. 

 

30. Delete Section R112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

D. The 2003 edition of the International Existing Building Code, published by the 

International Code Council Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

  

1. Delete Section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

E. Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

F. The 2002 edition of the National Electrical Code, published by National Fire Protection 

Association including the following amendments: 

 

 1. Amend Section 210.8(A) Dwelling Units by deleting the language in subsection  

  7 and replacing it with the following: 

 

  “Convenience receptacles located within 6 feet of any sink, wash basin, tub or  

  shower.” 

  

 2. Amend Section 210.8(B) Other Than Dwelling Units by deleting the words  

  “…installed in the locations specified in (1), (2) and (3)…” and replacing them  

  with the words “…installed in the locations specified in (1) through (5)…” 

 

 3. Amend Section 210.8(B) Other Than Dwelling Units by adding the following  

  subsections: 

 

  (4) Convenience receptacles located within 6 feet of any sink, washbasin, tub or  

  shower. 

 

  (5) Outdoors. 

 



- 14 - 

 4. Amend Article 230 Services by adding the following section:  

 

 230.63 Location.  All service equipment rated 1000 amperes or more located 

inside a building shall be enclosed within a room or space separated from the rest 

of the building by not less than one-hour fire-resistive occupancy separation or 

fire barrier installed in compliance with the building code. 

 

 5. Amend Section 250.118 Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by  

  deleting subsections 4 through 8. 

 

6. Amend Section 310.15(B)(6) 120/240-Volt, 3-Wire, Single-Phase Dwelling 

Services and Feeders by adding the words “and 120/204-Volt” after 120/240-

Volt in both locations that it appears. 

 

7. Amend Table 310.15(B)(6) by replacing it with the following: 

 
Table 310.15(B)(6) 

                             Conductor Types and Sizes for 120/240-Volt, and 120/208-Volt, 3-wire, Single-

Phase Dwelling Services and Feeders. 
 

  Conductor (AWG or kcmil) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 FPN: for single-phase panels feed from a 3-phase system, the grounded conductor   

 cannot be reduced in size for 120/208-volt system, see 220.22 

 

8. Amend Section 334.10 Uses Permitted by adding the following language to 

subsection (1): 

 

 “multifamily dwelling, and other residential accessory structures.” 

 

9. Amend Section 334.10 Uses Permitted by deleting subsection (2). 

 

10. Amend Section 334.12 Uses Not Permitted by deleting subsection 2 through 9. 

(Subsections 1 and 10 remain.) 

Copper Aluminum or Copper-

Clad Aluminum 

Service or Feeder Rating (Amperes) 

         ≤30°C (86°F)                         >30°C (86°F) 

4 2 100  

3 1 110  

2 1/0 125 100 

1 2/0 150 125 

1/0 3/0 175 150 

2/0 4/0 200 175 

3/0 250 225 200 

4/0 300  250 225 

250 350 300 250 

350 500 350 300 

400 600 400 350 

500 750  400 



- 15 - 

11. Amend Section 358.10(B) Uses Permitted by adding the words “that is not” 

immediately before the words “in direct contact with the earth”. 

 

12. Amend Section 358.12 Uses Not Permitted by adding the following subsection: 

 

 (7) On or below grade. 

 

13. Amend Section 501.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

14. Amend Section 502.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

15. Amend Section 503.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

16. Delete Section 80.15 Electrical Board. 
 

G. The 2000 edition of the Uniform Swimming Pool, Spa and Hot Tub Code published by 

the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials as well as the following 

amendment: 

 

1. Delete Section 117.0 Board of Appeals. 
 

H. The 2006 edition of the International Plumbing Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

 

1. Delete Section 109 Means of Appeal. 
 

I. The latest publication of Manufactured Home and Factory Built Building Installation 

Standards provided by the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing, including the 

following requirements: 

 

 1.   A permit shall not be issued for the installation or relocation of a manufactured  

  home within the unincorporated areas of Gila County unless the home can be  

  shown to comply with the manufactured home construction and safety standards  

  adopted by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

 2.   It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to provide proof of compliance with  

  requirement 1 above.  A label certifying that the manufactured home has been  

  inspected and constructed in accordance with the requirements of the U.S   

  Department of Housing and Urban Development in effect of the time of   

  manufacture constitutes proof of compliance provided that date of manufacture is  

  not prior to June 15, 1976. 

 

3.   Park Model trailers will be permitted and inspected in the same manner as 

manufactured homes. However, Park Model trailers are classified as Recreational 

Vehicles and, as such, are subject to the zoning, building and other regulations 

that apply to RV’s. 



- 16 - 

 

 4. Manufactured Homes may be converted for use as storage buildings subject to the 

  following: 

 

  a. Must comply with Zoning requirements for a manufactured home 

  b. Must comply with Zoning requirements for an accessory building 

  c. Cannot be larger than or attached to the main house 

  d. Cannot be used as a dwelling, guest house or for any habitable use 

  e. Kitchen and bathroom appliances and fixtures must be removed 

  f. Cannot be connected to water, sewer or gas 

  g. May be connected to electricity subject to National Electric Code   

   requirements 

  h. Will be permitted as an accessory building 

  i. Will be inspected per Office of Manufactured Housing guidelines 

  j. Any alterations will be permitted separately and inspected per the   

   applicable Building Code 

  k. Assessor’s notice of affixture required 

  

J. The 2006 edition of the International Fuel Gas Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

  

 1. Delete Section 108 (IFGC) MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 

K. Deleted 2/20/07 
 

L. Deleted 2/20/07 
 

M. Deleted 3/29/96 

 
 

 Copies of the Building Code are on file and available for public review in the Office of 

the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona, and at the Gila 

County Community Development Offices at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501 or 714 

South Beeline , Payson, Arizona 85541 

 

 

SECTION 2.       TITLE 

 

 This Ordinance shall be known as the Gila County Building Code. 

 

 

SECTION 3.    RULES AND DEFINITIONS 

 

A.  The term “Building Code” as used hereinafter shall mean the codes referred to in Section 

1 of this Ordinance. 

 

B. Terms used in this Ordinance shall be defined as provided in the Codes adopted in 

Section 1 of this Ordinance, except as herein otherwise provided. 

 



- 17 - 

C. Whenever the terms “Governing Body” or “City” or “Town” or “Municipality” are used 

in the Building Code, they shall mean the unincorporated area of the County of Gila, 

excluding Indian Reservations.  

 

D. Whenever the terms “Mayor”, “Appointing Authority”, “Commission”, “City Council”, 

or “Manager” are used in the Building Code, they shall mean the Board of Supervisors. 

 

E. Whenever the terms “Administrative Authority”, “Building Officials”, “Chief”, or 

“Administrator” are used in the Building Code, they shall mean the Chief Building 

Official of Gila County, or his representative. 

 

F. Whenever the terms “Other Code” or “Other Codes” are used in the Building Code, they 

shall mean other code or codes adopted by either the County of Gila or the State of 

Arizona.  If there is a conflict between such other code or codes and this Ordinance, the 

more restrictive shall prevail. 

 

G. Reference to chapters, articles, sections and subsections or paragraphs and to tables 

thereof are to the Building Code. 

 

H. Certificates: 

 

 1. Zoning Certificate. May be part of the Building Permit.  (The issuance of 

approval of zoning use permits, variance permits, temporary use permits and 

special use permits shall not be construed to be functions of the Building 

Inspection Department but shall continue to be processed as otherwise provided 

by law.) 

 

 2. Certificate of Occupancy. For construction completion showing compliance. 

   

Certificate of Inspection may be a separate individual trade inspection approval. 

 

Certificate of Occupancy may be only for a building use inspection approval. 

 

Temporary Certificate may be only for a building use inspection approval. 

 

Final Inspection Certificate (i.e., Certificate of Occupancy) may be a certificate of 

approval that may include the entire structure, partial work, additions or 

alterations.         

 

3. Certificate of Compliance (for existing structures).  May be associated with re-

moving, renovation, use change, addition and existing structure or housing code.   

 

 A letter of Certification (duplicate certification) may be for other than the original 

  issue. 

  

 4. Certificate of Fitness (for hazards and safety).  A document issued by the Building 

 Officials authorizing by permit to maintain, store or handle materials or to 

 conduct processes, which produce conditions hazardous to life and property or to 



- 18 - 

 install equipment used in connection with such activities in accordance with the 

 provision of this Ordinance.  It shall not be transferable and any change in use or 

 occupancy of premises shall require a new permit. 

   

May be used when new construction “fitness” is a change of use and occupancy. 

 

I. Building Safety Department 

 

  The Building Safety Department shall administer this Ordinance.  The official in 

charge thereof shall be known as the Chief Building Official of Gila County. 

 

J. Administrative Provisions 

 

 The administrative rules for administering this Ordinance, are as noted in the 

respective codes or as otherwise hereinafter provided. 

 

 Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall prevent, restrict or otherwise regulate 

the use or occupation of land or improvements for railroad, mining, metallurgical, 

grazing or general agricultural purposes, if the tract concerned is five or more contiguous 

commercial acres. 

 

K. For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 

 

 Plot Plan – a plat showing the property size and shape with the location of the 

building or buildings shown.  Required yard setback from front, back and side property 

lines shall be shown, in addition to required distances between buildings, and location of 

approved sanitary system. 

 

 Plans and Specifications – simple buildings (i.e., cabanas, trailer covers, sheds, 

barns, and additions to dwellings from 145 to 1,000 square feet) a drawing with data 

showing floor plan, at least two elevations and sufficient information to allow the plan 

check officer to determine if the building will meet Code standards. 

 

 

SECTION 4.  ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 

 

 

A. Authority and Purpose 

 

1. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 3, § 11-862 

there shall be and is hereby created the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals 

Board.  Whenever the terms “Board”, “Advisory Board”, “Board of Appeals” or 

“Advisory and Appeals Board” appear in the Building Code or the Building Code 

Ordinance, they shall mean the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board. 

 

2. This Advisory and Appeals Board is established to hear and decide appeals of 

orders, decisions, or determinations made by the Building Official relative to the 



- 19 - 

application and interpretation of the Building Code and to determine the 

suitability of alternative materials and construction methods. 

 

3. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall also provide technical advice to the 

Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or 

amendments to the Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 

4. The functions, duties and rules of procedure for conducting the business of the 

Advisory and Appeals Board shall be as specified in this section. 

 

B. Members and Qualifications 

 

1. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by 

and serving at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors.  Initial appointments shall 

be made as follows: 

a. Two members shall be appointed to four year terms. 

b. Two members shall be appointed for three year terms. 

c. Two members shall be appointed for two year terms. 

d. One member shall be appointed to a one year term. 

 

Thereafter, members shall be appointed for a term of four (4) years, staggered so 

that at least one but not more than two terms expire each year. 

 

The Building Official shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of the Board 

and shall act as secretary to the Board. 

 

2. Members of the Advisory and Appeals Board must be residents of Gila County 

but cannot be employees of Gila County government.  This Board shall include 

members from the following categories to the extent that persons meeting the 

qualifications are available and willing to serve: 

1. An architect duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

2. A professional engineer duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

3. A general contractor duly licensed in the state of Arizona 

4. A person representing the public 

5. A person engaged in the electrical, mechanical or plumbing trade. 

 

3. Each member of this Board shall have substantial experience in at least one of the 

fields covered by the Building Code and must be qualified by experience and 

training to decide on matters pertaining to building construction. 

 

4. Members of this Board shall serve without compensation except for 

reimbursement of expenses as approved by the Board of Supervisors.  This Board 

shall not be empowered to incur debts, nor make any purchases nor enter into any 

contracts or agreements binding Gila County. 

 

 

C. Vacancies 

 



- 20 - 

1. A vacancy shall be filled in the same manner in which original appointments are 

made.  An appointment made to fill an unexpired term shall be made for the 

remainder of that unexpired term only. 

 

2. Board members may resign from their appointed position at any time for any 

reason.  However, a thirty (30) day written notice of resignation should be 

provided to the Secretary of the Board. 

 

3. The Board of Supervisors may remove any member who is absent from more than 

three (3) consecutive Board meetings or 50% or more of all Board meetings held 

during any one calendar year or for other due cause as determined by the Board of 

Supervisors.  Written notice of removal shall be delivered to the member being 

removed and a copy shall be furnished to the Secretary of the Board who will 

provide the Chairman of the Board with a copy. 

 

4. Members shall give advance notice of any anticipated absence to the Secretary of 

the Board to allow the Secretary to assure the presence of a quorum. 

 

D. Duties of the Board 

 

1. The Board shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations 

made by the Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the 

Building Code and to determine the suitability of alternative materials and 

construction methods.  The Board shall also provide technical advice to the 

Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or 

amendments to the Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 

2. The Board shall elect from its members a Chairman and Vice-Chairman by 

majority vote of the members at the first meeting of each calendar year to serve 

for a term of one calendar year. 

 

3. Legal Counsel shall be provided by the Gila County Attorney or a Deputy County 

Attorney. 

 

4. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, shall conduct all hearings, and shall 

exercise and perform such other duties as may be required or assigned by the 

Board.  The Chairman shall rule on procedure or on order of presentation at all 

Board meetings or hearings. 

 

5. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall assume the duties of the 

Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 

restrictions as the Chairman. 

 

6. In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, a Chairman pro-

tempore shall be elected by majority vote from among the members present.  In 

the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, the Chairman pro-tempore 

shall assume the duties of the Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers 

and is subject to the same restrictions as the Chairman. 



- 21 - 

 

7. All members present at a hearing or meeting of the Board shall vote unless 

abstaining due to a conflict of interest.  In the event of a tie, the Chairman shall 

call for an additional or amended motion in an attempt to resolve the tie.  If the tie 

cannot be resolved, the vote shall be reflected in the minutes. 

 

8. Any member of the Board who has a conflict of interest in any matter brought 

before the Board shall make known such interest in the record of the proceeding 

and shall refrain from voting upon or otherwise participating in the deliberations 

and decisions regarding such matter. 

 

9. The Secretary of the Board shall keep or cause to be kept minutes of the 

proceedings of the Board and shall provide an agenda to each Board member 

prior to the time set for any Board hearing or meeting. 

 

10. The Secretary of the Board shall be custodian of the records of the Board. 

 

E. Hearings and Meetings 

 

1. The Board shall meet at the call of the Chairman or at the request of the Building 

Official but at least two times in any calendar year. 

 

2. All Board meetings and hearings are subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law 

and shall be conducted per Robert’s Rules of Order.  However, the Board has the 

option of waiving any portion of those rules that they choose. 

 

3. Notice of the date, time and place of any regular or special meeting or hearing of 

the Board, including an agenda of the matters to be addressed, shall be given at 

least seven (7) days prior to the meeting by posting notice to the general public. 

 

4. The Board may approve, approve with conditions and/or stipulations, deny or 

continue any issue brought before them. 

 

5. The Board shall be the judge of the qualifications of a person appearing as an 

expert witness.  The Board shall determine the extent of consideration to be given 

to the testimony or evidence presented by a person appearing as an expert witness. 

 

6. During any hearing or meeting of the Board, The Building Official may be called 

upon to clarify the Code requirement(s) and/or support the position of the 

Building Safety Department on any particular order, decision or determination 

currently held or being enforced. 

 

F. Quorum and Voting 

 

1. Four members constitute a quorum.  If a quorum cannot be obtained, the meeting 

shall be rescheduled. 

 



- 22 - 

2. Any vote of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes.  If the vote is not 

unanimous, each member’s vote will be recorded individually. 

 

3. An approval of a motion shall be accomplished by an affirmative vote of a 

majority of members present.  The motion is then considered to have carried or 

been passed. 

 

4. Any motion that fails to obtain a majority vote of the members present shall be 

considered a denial of the motion.  The motion is considered to have failed or 

been denied. 

 

5. The Board may reconsider a motion which has passed if a member who voted in 

favor of the original motion makes a motion to reconsider within the same 

meeting and the motion to reconsider passes. 

 

G. Appeals 

 

1. Any person(s) may initiate an appeal of an order, decision, or determination made by the 

Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the Building Code.  A 

Notice of Appeal must be filed within thirty (30) days after receipt of such an order, 

decision, or determination.  The Board may refuse to grant a hearing of any case in which 

the appellant requests a waiver of any provision of the Building Code.   

 

2. A Notice of Appeal must be filed with the secretary of the Advisory and Appeals Board 

specifying the reasons and circumstances for the appeal.  Appeals of orders, decisions, or 

determinations made by the Building Official relative to the applications and 

interpretation of the Building Code shall be made in writing and shall be directed to a 

specific order, decision or determination of the Building Official.  The Board shall limit 

their consideration of the appeal to that specific order, decision or determination.   

 

3. The Secretary of the Board shall furnish copies of all records pertaining to the appeal to 

each member of the Board.  Appeals must be based on a claim that the true intent of the 

code or adopted rules has been incorrectly interpreted, that the provisions of the code do 

not apply or that the proposed form or method of construction is equal to or better than 

required by Code.  A self-imposed or financial hardship does not constitute grounds for 

an appeal.  The appellant must bear the cost of any tests or research required to 

substantiate appellant’s claim(s). 

 

4. Upon receipt of a Notice of Appeal, and after posting of public notice as required, the 

The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing of the for an appeal within 

fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal. Public notice of the hearing shall be 

posted seven (7) days prior to the hearing date.  An appeal stays all proceedings against 

the appellant in the matter appealed, unless the Building Official notifies the Board in 

writing that, in the Building Official’s opinion, a stay creates imminent danger to life or 

property.  Under these circumstances, proceedings shall not be stayed except by court 

order or by determination of the Advisory and Appeals Board as a result of a properly 

noticed public meeting specifically called for that purpose.   

 



- 23 - 

5. If the appellant fails to appear at a hearing, the Board may choose to continue the hearing 

to a later date at which the appellant can be present. 

 

6. In any hearing for appeal, the Building Official may be called upon to clarify the Code 

requirement(s) and/or to support the position of the Building Safety Department on the 

particular order, decision or determination being appealed.  

 

7. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall make a decision within fifteen (15) days of the 

date of the meeting called to decide the appeal.  A decision in favor of the appellant shall 

be in the form of a written directive to the Building Official to carry out the decision of 

the Board subject to any conditions and/or stipulations required by the Board.  In any 

case where the Board denies an appeal, the Board reserves the right to refuse to consider 

another appeal on the same subject matter and like circumstances for one year from the 

date of the hearing in question. 

 

8. Appeals will be heard at special meetings called and noticed pursuant to the requirements 

of this section.  Hearing dates will be scheduled to allow for noticing and posting 

requirements to be met. 

 

9. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose any evidence, witness(es) 

or testimony, other than their own, that they intend to present at the hearing.  Failure to 

disclose may be cause for the Board to delay the presentation of such evidence, 

witness(es) or testimony. 

 

10. The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney be present 

at appeal hearings.  In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose their 

intent to be represented by an attorney.  The Board may choose to continue a hearing 

where an appellant is represented by an attorney and, for whatever reason, the County 

Attorney or Deputy County Attorney is unable to appear on behalf of the Board. 

 

11. Findings and decisions of the Advisory and Appeals Board shall be binding upon the 

Building Official and the appealing party subject to appeal to the Board of Supervisors.  

Only the appellant or the Building Official may appeal a decision of the Board to the 

Board of Supervisors. All findings, decisions and rulings made by the Board shall be 

reported in writing to the Board of Supervisors.   

 

H. Limitation of Authority 

 

The Advisory and Appeals Board shall have no authority relative to interpretation of the 

administrative provisions of the Building Code nor shall the Board be empowered to 

waive requirements of the Building Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 24 - 

 

SECTION 5.   CONTINUITY 

 

The International Code Council and other organizations identified in Section 1 of this 

Ordinance publish the books that constitute the Building Code and periodically issue 

supplements and amendments.  In order that this Ordinance maintains its continuity, it shall be 

the responsibility of the Building Official to insure that all such supplements and amendments to 

the codes are properly implemented. 

 

 

SECTION 6.  ADMINISTRATION 

 

All department officials and public employees of the County of Gila, vested with the duty  

or authority to issue permits or licenses, shall comply with the provisions of this Ordinance and  

shall issue no permit or license for any use, building or purpose in conflict with the provisions of 

this Ordinance.  Any permit or license so issued in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 

shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. 

 

 Filing Plans. Every application for a building permit shall be accompanied by 

two copies of plans and specifications.  Plans shall include plot plans.  One copy of such 

accepted plans shall be returned to the owner when plans are approved by the Building 

Official. 

 

Plans and Specifications.     With each application for a building permit and also 

when otherwise required by the Building Official for enforcement of any provision of this 

Ordinance, two (2) sets of specifications and plans shall be submitted.  The Building 

Official may, where the complexity of the plans clearly warrant (that is, any building 

requiring engineering computations i.e., public buildings, etc.), require plans and 

specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect licensed by the 

State to practice as such.  The Building Official may further require that plans for new 

construction indicate existing and finished grade elevations based on County data with 

existing and finished drainage flow patterns in areas subject to flooding. 

 

 One copy of submitted plans shall be returned to the applicant when approved.  Approval 

shall normally be received within ten (10) working days after submission.  If there is any delay 

beyond fifteen (15) days, a letter of explanation shall be sent to the applicant. 

 

 

SECTION 7.  RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 The Building Official may adopt rules and regulations subject to the approval of the 

Board of Supervisors, in the interest of public safety, health and general welfare, to implement 

the provisions of this Ordinance, to secure the intent thereof; but no such rules shall have the 

effect of waiving technical provisions specifically provided in the Building Codes or of violating 

accepted engineering practice involving public safety. 

 

 

 



- 25 - 

 

SECTION 7.1 WATER CONSERVATION PLUMBING STANDARDS  

 

 A.  Definitions 

 

 In this section, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 

 1.  “Commercial, industrial and public construction” means buildings used for 

commercial, industrial or public purposes, including restaurants, bars, nightclubs, public 

buildings, comfort stations, schools, gymnasia, factories, offices, athletic clubs, hotels 

and motels. 

 

2.  Person” means an individual, public or private corporation, company, partnership, 

firm, association, society, estate or trust, any other private organization or enterprise, the 

United States, any state, territory or country or a governmental entity, political 

subdivision or municipal corporation organized under or subject to the constitution and 

laws of this state. 

 

 3.  “Plumbing fixture” means a lavatory faucet, lavatory faucet replacement aerator, 

kitchen faucet, kitchen faucet replacement aerator, shower head, urinal, water closet, 

evaporative cooler or decorative fountain.  Plumbing fixture does not include parts 

necessary for routine maintenance. 

 

4.  “PSI” means pounds per square inch of water pressure. 

 

5.  “Residential construction” or “residential dwelling” means buildings used for 

temporary or permanent human habitation, including single family residences and 

accessory guest houses, multi-family dwellings, townhouses, condominiums, apartments, 

the sleeping quarters of hotels and motels, dormitories and group housing units. 

 

6.  “Urinal” means a fixture that consists of a water flushed bowl, and any associated 

flush valve, and that is used for the disposal of human urine. 

 

7.  “Water closet” means a fixture that consists of a water flushed bowl, and any 

associated flush valve, and that is used for the disposal of all wastes from the human 

body. 

 

8.  “Water free urinal” means a plumbing fixture that does not require a water supply or 

flushing device to receive and convey only liquid waste through a trap seal and into the 

gravity drainage system for such function and that meets the requirements of the 

American society of mechanical engineers (ASME) standard A112.19.2M-95 or the 

American national standards institute (ANSI) standard Z124.9-94 or any equivalent 

standard. 

 

B.  Plumbing fixtures; residential construction 

In addition to the requirements of the adopted plumbing code, no person may install or 

replace any plumbing fixture for use in the unincorporated area of Gila County in any 



- 26 - 

new or existing residential construction, unless the fixtures meet the following water 

saving performance standards: 

 

1.  Lavatory faucets and replacement aerators shall be designed to deliver no more than 

an average of three (3) gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI or shall be 

equipped with permanent flow control devices that allow delivery of no more than an 

average of three gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI. 

 

2.  Kitchen faucets and replacement aerators shall be designed to deliver no more than an 

average of three (3) gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI or shall be  

equipped with permanent flow control devices that allow delivery of no more than an  

average of three gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI. 

 

3.  Shower heads shall be designed to deliver no more than an average of three (3) gallons 

of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI.   

 

4.  Water closets shall be designed to use no more than an average of one and six-tenths 

gallons of water per flush. 

 

5.  Urinals shall be designed to use no more than an average of one gallon of water per 

flush.  No urinals may be installed that use a timing device to flush periodically 

regardless of demand. 

 

6.  Evaporative cooling systems and decorative fountains shall be equipped with water 

recycling or reuse systems. 

 

C.  Plumbing fixtures; commercial, industrial and public construction  

 

In addition to the requirements of the adopted plumbing code, no person may install or 

replace any plumbing fixtures for use in the unincorporated area of Gila County in any 

new or existing commercial, industrial or public construction, unless the fixtures meet the 

following water saving performance standards: 

 

1.  Lavatory faucets shall be equipped with a mechanism that causes the faucet to close 

automatically after delivering no more than one-fourth gallon of water or shall be 

designed to deliver no more than an average of one-half gallon of water per minute at a 

pressure of eighty PSI.   

 

2.  Shower heads shall be designed to deliver no more than an average of three (3) gallons 

of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI.  Emergency safety showers are exempted 

from this requirement. 

 

3.  Water closets shall be designed to use no more than an average of one and six-tenths 

gallons of water per flush. 

 

4.  Urinals shall be designed to use no more than an average of one (1) gallon of water 

 per flush.  No urinals may be installed that use a timing device to flush periodically 

 regardless of demand. 



- 27 - 

 

5.  Evaporative cooling systems decorative fountains and car washes shall be equipped 

with water recycling or reuse systems. 

 

 

SECTION 8.  BUILDING PERMITS 
 

 Application for building permits shall be made in the office of Building Safety, Gila 

County Community Development.  Submissions shall include a site plan and plans and details of 

the proposed construction or use, containing sufficient information for the enforcement of this 

Ordinance.  Application for a building permit must be filed for all proposed construction within 

the zoned area of the county as required by current adopted building codes as well as for 

construction within unzoned areas as required by statute. 

 

 A building permit shall be issued only upon approval of submitted plans and 

specifications, and presentation of an approved sanitary system permit where required. 

 

 Permit applications shall normally be accepted at the Gila County Community 

Development Office at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona, 85501, or 714 S. Beeline, Payson, 

Arizona, 85541, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 

 No residential permit shall be issued to any person or persons who propose to contract the 

performance of any construction or improvement regulated by this Code unless the person 

requesting the permit is the holder of a valid, unexpired and unrevoked Contractor’s license 

issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of Arizona.   However, a residential permit 

required by this Code may be issued to any person to do any construction or improvement 

regulated by this Code, provided the person is himself the bona fide owner of the premises upon 

which the construction or improvement is to be done, is doing the work himself, contracts for 

doing the work with a Contractor or Contractors duly licensed by the State of Arizona, or 

employing someone by the hour to do such work,  provided that such construction or 

improvement is not intended for sale or rent. 

 

 No commercial permit shall be issued to any person or persons who propose to contract 

the performance of any construction or improvement intended for commercial or industrial 

purposes unless the person requesting the permit is the holder of a valid, unexpired and 

unrevoked commercial contractor’s license issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of 

Arizona. 

 

 Whenever any work for which a permit is required by this code has been commenced 

without first obtaining said permit, a special investigation shall be made before a permit may be 

issued for such work. 

 

 An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not a 

permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the 

permit fee required.  The minimum investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum permit 

fee established in the adopted fee schedule.  The payment of such investigation fee shall not 

exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of either these provisions or other 

pertinent codes or from any penalty prescribed by law. 



- 28 - 

 

SECTION 9. SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND OTHER FEE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 A. Permit fees consisting of:  building permits, plan check, plumbing, 

mechanical, electrical and miscellaneous permits, as described in the respective codes and 

ordinances, shall be as adopted by resolution of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 B. Building valuation data used in determining the permit fees shall be as adopted by 

resolution of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 

SECTION 10.   SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance or any 

part of the adopted codes is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision 

of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

 

 

SECTION 11.   ENFORCEMENT 

 

 It shall be the duty of the Chief Building Official to administer this Ordinance.  All 

County law enforcement officials and agencies shall, whenever requested by the Building 

Official, enforce this Ordinance to the extent that they are lawfully authorized to do so, subject to 

the will of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 

SECTION 12.   VIOLATION AND PENALTIES 

 

A. Criminal Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, 

agent, tenant, employee or otherwise, who violates any provision of this ordinance or 

violates or fails to comply with any order or regulation made hereunder is guilty of a 

Class 2 Misdemeanor pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-808.  Each and every day during which the 

illegal activity, use or violation continues is a separate offense. 

 

B. Civil Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, 

tenant, employee or otherwise, who violates any provisions of this ordinance shall be 

subject to a civil penalty.  Each day of a continuing violation is a separate violation for 

the purpose of imposing a separate penalty.  The civil penalty for violations of this 

ordinance shall be established by separate resolution of the Board of Supervisors, but 

shall not exceed the amount of the maximum fine for a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  An alleged 

violator shall be entitled to an administrative hearing on his liability, and review by the 

Board of Supervisors as provided in A.R.S. §11-808.  Pursuant to that statutory section,  

 the Board of Supervisors shall adopt written Rules of Procedures for such hearing and 

reviews. 

 

C. Remedies:  An alleged violator who is served with Notice of Violation subject to civil 

penalty shall not be subject to a criminal prosecution for the same factual situation.  



- 29 - 

However, all other remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.  

The conviction and punishment of any person hereunder shall not relieve such person 

from the responsibility to correct prohibited conditions or improvements nor prevent the 

enforcement, correction or removal thereof.  In addition to the other remedies provided in 

this article, the Board of Supervisors, the County Attorney, the Inspector, or any adjacent 

or neighboring property owner who shall be damaged by the violation of any provision of 

this ordinance, may institute, in addition to the other remedies provided by law, 

injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other appropriate action, proceeding or 

proceedings to prevent or abate or remove such unlawful erection, construction, 

reconstruction, alteration, maintenance or use. 

 

 

SECTION 13.   PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to require changes in the plans, construction 

or designated use of a building for which a lawful permit has been theretofore issued or 

otherwise lawfully authorized.  Beginning with the effective date of this Ordinance, building 

permits as set forth in this Ordinance shall be required. 

 

 

SECTION 14.   RECORDS 

 

 The Building Official shall keep careful and comprehensive records of applications for 

permits, of permits issued, of inspections made, of reports rendered and of notices or orders 

issued.  Further, the Building Official shall retain on file copies of all papers in connection with 

building work for such time as may be required by law. 

  

 

SECTION 15.   REDRESS 

 

 Nothing in this Code precludes any individual, company or corporation from seeking 

redress through the courts concerning any portion of this Code or any ruling made by the 

Department of Building Safety pertaining to the Code. 

 

 

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT 

 

 A. This Ordinance may be amended from time to time in accordance with the 

provisions of A.R.S. § 11-864. 

 

 B. Amendments may be initiated by the Chief Building Official, the Advisory and 

Appeals Board, or the Board of Supervisors. 

 

 C. The Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission shall hold at least one public 

hearing on the proposed amendments prior to making a recommendation to the Board of 

Supervisors.  Notice of said hearing shall be given by publication of the text of the changes 

pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 11-829C and A.R.S. § 11-861. 

 



- 30 - 

 D. The Board of Supervisors may act upon the proposed amendments pursuant to the 

procedures found in A.R.S. § 11-829C and D. 

 

 

SECTION 17. ENACTMENT 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective on the 28th of July, 2011. 

 

 

 

Passed and Adopted this 28
th

 day of June, 2011. 

 

       Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

       By:_______________________________   

            Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

 

Approved as to form:     ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:___________________________________ By:_______________________________ 

      Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney               Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 31 - 

AMENDMENTS 

 
Amended April 5

th
, 2005 (added Section 7.1 Water Conservation) 

 

Amended February 20, 2007 (updated adopted codes and added civil penalties). 

 Effective March 22, 2007 

 

Amended October 23, 2007 (Amended Section 4, Advisory Board, deleted code sections that 

reference Appeal Boards, corrected Seismic Design Category in Table R301.2(1), deleted 

amendments to IRC that regulate location of LPG Appliances, added Investigation Fee to Section 

8, deleted State Plumbing Code in section 1.E, amended Section 1.I.3, Park Model trailers) 

             Effective November 22, 2007 

 

Amended March 17, 2009 (Amended Section 1.C.16, Building Code, referring to Chapter 11 of 

the IRC, to include that chapter except for Section N 1102.1.7, Crawl Space Walls) 

             Effective April 16, 2009 

 

Amended June 28, 2009 (Section 4. ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD G. Appeals 4. To 

read “The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing for an appeal within fifteen 

(15) DAYS OF RECEIPT OF THE Notice of Appeal.  (add) Public notice of the hearing shall be 

posted seven (7) days prior to the hearing date.  10. (add sentence) The Board may request that 

the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney be present al appeal hearings. 

  

 



- 1 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUILDING CODE ORDINANCE 

OF THE COUNTY OF GILA 

As amended November 30, 1987, 

February 1, 1993, April 5, 2005, February 20, 2007, October 23, 2007, March 17, 2009 and 

June 28, 2011 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 

REGULATING THE ERECTION, CONSTRUCTION, ENLARGEMENT, ALTERATION, 

REPAIRING, MOVING, REMOVING, DEMOLITION, CONVERSION, OCCUPANCY, 

EQUIPMENT, AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES IN THE 

COUNTY OF GILA; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION 

OF FEES THEREFORE; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVISORY BOARD. 

 

Building regulations provide an important service to the community in maintaining property 

values and in prohibiting the construction of unsafe or unhealthy structures. 

 

The purpose of the Building Code is to provide minimum standards safeguarding life or limb, 

health, property and public welfare.  This is accomplished by regulating and controlling the 

design, construction, quality of materials, used and occupancy, location and maintenance of all 

buildings and structures within the County. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 

ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

SECTION 1.     BUILDING CODE 
 

 The following described documents containing the following described codes, as the 

same now exist or may hereafter be amended, or as specifically amended herein, are hereby 

adopted by reference, as if fully set out herein, as the Building Code of the County of Gila, 

Arizona, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 3, § 11-861 through 

11-866. 

 

 At least three copies of the Building Code shall be filed in the Office of the Clerk of the 

Board of Supervisors and kept available for public use and inspection.  Solely for the purpose of 

satisfying this requirement, the Globe and Payson offices of Community Development are 

designated as branch offices of the Office of the Clerk of the Board.  One copy of the Building 

Code will be kept in the Office of the Clerk of the Board, one copy of the Building Code will be 

kept in the Globe office of Community Development and one copy of the Building Code will be 

kept in the Payson office of Community Development. 

 

 



- 2 - 

 

A. The 2003 edition of the International Building Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc., including Appendix C (GROUP U – AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS) as well as 

the following amendments: 

 

1. Delete the language in Section 308.2 Group I-1 and replace with the following: 

 

This occupancy shall include buildings, structures or parts thereof housing more 

than 10 persons, on a 24-hour basis, who because of age, mental disability or 

other reasons, live in a residential environment that provides supervisory care 

services.  The occupants are capable of responding to an emergency situation with 

out physical assistance from staff.  This group shall include, but not be limited to, 

the following: 

Residential board and care facilities 

Assisted living centers 

Halfway houses 

Group homes 

Congregate care facilities 

Social rehabilitation facilities 

Alcohol and drug abuse centers 

Convalescent facilities 

A facility such as the above with 10 or fewer persons shall be classified as a 

Group R-4 Condition 1 or shall comply with the International Residential Code in 

accordance with Section 101.2 where the building is in compliance with Section 

419 of this code. 

 

 2. Delete the language in Section 308.3 Group I-2 and replace with the following: 

 

This occupancy shall include buildings and structures used for medical, surgical, 

psychiatric, nursing, custodial, personal, or directed care on a 24-hour basis of 

more than five persons who are not capable of self-preservation by responding to 

an emergency situation without physical assistance from staff.  This group shall 

include, but not be limited to, the following: 

   Hospitals 

Nursing homes (both intermediate-care facilities & skilled nursing 

facilities) 

Mental hospitals 

Detoxification facilities 

A facility such as the above with five or fewer persons shall be classified as 

Group R-3 or shall comply with the International Residential Code in accordance 

with Section 101.2. 

 

3. Delete the language in Subsection R-4 of Section 310.1 Residential Group R, 

and replace with the following: 

 

R-4 Residential occupancies shall include buildings arranged for occupancy as 

residential care/assisted living homes including not more than 10 occupants, 

excluding staff. 



- 3 - 

 

310.1.1 Condition 1.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide supervisory care services, in which occupants are capable of self 

preservation by responding to an emergency situation without physical assistance 

from staff.  Condition 1 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified 

as a Group I-1. 

 

310.1.2 Condition 2.  This occupancy condition shall include facilities licensed to 

provide personal or directed care services, in which occupants are incapable of 

self preservation by responding to an emergency without physical assistance from 

staff.  Condition 2 facilities housing more than 10 persons shall be classified as 

Group I-2. 

 

R-4 occupancies shall meet the requirements for construction as defined in Group 

R-3 except as otherwise provided for in this code, and Section 419 or shall 

comply with the International Residential Code in accordance with section 101.2 

where the building is in compliance with Section 419 of this code. 

 

4. Replace the definition of PERSONAL CARE SERVICE under Section 310.2 

Definitions with the following definition: 

 

PERSONAL CARE SERVICE.  Assistance with activities of daily living that 

can be performed by persons without professional skills or professional 

training and includes the coordination or provision of intermittent nursing 

services and the administration of medications and treatments. 

 

5. Replace the definition of RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING 

FACILITIES under Section 310.2 Definitions with the following definition: 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES.  A building or part 

thereof housing a maximum of 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, 

who because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised 

residential environment which provides supervisory, personal, or directed 

services.  This classification shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

residential board and care facilities, assisted living home, halfway houses, group 

homes, congregate care facilities, social rehabilitation facilities, alcohol and drug 

abuse centers and convalescent facilities. 

 

 6. Add the following definitions to Section 310.2 Definitions: 

 

DIRECTED CARE SERVICE.  Care of residents, including personal care 

services, who are incapable of recognizing danger, summoning assistance, 

expressing need, or making basic care decisions. 

 

SUPERVISORY CARE SERVICE.  General supervision, including daily 

awareness of resident functioning and continuing needs. 

 



- 4 - 

7. Amend Section 406.1.4 Separation by adding the following to paragraph 1: 

Doors shall be self-closing and self-latching.  In buildings protected with an 

automatic fire sprinkler system, including the private garage, the room finish 

material shall be permitted to be a minimum ½ inch gypsum board applied to the 

garage side. 

 

8. Add Section 419 as follows: 

 

 RESIDENTIAL CARE/ASSISTED LIVING HOMES 

 419.1 Applicability. The provisions of this section shall apply to a building or 

part thereof housing not more than 10 persons, excluding staff, on a 24-hour basis, 

who because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised 

residential environment which provides licensed care services.  Except as 

specifically required by this division, R-4 occupancies shall meet all applicable 

provisions of Group R-3. 

 

 419.2 General. Buildings or portions of buildings classified as R-4 occupancies 

shall meet all the applicable provisions of Group R-3, may be constructed of any 

materials allowed by this code, shall not exceed two stories in height nor be 

located above the second story in any building, and shall not exceed 2000 square 

feet above the first story except as provided in Section 506. 

 

 419.3 Special Provisions. R-4 occupancies having more than 2000 square feet of 

floor area above the first floor shall be of not less than one-hour fire resistive 

construction throughout. 

 

419.3.1. Mixed Uses.  R-4 occupancies shall be separated from other uses as 

provided in Table 302.3.2. 

 

 419.4 Access and Means of Egress Facilities. 

 

 419.4.1 Accessibility. R-4 occupancies shall be provided with at least one 

accessible route per the Arizonans with Disabilities Act.  Sleeping rooms and 

associated toilets shall be accessible. 

  Exception: Existing buildings shall comply with the requirements of the 

International Existing Building Code.  Bathing and toilet facilities need not be 

made accessible, but shall be provided with grab bars in accordance with 

ICC/ANSI A117.1. 

 

  419.4.2 Exits  

    

 419.4.2.1 Number of Exits. Every story, basement, or portion thereof shall 

have not less than two exits. 

 Exception: Basements and stories above the first floor containing no sleeping 

rooms may have one means of egress as provided in Chapter 10. 

 



- 5 - 

 419.4.2.2 Distance to Exits. The maximum travel distance shall comply with 

Section 1004, except that the maximum travel distance from the center point 

of any sleeping room to an exit shall not exceed 75 feet. 

 

 419.4.2.3 Emergency Exit Illumination. In the event of a power failure, exit 

illumination shall be automatically provided from an emergency system 

powered by storage batteries or an onsite generator set installed in accordance 

with the National Electric Code. 

 

 419.4.2.4 Emergency Escape and Rescue. R-4 occupancies shall comply 

with the requirements of Section 1025, except that Exception 1 to Section 

1025.1 does not apply to R-4 occupancies. 

 

 419.4.2.5 Delayed egress locks.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, delayed 

egress locks shall be permitted in accordance with Sections 1008.1.3.4 and 

1008.1.8.6. items 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6. 

 

 419.5 Smoke Detectors and Sprinkler Systems 
 

 419.5.1 Smoke Alarms.  All habitable rooms and hallways in R-4 

occupancies shall be provided with smoke alarms installed in accordance with 

Section 907.2.10. 

 

 419.5.2 Sprinkler Systems. R-4 occupancies shall be provided with a 

sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.2.7.  Sprinkler 

systems installed under this Section shall be installed throughout, including 

attached garages, and in Condition 2 facilities shall include attics and 

concealed spaces of or containing combustible materials.  Such systems may 

not contain unsupervised valves between the domestic water riser control 

valve and the sprinklers.  In R-4 Condition 2 occupancies, such systems shall 

contain water-flow switches electrically supervised by an approved 

supervising station, and shall sound an audible signal at a constantly attended 

location. 

 

9. Amend Section 507.2 Sprinklered, one story by adding the following to 

Exception 2: 

   

 Such buildings may contain other occupancies, without H fire areas, provided that 

such occupancies do not occupy more than 10 percent of the area of any floor of a 

building, nor more than the tabular values permitted in the occupancy by Table 

503 for such occupancy. 

 

 Exception: Group H fire areas as permitted by Section 507.6. 

 

 10. Amend Section 507.3 Two story by adding the following: 

   

Such buildings may contain other occupancies, without H fire areas, provided that 

such occupancies do not occupy more than 10 percent of the area of any floor of a 



- 6 - 

building, nor more than the tabular values permitted in the occupancy by Table 

503 for such occupancy. 

 

Exception: Group H fire areas as permitted by Section 507.6. 

 

11. Amend Section 1008.1.2. Door swing, Exception 3 by adding “and R-4” after  

 R-3. 

 12. Amend Section 1008.1.9 Panic and fire exit hardware by adding the following 

exception to paragraph 2 after the words “. . . unless it is panic hardware or fire 

exit hardware.” 

 

Exception: A main exit, of a Group A use, in compliance with Section 1008.1.8.3 

Exception 2. 

 

 13. Amend Section 1009.3 Stair treads and risers Exception 5 by replacing “7.75  

  inches” with “8 inches” as maximum riser height. 

 

 14. Amend Section 1024.3 Assembly other exits by replacing the word “exits” with 

the words “means of egress” in the phrase “shall be provided with additional 

exits”. 

 

 15. Delete Chapter 11 ACCESSIBILITY and replace with the Arizonans with 

Disabilities Act (Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 41, Chapter 9, Article 8) and the 

Arizonans with Disabilities Act Implementing Rules (Arizona Administrative 

Code, Title 10, Chapter 3, Article 4) which incorporates the Americans with 

Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities. 

 

 16. Delete Chapter 13 ENERGY EFFICIENCY. 

 

 17. Delete the language in Section 1503.4 Roof Drainage and replace with the 

following: 

   

  Design and installation of roof drainage systems shall comply with Section 1503.4 

and the Arizona State Plumbing Code. 

 

 18. Amend Section 1503.4 Roof Drainage by adding sections 1503.4.2. through 

1503.4.4.2 as follows: 

 

  1503.4.2 Where required.  All roofs, paved areas, yards courts and courtyards 

shall drain into a separate storm sewer system, or a combined sewer system, or to 

an approved place of disposal. 

 

  1053.4.3 Roof design. Roofs shall be designed for the maximum possible depth 

of water that will pond thereon as determined by the relative levels of roof deck 

and overflow weirs, scuppers, edges or serviceable drains in combination with the 

deflected structural elements.  In determining the maximum possible depth of 

water, all primary roof drainage means shall be assumed to be blocked. 

 



- 7 - 

  1503.4.4 Overflow drainage required.   Overflow (emergency) roof drains or 

scuppers shall be provided where the roof perimeter construction extends above 

the roof in such a manner that water will be entrapped if the primary drains allow 

buildup for any reason. 

 

   1503.4.4.1 Separate systems required. Overflow roof drain systems shall 

have the end point of discharge separate from the primary system.  Discharge 

shall be above grade, in a location, which would normally be observed by the 

building occupants or maintenance personnel. 

 

   1503.4.4.2 Overflow drains and scuppers. Where roof drains are required, 

overflow drains having the same size as the roof drains shall be installed with 

the inlet flow line located 2 inches (51 mm) above the low point of the roof, or 

overflow scuppers having three times the size of the roof drains may be 

installed in the adjacent parapet walls.  Scuppers shall be sized to prevent the 

depth of ponding water from exceeding that for which the roof was designed 

as determined by the plumbing code.  Scuppers shall not have an opening 

dimension of less than 4 inches (102 mm).  The flow through the primary 

system shall not be considered when sizing the secondary roof drain system. 

 

 19. Amend Section 1604.8.1 General by replacing the words “the uplift and sliding” 

with “those”. 

 

 20. Amend Table 1607.1 number 27, Residential occupancy, Uninhabitable attics 

without storage by adding the following footnote: 

 

   i. For trussed systems, this live load need not be considered as acting 

simultaneously with other live loads imposed upon the ceiling framing or its 

supporting structure. 

 

 21. Amend Table 1607.1, number 27, Residential Occupancy, One- and two-family 

dwellings, Uninhabitable attics with storage to read 40 psf under the Uniform 

column and Habitable attics and sleeping areas to read 40 psf under the Uniform 

column. 

 

 22. Amend Section 1704.5 Masonry Construction by adding the follow exceptions: 

 

   3. Masonry fences six feet or less in height above grade 

 4. Masonry retaining walls four feet or less in height from bottom of 

footing to top of wall unless supporting a surcharge or impounding 

flammable liquids. 

 

 23. Amend Section 1804.2 Presumptive Load Bearing Values by deleting the 

words “at or” found in the first paragraph in the phrase “. . .for supporting soils at 

or near the surface. . .” 

 



- 8 - 

 24. Amend Table 2902.1 Minimum Number of Required Plumbing Facilities by 

deleting the requirement for a service sink under number 2, classification business 

and number 6, classification mercantile. 

 

 25. Delete Section 3109 SWIMMING POOL ENCLOSURES AND SAFETY 

DEVICES. (Semi-Public and Public swimming pool enclosures and safety 

devices are regulated by the Arizona Administrative Code Title 18 Chapter 5 

Article2.) 

 

 26. Delete Chapter 34 EXISTING STRUCTURES. 

  

 27. Delete Section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

B. The 2003 edition of the International Mechanical Code published by the International 

Code Council, Inc., including Appendix A (COMBUSTION AIR OPENING AND CHIMNEY 

CONNECTOR PASS THROUGHS) as well as the following amendments: 

 

 1. Amend Section 305.5 Protection against physical damage by    

  deleting all words that appear after the word “bored”. 

 

 2. Delete Section 306.5 Equipment and appliances on roofs or    

  elevated structures. 

 

3. Delete Section 306.6 Sloped roofs. 

 

4. Delete  Section 109 MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 

C.  The 2003 edition of the International Residential Code published by the International 

Code Council, Inc., including Appendix G (SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS) and 

Appendix H (PATIO COVERS) as well as the following amendments:  

 

1. Amend Section R105.2 Work Exempt From Permit, Building, paragraph 1 by 

adding the words “used as garages, carports, storage sheds, tool sheds, 

playhouses, garden structures and other similar non-habitable uses,” after the 

phrase “one-story detached accessory structures,”. 

 

2. Amend the definition of EXTERIOR WALL in Section R202 DEFINITIONS 

by deleting the first sentence and replacing it with the following: 

  

 An above-grade wall that defines the exterior boundaries of a building. 

 

3. Replace Table R301.2(1) with the following table: 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 9 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE R301.2(1) 

CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA FOR  

GILA COUNTY 

ROOF/GROUND 

SNOW LOADS * 

          (psf) 

  below 2000 ft  

  2000 to 4500 ft  

  4500 to 6000 ft  

  Above 6000 ft  

= Roof 0 / Ground 0 

= Roof 20/ Ground 25 

= Roof 40/ Ground 50 

= per historical data available 

WIND 

SPEED 

90 m.p.h. – 3 second gust wind velocity 

75 m.p.h. – fastest mile wind speed 

SEISMIC 

DESIGN 

CATEGORY** 

B includes the following sites 

and vicinities: Pine, Strawberry, 

Payson, Control Rd., Christopher 

Creek, Rye, Gisela, Jakes Corner, 

Punkin Center, Tonto Basin, 

Young, Armer Ranch, Carrizo 

and Canyon Day 

C includes the following sites and 

vicinities: Roosevelt Lake Dam, 

Roosevelt, Globe, Miami, Claypool, 

Hayden, Winkelman, Rose Creek 

Campground, Aztec Peak, Armer 

Mountain, Cutter, San Carlos, Sawmill 

and Seneca Lake 

WINTER  

DESIGN 

TEMPERATURE 

  4500 ft and above  

  below 4500 ft 

= 15° 

= 24° 

ICE SHIELD 

UNDERLAYMENT 

REQUIRED 

 

NO 

FLOOD 

HAZARDS 

As determined by the Floodplain Department/Engineer 

AIR 

FREEZING 

INDEX 

Less than 1500 cumulative degree days below freezing County-

wide 

MEAN 

ANNUAL 

TEMPERATURE 

 

61.8° average County-wide  

 

SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM 

WEATHERING Moderate at 4600 feet and above 

Negligible below 4600 feet 

FROST 
(footing depths) 

Below 4900 feet Bottom of footing must be a min. of 12” 

below finish grade and a min. of 12” into 

undisturbed soil. 

4900 feet and 

above 

Bottom of footing must be a min. of 18” 

below finish grade and a min. of 12” into 

undisturbed soil. 

TERMITES Moderate to Heavy 

DECAY None to Slight 



- 10 - 

*  Roofs must be designed to support loads as specified in R301.6 or the snow load 

shown here, whichever is greater.  (Ground Snow Load x .8 ≈  Roof Snow Load) 

** See Seismic Design Category maps maintained by Community Development for 

locations not listed. 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Amend Table R301.5 Minimum Uniformly Distributed Live Loads to read 40 

psf under the LIVE LOAD column for Attics with storage and Sleeping rooms. 

 

6. Amend Table R301.5 Minimum Uniformly Distributed Live Loads, Attics 

with storage, by adding the following footnote: 

 

 g. For trussed systems, this load need not be considered as acting 

simultaneously with other live loads imposed upon the ceiling framing or its 

supporting structure. 

 

7. Amend Section R309.1 Opening protection by adding the following: 

 

 Doors providing opening protection shall be self-closing and self-latching. 

 

8. Amend Section R309.2 Separation required by replacing “1/2 inch gypsum 

board” where it appears with “5/8 inch Type X gypsum board or equivalent”. 

 

9. Amend Section R310.1 Emergency escape and rescue required by adding the 

following: 

 

 Such openings shall open directly into a public street, public alley, yard or court. 

 

10. Amend Section R311.2.2 Under Stair protection by replacing “1/2 inch gypsum 

board” with “5/8 inch Type X gypsum board or equivalent”. 

 

11. Amend Section R311.5.3.1 Riser height by replacing “7 ¾ inches” with “8 

inches” as the maximum riser height. 

 

12. Amend Section R322.1 Scope by replacing the words “Chapter 11 of the 

International Building Code for Group R-3” with “the Arizonans with Disabilities 

Act”. 

 

13. Amend Section R320.1 Subterranean termite control by deleting the words “In 

areas favorable to termite damage” and replacing them with the words “In areas 

subject to termite infestation”. 

 

14. Amend Section R401.5 Compressible or shifting soil by adding the words “In 

lieu of a complete geotechnical evaluation,” to the beginning of the paragraph. 

 



- 11 - 

15. Amend Table R1003.1 SUMMARY OF REQUIREMENTS FOR MASONRY 

FIREPLACES AND CHIMNEYS by adding footnote “b” to Horizontal 

reinforcing. 

 

16. Delete Section N1102.1.7 Crawl Space Walls.  

 

17.  Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

18. Amend Section M1403.2 Foundations and supports by deleting the words “unit 

of a heat pump” and replacing them with the words “mechanical systems”. 

 

19. Amend Section M1411.3.1 Auxiliary and secondary drain systems by adding 

the following after the first sentence in this section: 

 

 Such piping shall maintain a minimum horizontal slope in the direction of 

discharge of not less than one-eighth unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (1% 

slope). 

 

20. Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

21. Amend Section G2415.9 (404.9) Minimum burial depth by deleting the words 

“except as provided for in Section G2415.9.1” and replacing them with the words 

“for metal piping and 18 inches (457mm) for plastic piping with caution tape 6” 

above plastic pipes.” 

 

22. Amend Section P2503.6 Water-supply system testing by adding the words 

“This pressure shall be held for at least 15 minutes.” After the words “…by an air 

test of not less than 50 psi (344kPa).” 

 

23. Amend Section P2803.6.1 Requirements of discharge pipe by deleting the 

words “The discharge pipe shall be installed so as to drain by gravity flow and 

shall terminate atmospherically not more than 6 inches (152mm) above the floor.” 

and replacing them with the words “The discharge pipe shall be installed so as to 

drain by gravity flow and shall terminate atmospherically not less than 6 inches 

(152mm) nor more than 24 inches (610 mm) above the finish floor or finish 

grade.” 

 

24. Amend Section P3103.1 Roof extension by inserting the number “6” in the blank 

for “inches above the roof” and inserting the number “6” in the blank for “inches 

above the anticipated snow accumulation”.  Also, add the words “whichever is 

greater” after the words “inches above the anticipated snow accumulation”. 

 

25. Amend Table 3503.1 by replacing it with the following: 

 

 

 

 

 



- 12 - 

TABLE E3503.1 
                SERVICE CONDUCTOR AND GROUNDING ELECTRODE CONDUCTOR SIZING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For SI: 1 inch = 25.4 mm. 
a. Where protected by a metal raceway, grounding electrode conductors shall be electrically bonded to the metal raceway at both 

ends. 
b. No. 8 grounding electrode conductors shall be protected with metal conduit or nonmetallic conduit. 

c. Where not protected, No. 6 grounding electrode conductors shall closely follow a structural surface for physical protection.  

The supports shall be spaced not more than 24 inches on center and shall be within 12 inches of any enclosure or termination. 
d. Where the sole grounding electrode system is a ground rod or pipe as covered in Section E3508.2, the grounding electrode 

conductor shall not be required to be larger than No. 6 copper or No. 4 aluminum.  Where the sole grounding electrode system is 

the footing steel as covered in Section E3508.1.2, the grounding electrode conductor shall not be required to be larger than No. 4 
copper. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONDUCTOR TYPES AND SIZES-THHW, 

THW, THWN, USE, XHHW 

 
(Parallel sets of 1/0 and larger conductors are permitted in 

either a single raceway or in separate raceways) 

Service or Feeder 

Rating (Amperes) 

MINIMUM 

GROUNDING 

ELECTRODE 

CONDUCTOR SIZE 
a
 

Copper 

(AWG) 

Aluminum      and    copper-clad 

                                  aluminum 

(AWG) 

≤ 30°C 

(86°F) 

>30°C 

(86°F) 

Copper 

(AWG) 

Aluminum 

(AWG) 

4 2 100  8
b
 6

c
 

3 1 110  8
b
 6

c
 

2 1/0 125 100 8
b
 6

c
 

1 2/0 150 125 6
c 

4 

1/0 3/0 175 150 6
c 

4 

2/0 4/0 

or two sets of 1/0 

200 175 4
d 

2
d
 

3/0 250 kcmil 

or two sets of 2/0 

225 200 4
d
 2

d
 

4/0 

or two sets of 

1/0 

300 kcmil 

or two sets of 3/0 

250 225 2
d 

1/0
d
 

250 kcmil 

or two sets of 

2/0 

350 kcmil 

or two sets of 4/0 

300 250 2
d
 1/0

d
 

350 kcmil 

or two sets of 

3/0 

500 

or two sets of 250 kcmil 

350 300 2
d
 1/0

d
 

400 kcmil 

or two sets of 

4/0 

600 

Or two sets of 300 kcmil 

400 350 1/0
d 

3/0
d 

500 kcmil 750 kcmil  400   



- 13 - 

26. Delete the language in Section 3802.7 and amend it to read as follows: 

  

 Sink, wash basin, tub, or shower receptacles.  All 125-volt, single-phase, 15-

and 20-ampere convenience receptacles that are located within 6 feet of the 

outside edge of any sink, wash basin, tub, or shower shall have ground-fault 

circuit-interrupter protection for personnel. 

 

27. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

changing the language in subsection 2 to read “Threaded rigid metal conduit and 

fittings.” 

 

28. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

changing the language in subsection 3 to read “Threaded intermediate metal 

conduit fittings.” 

 

29. Amend Section E3808.8 Types of equipment grounding conductors by 

deleting subsections 4 and 5. 

 

30. Delete Section R112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

D. The 2003 edition of the International Existing Building Code, published by the 

International Code Council Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

  

1. Delete Section 112 BOARD OF APPEALS. 

 

E. Deleted November 22, 2007 

 

F. The 2002 edition of the National Electrical Code, published by National Fire Protection 

Association including the following amendments: 

 

 1. Amend Section 210.8(A) Dwelling Units by deleting the language in subsection  

  7 and replacing it with the following: 

 

  “Convenience receptacles located within 6 feet of any sink, wash basin, tub or  

  shower.” 

  

 2. Amend Section 210.8(B) Other Than Dwelling Units by deleting the words  

  “…installed in the locations specified in (1), (2) and (3)…” and replacing them  

  with the words “…installed in the locations specified in (1) through (5)…” 

 

 3. Amend Section 210.8(B) Other Than Dwelling Units by adding the following  

  subsections: 

 

  (4) Convenience receptacles located within 6 feet of any sink, washbasin, tub or  

  shower. 

 

  (5) Outdoors. 

 



- 14 - 

 4. Amend Article 230 Services by adding the following section:  

 

 230.63 Location.  All service equipment rated 1000 amperes or more located 

inside a building shall be enclosed within a room or space separated from the rest 

of the building by not less than one-hour fire-resistive occupancy separation or 

fire barrier installed in compliance with the building code. 

 

 5. Amend Section 250.118 Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by  

  deleting subsections 4 through 8. 

 

6. Amend Section 310.15(B)(6) 120/240-Volt, 3-Wire, Single-Phase Dwelling 

Services and Feeders by adding the words “and 120/204-Volt” after 120/240-

Volt in both locations that it appears. 

 

7. Amend Table 310.15(B)(6) by replacing it with the following: 

 
Table 310.15(B)(6) 

                             Conductor Types and Sizes for 120/240-Volt, and 120/208-Volt, 3-wire, Single-

Phase Dwelling Services and Feeders. 
 

  Conductor (AWG or kcmil) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 FPN: for single-phase panels feed from a 3-phase system, the grounded conductor   

 cannot be reduced in size for 120/208-volt system, see 220.22 

 

8. Amend Section 334.10 Uses Permitted by adding the following language to 

subsection (1): 

 

 “multifamily dwelling, and other residential accessory structures.” 

 

9. Amend Section 334.10 Uses Permitted by deleting subsection (2). 

 

10. Amend Section 334.12 Uses Not Permitted by deleting subsection 2 through 9. 

(Subsections 1 and 10 remain.) 

Copper Aluminum or Copper-

Clad Aluminum 

Service or Feeder Rating (Amperes) 

         ≤30°C (86°F)                         >30°C (86°F) 

4 2 100  

3 1 110  

2 1/0 125 100 

1 2/0 150 125 

1/0 3/0 175 150 

2/0 4/0 200 175 

3/0 250 225 200 

4/0 300  250 225 

250 350 300 250 

350 500 350 300 

400 600 400 350 

500 750  400 



- 15 - 

11. Amend Section 358.10(B) Uses Permitted by adding the words “that is not” 

immediately before the words “in direct contact with the earth”. 

 

12. Amend Section 358.12 Uses Not Permitted by adding the following subsection: 

 

 (7) On or below grade. 

 

13. Amend Section 501.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

14. Amend Section 502.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

15. Amend Section 503.16(B) Types of Equipment Grounding Conductors by 

deleting the Exception. 

 

16. Delete Section 80.15 Electrical Board. 
 

G. The 2000 edition of the Uniform Swimming Pool, Spa and Hot Tub Code published by 

the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials as well as the following 

amendment: 

 

1. Delete Section 117.0 Board of Appeals. 
 

H. The 2006 edition of the International Plumbing Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

 

1. Delete Section 109 Means of Appeal. 
 

I. The latest publication of Manufactured Home and Factory Built Building Installation 

Standards provided by the State of Arizona Office of Manufactured Housing, including the 

following requirements: 

 

 1.   A permit shall not be issued for the installation or relocation of a manufactured  

  home within the unincorporated areas of Gila County unless the home can be  

  shown to comply with the manufactured home construction and safety standards  

  adopted by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

 2.   It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to provide proof of compliance with  

  requirement 1 above.  A label certifying that the manufactured home has been  

  inspected and constructed in accordance with the requirements of the U.S   

  Department of Housing and Urban Development in effect of the time of   

  manufacture constitutes proof of compliance provided that date of manufacture is  

  not prior to June 15, 1976. 

 

3.   Park Model trailers will be permitted and inspected in the same manner as 

manufactured homes. However, Park Model trailers are classified as Recreational 

Vehicles and, as such, are subject to the zoning, building and other regulations 

that apply to RV’s. 



- 16 - 

 

 4. Manufactured Homes may be converted for use as storage buildings subject to the 

  following: 

 

  a. Must comply with Zoning requirements for a manufactured home 

  b. Must comply with Zoning requirements for an accessory building 

  c. Cannot be larger than or attached to the main house 

  d. Cannot be used as a dwelling, guest house or for any habitable use 

  e. Kitchen and bathroom appliances and fixtures must be removed 

  f. Cannot be connected to water, sewer or gas 

  g. May be connected to electricity subject to National Electric Code   

   requirements 

  h. Will be permitted as an accessory building 

  i. Will be inspected per Office of Manufactured Housing guidelines 

  j. Any alterations will be permitted separately and inspected per the   

   applicable Building Code 

  k. Assessor’s notice of affixture required 

  

J. The 2006 edition of the International Fuel Gas Code published by the International Code 

Council, Inc. as well as the following amendment: 

  

 1. Delete Section 108 (IFGC) MEANS OF APPEAL. 

 

K. Deleted 2/20/07 
 

L. Deleted 2/20/07 
 

M. Deleted 3/29/96 

 
 

 Copies of the Building Code are on file and available for public review in the Office of 

the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona, and at the Gila 

County Community Development Offices at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501 or 714 

South Beeline , Payson, Arizona 85541 

 

 

SECTION 2.       TITLE 

 

 This Ordinance shall be known as the Gila County Building Code. 

 

 

SECTION 3.    RULES AND DEFINITIONS 

 

A.  The term “Building Code” as used hereinafter shall mean the codes referred to in Section 

1 of this Ordinance. 

 

B. Terms used in this Ordinance shall be defined as provided in the Codes adopted in 

Section 1 of this Ordinance, except as herein otherwise provided. 

 



- 17 - 

C. Whenever the terms “Governing Body” or “City” or “Town” or “Municipality” are used 

in the Building Code, they shall mean the unincorporated area of the County of Gila, 

excluding Indian Reservations.  

 

D. Whenever the terms “Mayor”, “Appointing Authority”, “Commission”, “City Council”, 

or “Manager” are used in the Building Code, they shall mean the Board of Supervisors. 

 

E. Whenever the terms “Administrative Authority”, “Building Officials”, “Chief”, or 

“Administrator” are used in the Building Code, they shall mean the Chief Building 

Official of Gila County, or his representative. 

 

F. Whenever the terms “Other Code” or “Other Codes” are used in the Building Code, they 

shall mean other code or codes adopted by either the County of Gila or the State of 

Arizona.  If there is a conflict between such other code or codes and this Ordinance, the 

more restrictive shall prevail. 

 

G. Reference to chapters, articles, sections and subsections or paragraphs and to tables 

thereof are to the Building Code. 

 

H. Certificates: 

 

 1. Zoning Certificate. May be part of the Building Permit.  (The issuance of 

approval of zoning use permits, variance permits, temporary use permits and 

special use permits shall not be construed to be functions of the Building 

Inspection Department but shall continue to be processed as otherwise provided 

by law.) 

 

 2. Certificate of Occupancy. For construction completion showing compliance. 

   

Certificate of Inspection may be a separate individual trade inspection approval. 

 

Certificate of Occupancy may be only for a building use inspection approval. 

 

Temporary Certificate may be only for a building use inspection approval. 

 

Final Inspection Certificate (i.e., Certificate of Occupancy) may be a certificate of 

approval that may include the entire structure, partial work, additions or 

alterations.         

 

3. Certificate of Compliance (for existing structures).  May be associated with re-

moving, renovation, use change, addition and existing structure or housing code.   

 

 A letter of Certification (duplicate certification) may be for other than the original 

  issue. 

  

 4. Certificate of Fitness (for hazards and safety).  A document issued by the Building 

 Officials authorizing by permit to maintain, store or handle materials or to 

 conduct processes, which produce conditions hazardous to life and property or to 



- 18 - 

 install equipment used in connection with such activities in accordance with the 

 provision of this Ordinance.  It shall not be transferable and any change in use or 

 occupancy of premises shall require a new permit. 

   

May be used when new construction “fitness” is a change of use and occupancy. 

 

I. Building Safety Department 

 

  The Building Safety Department shall administer this Ordinance.  The official in 

charge thereof shall be known as the Chief Building Official of Gila County. 

 

J. Administrative Provisions 

 

 The administrative rules for administering this Ordinance, are as noted in the 

respective codes or as otherwise hereinafter provided. 

 

 Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall prevent, restrict or otherwise regulate 

the use or occupation of land or improvements for railroad, mining, metallurgical, 

grazing or general agricultural purposes, if the tract concerned is five or more contiguous 

commercial acres. 

 

K. For the purpose of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 

 

 Plot Plan – a plat showing the property size and shape with the location of the 

building or buildings shown.  Required yard setback from front, back and side property 

lines shall be shown, in addition to required distances between buildings, and location of 

approved sanitary system. 

 

 Plans and Specifications – simple buildings (i.e., cabanas, trailer covers, sheds, 

barns, and additions to dwellings from 145 to 1,000 square feet) a drawing with data 

showing floor plan, at least two elevations and sufficient information to allow the plan 

check officer to determine if the building will meet Code standards. 

 

 

SECTION 4.  ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 

 

 

A. Authority and Purpose 

 

1. Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 11, Chapter 6, Article 3, § 11-862 

there shall be and is hereby created the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals 

Board.  Whenever the terms “Board”, “Advisory Board”, “Board of Appeals” or 

“Advisory and Appeals Board” appear in the Building Code or the Building Code 

Ordinance, they shall mean the Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board. 

 

2. This Advisory and Appeals Board is established to hear and decide appeals of 

orders, decisions, or determinations made by the Building Official relative to the 



- 19 - 

application and interpretation of the Building Code and to determine the 

suitability of alternative materials and construction methods. 

 

3. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall also provide technical advice to the 

Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or 

amendments to the Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 

4. The functions, duties and rules of procedure for conducting the business of the 

Advisory and Appeals Board shall be as specified in this section. 

 

B. Members and Qualifications 

 

1. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by 

and serving at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors.  Initial appointments shall 

be made as follows: 

a. Two members shall be appointed to four year terms. 

b. Two members shall be appointed for three year terms. 

c. Two members shall be appointed for two year terms. 

d. One member shall be appointed to a one year term. 

 

Thereafter, members shall be appointed for a term of four (4) years, staggered so 

that at least one but not more than two terms expire each year. 

 

The Building Official shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of the Board 

and shall act as secretary to the Board. 

 

2. Members of the Advisory and Appeals Board must be residents of Gila County 

but cannot be employees of Gila County government.  This Board shall include 

members from the following categories to the extent that persons meeting the 

qualifications are available and willing to serve: 

1. An architect duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

2. A professional engineer duly licensed in the state of Arizona. 

3. A general contractor duly licensed in the state of Arizona 

4. A person representing the public 

5. A person engaged in the electrical, mechanical or plumbing trade. 

 

3. Each member of this Board shall have substantial experience in at least one of the 

fields covered by the Building Code and must be qualified by experience and 

training to decide on matters pertaining to building construction. 

 

4. Members of this Board shall serve without compensation except for 

reimbursement of expenses as approved by the Board of Supervisors.  This Board 

shall not be empowered to incur debts, nor make any purchases nor enter into any 

contracts or agreements binding Gila County. 

 

 

C. Vacancies 

 



- 20 - 

1. A vacancy shall be filled in the same manner in which original appointments are 

made.  An appointment made to fill an unexpired term shall be made for the 

remainder of that unexpired term only. 

 

2. Board members may resign from their appointed position at any time for any 

reason.  However, a thirty (30) day written notice of resignation should be 

provided to the Secretary of the Board. 

 

3. The Board of Supervisors may remove any member who is absent from more than 

three (3) consecutive Board meetings or 50% or more of all Board meetings held 

during any one calendar year or for other due cause as determined by the Board of 

Supervisors.  Written notice of removal shall be delivered to the member being 

removed and a copy shall be furnished to the Secretary of the Board who will 

provide the Chairman of the Board with a copy. 

 

4. Members shall give advance notice of any anticipated absence to the Secretary of 

the Board to allow the Secretary to assure the presence of a quorum. 

 

D. Duties of the Board 

 

1. The Board shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations 

made by the Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the 

Building Code and to determine the suitability of alternative materials and 

construction methods.  The Board shall also provide technical advice to the 

Building Official to assist in the formation and adoption of revisions or 

amendments to the Building Code and the Building Code Ordinance. 

 

2. The Board shall elect from its members a Chairman and Vice-Chairman by 

majority vote of the members at the first meeting of each calendar year to serve 

for a term of one calendar year. 

 

3. Legal Counsel shall be provided by the Gila County Attorney or a Deputy County 

Attorney. 

 

4. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, shall conduct all hearings, and shall 

exercise and perform such other duties as may be required or assigned by the 

Board.  The Chairman shall rule on procedure or on order of presentation at all 

Board meetings or hearings. 

 

5. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall assume the duties of the 

Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers and is subject to the same 

restrictions as the Chairman. 

 

6. In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, a Chairman pro-

tempore shall be elected by majority vote from among the members present.  In 

the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, the Chairman pro-tempore 

shall assume the duties of the Chairman and, when so acting, has the same powers 

and is subject to the same restrictions as the Chairman. 



- 21 - 

 

7. All members present at a hearing or meeting of the Board shall vote unless 

abstaining due to a conflict of interest.  In the event of a tie, the Chairman shall 

call for an additional or amended motion in an attempt to resolve the tie.  If the tie 

cannot be resolved, the vote shall be reflected in the minutes. 

 

8. Any member of the Board who has a conflict of interest in any matter brought 

before the Board shall make known such interest in the record of the proceeding 

and shall refrain from voting upon or otherwise participating in the deliberations 

and decisions regarding such matter. 

 

9. The Secretary of the Board shall keep or cause to be kept minutes of the 

proceedings of the Board and shall provide an agenda to each Board member 

prior to the time set for any Board hearing or meeting. 

 

10. The Secretary of the Board shall be custodian of the records of the Board. 

 

E. Hearings and Meetings 

 

1. The Board shall meet at the call of the Chairman or at the request of the Building 

Official but at least two times in any calendar year. 

 

2. All Board meetings and hearings are subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law 

and shall be conducted per Robert’s Rules of Order.  However, the Board has the 

option of waiving any portion of those rules that they choose. 

 

3. Notice of the date, time and place of any regular or special meeting or hearing of 

the Board, including an agenda of the matters to be addressed, shall be given at 

least seven (7) days prior to the meeting by posting notice to the general public. 

 

4. The Board may approve, approve with conditions and/or stipulations, deny or 

continue any issue brought before them. 

 

5. The Board shall be the judge of the qualifications of a person appearing as an 

expert witness.  The Board shall determine the extent of consideration to be given 

to the testimony or evidence presented by a person appearing as an expert witness. 

 

6. During any hearing or meeting of the Board, The Building Official may be called 

upon to clarify the Code requirement(s) and/or support the position of the 

Building Safety Department on any particular order, decision or determination 

currently held or being enforced. 

 

F. Quorum and Voting 

 

1. Four members constitute a quorum.  If a quorum cannot be obtained, the meeting 

shall be rescheduled. 

 



- 22 - 

2. Any vote of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes.  If the vote is not 

unanimous, each member’s vote will be recorded individually. 

 

3. An approval of a motion shall be accomplished by an affirmative vote of a 

majority of members present.  The motion is then considered to have carried or 

been passed. 

 

4. Any motion that fails to obtain a majority vote of the members present shall be 

considered a denial of the motion.  The motion is considered to have failed or 

been denied. 

 

5. The Board may reconsider a motion which has passed if a member who voted in 

favor of the original motion makes a motion to reconsider within the same 

meeting and the motion to reconsider passes. 

 

G. Appeals 

 

1. Any person(s) may initiate an appeal of an order, decision, or determination made 

by the Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the 

Building Code.  A Notice of Appeal must be filed within thirty (30) days after 

receipt of such an order, decision, or determination.  The Board may refuse to 

grant a hearing of any case in which the appellant requests a waiver of any 

provision of the Building Code.   

 

2. A Notice of Appeal must be filed with the secretary of the Advisory and Appeals 

Board specifying the reasons and circumstances for the appeal.  Appeals of 

orders, decisions, or determinations made by the Building Official relative to the 

applications and interpretation of the Building Code shall be made in writing and 

shall be directed to a specific order, decision or determination of the Building 

Official.  The Board shall limit their consideration of the appeal to that specific 

order, decision or determination.   

 

3. The Secretary of the Board shall furnish copies of all records pertaining to the 

appeal to each member of the Board.  Appeals must be based on a claim that the 

true intent of the code or adopted rules has been incorrectly interpreted, that the 

provisions of the code do not apply or that the proposed form or method of 

construction is equal to or better than required by Code.  A self-imposed or 

financial hardship does not constitute grounds for an appeal.  The appellant must 

bear the cost of any tests or research required to substantiate appellant’s claim(s). 

 

4. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing for an appeal within 

fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal.  Public notice of the hearing 

shall be posted (7) days prior to the hearing date.  An appeal stays all proceedings 

against the appellant in the matter appealed, unless the Building Official notifies 

the Board in writing that, in the Building Official’s opinion, a stay creates 

imminent danger to life or property.  Under these circumstances, proceedings 

shall not be stayed except by court order or by determination of the Advisory and 



- 23 - 

Appeals Board as a result of a properly noticed public meeting specifically called 

for that purpose.   

 

5. If the appellant fails to appear at a hearing, the Board may choose to continue the 

hearing to a later date at which the appellant can be present. 

 

6. In any hearing for appeal, the Building Official may be called upon to clarify the 

Code requirement(s) and/or to support the position of the Building Safety 

Department on the particular order, decision or determination being appealed.  

 

7. The Advisory and Appeals Board shall make a decision within fifteen (15) days 

of the date of the meeting called to decide the appeal.  A decision in favor of the 

appellant shall be in the form of a written directive to the Building Official to 

carry out the decision of the Board subject to any conditions and/or stipulations 

required by the Board.  In any case where the Board denies an appeal, the Board 

reserves the right to refuse to consider another appeal on the same subject matter 

and like circumstances for one year from the date of the hearing in question. 

 

8. Appeals will be heard at special meetings called and noticed pursuant to the 

requirements of this section.  Hearing dates will be scheduled to allow for 

noticing and posting requirements to be met. 

 

9. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall disclose any evidence, 

witness(es) or testimony, other than their own, that they intend to present at the 

hearing.  Failure to disclose may be cause for the Board to delay the presentation 

of such evidence, witness(es) or testimony. 

 

10. The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney be 

present at appeal hearings. In their written request for a hearing, appellants shall 

disclose their intent to be represented by an attorney.  The Board may choose to 

continue a hearing where an appellant is represented by an attorney and, for 

whatever reason, the County Attorney or Deputy County Attorney is unable to 

appear on behalf of the Board. 

 

11. Findings and decisions of the Advisory and Appeals Board shall be binding upon 

the Building Official and the appealing party subject to appeal to the Board of 

Supervisors.  Only the appellant or the Building Official may appeal a decision of 

the Board to the Board of Supervisors. All findings, decisions and rulings made 

by the Board shall be reported in writing to the Board of Supervisors.   

 

H. Limitation of Authority 

 

The Advisory and Appeals Board shall have no authority relative to interpretation of the 

administrative provisions of the Building Code nor shall the Board be empowered to 

waive requirements of the Building Code. 

 

 

 



- 24 - 

SECTION 5.   CONTINUITY 

 

The International Code Council and other organizations identified in Section 1 of this 

Ordinance publish the books that constitute the Building Code and periodically issue 

supplements and amendments.  In order that this Ordinance maintains its continuity, it shall be 

the responsibility of the Building Official to insure that all such supplements and amendments to 

the codes are properly implemented. 

 

 

SECTION 6.  ADMINISTRATION 

 

All department officials and public employees of the County of Gila, vested with the duty  

or authority to issue permits or licenses, shall comply with the provisions of this Ordinance and  

shall issue no permit or license for any use, building or purpose in conflict with the provisions of 

this Ordinance.  Any permit or license so issued in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 

shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. 

 

 Filing Plans. Every application for a building permit shall be accompanied by 

two copies of plans and specifications.  Plans shall include plot plans.  One copy of such 

accepted plans shall be returned to the owner when plans are approved by the Building 

Official. 

 

Plans and Specifications.     With each application for a building permit and also 

when otherwise required by the Building Official for enforcement of any provision of this 

Ordinance, two (2) sets of specifications and plans shall be submitted.  The Building 

Official may, where the complexity of the plans clearly warrant (that is, any building 

requiring engineering computations i.e., public buildings, etc.), require plans and 

specifications to be prepared and designed by an engineer or architect licensed by the 

State to practice as such.  The Building Official may further require that plans for new 

construction indicate existing and finished grade elevations based on County data with 

existing and finished drainage flow patterns in areas subject to flooding. 

 

 One copy of submitted plans shall be returned to the applicant when approved.  Approval 

shall normally be received within ten (10) working days after submission.  If there is any delay 

beyond fifteen (15) days, a letter of explanation shall be sent to the applicant. 

 

 

SECTION 7.  RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 The Building Official may adopt rules and regulations subject to the approval of the 

Board of Supervisors, in the interest of public safety, health and general welfare, to implement 

the provisions of this Ordinance, to secure the intent thereof; but no such rules shall have the 

effect of waiving technical provisions specifically provided in the Building Codes or of violating 

accepted engineering practice involving public safety. 

SECTION 7.1 WATER CONSERVATION PLUMBING STANDARDS  

 

  

 



- 25 - 

A.  Definitions 

 

 In this section, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 

 1.  “Commercial, industrial and public construction” means buildings used for 

commercial, industrial or public purposes, including restaurants, bars, nightclubs, public 

buildings, comfort stations, schools, gymnasia, factories, offices, athletic clubs, hotels 

and motels. 

 

2.  Person” means an individual, public or private corporation, company, partnership, 

firm, association, society, estate or trust, any other private organization or enterprise, the 

United States, any state, territory or country or a governmental entity, political 

subdivision or municipal corporation organized under or subject to the constitution and 

laws of this state. 

 

 3.  “Plumbing fixture” means a lavatory faucet, lavatory faucet replacement aerator, 

kitchen faucet, kitchen faucet replacement aerator, shower head, urinal, water closet, 

evaporative cooler or decorative fountain.  Plumbing fixture does not include parts 

necessary for routine maintenance. 

 

4.  “PSI” means pounds per square inch of water pressure. 

 

5.  “Residential construction” or “residential dwelling” means buildings used for 

temporary or permanent human habitation, including single family residences and 

accessory guest houses, multi-family dwellings, townhouses, condominiums, apartments, 

the sleeping quarters of hotels and motels, dormitories and group housing units. 

 

6.  “Urinal” means a fixture that consists of a water flushed bowl, and any associated 

flush valve, and that is used for the disposal of human urine. 

 

7.  “Water closet” means a fixture that consists of a water flushed bowl, and any 

associated flush valve, and that is used for the disposal of all wastes from the human 

body. 

 

8.  “Water free urinal” means a plumbing fixture that does not require a water supply or 

flushing device to receive and convey only liquid waste through a trap seal and into the 

gravity drainage system for such function and that meets the requirements of the 

American society of mechanical engineers (ASME) standard A112.19.2M-95 or the 

American national standards institute (ANSI) standard Z124.9-94 or any equivalent 

standard. 

 

B.  Plumbing fixtures; residential construction 

In addition to the requirements of the adopted plumbing code, no person may install or 

replace any plumbing fixture for use in the unincorporated area of Gila County in any 

new or existing residential construction, unless the fixtures meet the following water 

saving performance standards: 

 



- 26 - 

1.  Lavatory faucets and replacement aerators shall be designed to deliver no more than 

an average of three (3) gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI or shall be 

equipped with permanent flow control devices that allow delivery of no more than an 

average of three gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI. 

 

2.  Kitchen faucets and replacement aerators shall be designed to deliver no more than an 

average of three (3) gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI or shall be  

equipped with permanent flow control devices that allow delivery of no more than an  

average of three gallons of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI. 

 

3.  Shower heads shall be designed to deliver no more than an average of three (3) gallons 

of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI.   

 

4.  Water closets shall be designed to use no more than an average of one and six-tenths 

gallons of water per flush. 

 

5.  Urinals shall be designed to use no more than an average of one gallon of water per 

flush.  No urinals may be installed that use a timing device to flush periodically 

regardless of demand. 

 

6.  Evaporative cooling systems and decorative fountains shall be equipped with water 

recycling or reuse systems. 

 

C.  Plumbing fixtures; commercial, industrial and public construction  

 

In addition to the requirements of the adopted plumbing code, no person may install or 

replace any plumbing fixtures for use in the unincorporated area of Gila County in any 

new or existing commercial, industrial or public construction, unless the fixtures meet the 

following water saving performance standards: 

 

1.  Lavatory faucets shall be equipped with a mechanism that causes the faucet to close 

automatically after delivering no more than one-fourth gallon of water or shall be 

designed to deliver no more than an average of one-half gallon of water per minute at a 

pressure of eighty PSI.   

 

2.  Shower heads shall be designed to deliver no more than an average of three (3) gallons 

of water per minute at a pressure of eighty PSI.  Emergency safety showers are exempted 

from this requirement. 

 

3.  Water closets shall be designed to use no more than an average of one and six-tenths 

gallons of water per flush. 

 

4.  Urinals shall be designed to use no more than an average of one (1) gallon of water 

 per flush.  No urinals may be installed that use a timing device to flush periodically 

 regardless of demand. 

 

5.  Evaporative cooling systems decorative fountains and car washes shall be equipped 

with water recycling or reuse systems. 



- 27 - 

 

 

SECTION 8.  BUILDING PERMITS 
 

 Application for building permits shall be made in the office of Building Safety, Gila 

County Community Development.  Submissions shall include a site plan and plans and details of 

the proposed construction or use, containing sufficient information for the enforcement of this 

Ordinance.  Application for a building permit must be filed for all proposed construction within 

the zoned area of the county as required by current adopted building codes as well as for 

construction within unzoned areas as required by statute. 

 

 A building permit shall be issued only upon approval of submitted plans and 

specifications, and presentation of an approved sanitary system permit where required. 

 

 Permit applications shall normally be accepted at the Gila County Community 

Development Office at 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona, 85501, or 714 S. Beeline, Payson, 

Arizona, 85541, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 

 No residential permit shall be issued to any person or persons who propose to contract the 

performance of any construction or improvement regulated by this Code unless the person 

requesting the permit is the holder of a valid, unexpired and unrevoked Contractor’s license 

issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of Arizona.   However, a residential permit 

required by this Code may be issued to any person to do any construction or improvement 

regulated by this Code, provided the person is himself the bona fide owner of the premises upon 

which the construction or improvement is to be done, is doing the work himself, contracts for 

doing the work with a Contractor or Contractors duly licensed by the State of Arizona, or 

employing someone by the hour to do such work,  provided that such construction or 

improvement is not intended for sale or rent. 

 

 No commercial permit shall be issued to any person or persons who propose to contract 

the performance of any construction or improvement intended for commercial or industrial 

purposes unless the person requesting the permit is the holder of a valid, unexpired and 

unrevoked commercial contractor’s license issued by the Registrar of Contractors of the State of 

Arizona. 

 

 Whenever any work for which a permit is required by this code has been commenced 

without first obtaining said permit, a special investigation shall be made before a permit may be 

issued for such work. 

 

 An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be collected whether or not a 

permit is then or subsequently issued.  The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the 

permit fee required.  The minimum investigation fee shall be the same as the minimum permit 

fee established in the adopted fee schedule.  The payment of such investigation fee shall not 

exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of either these provisions or other 

pertinent codes or from any penalty prescribed by law. 

 

 

 



- 28 - 

SECTION 9. SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND OTHER FEE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 A. Permit fees consisting of:  building permits, plan check, plumbing, 

mechanical, electrical and miscellaneous permits, as described in the respective codes and 

ordinances, shall be as adopted by resolution of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 B. Building valuation data used in determining the permit fees shall be as adopted by 

resolution of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 

SECTION 10.   SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance or any 

part of the adopted codes is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision 

of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

 

 

SECTION 11.   ENFORCEMENT 

 

 It shall be the duty of the Chief Building Official to administer this Ordinance.  All 

County law enforcement officials and agencies shall, whenever requested by the Building 

Official, enforce this Ordinance to the extent that they are lawfully authorized to do so, subject to 

the will of the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 

SECTION 12.   VIOLATION AND PENALTIES 

 

A. Criminal Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, 

agent, tenant, employee or otherwise, who violates any provision of this ordinance or 

violates or fails to comply with any order or regulation made hereunder is guilty of a 

Class 2 Misdemeanor pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-808.  Each and every day during which the 

illegal activity, use or violation continues is a separate offense. 

 

B. Civil Penalties:  Any person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, owner, agent, 

tenant, employee or otherwise, who violates any provisions of this ordinance shall be 

subject to a civil penalty.  Each day of a continuing violation is a separate violation for 

the purpose of imposing a separate penalty.  The civil penalty for violations of this 

ordinance shall be established by separate resolution of the Board of Supervisors, but 

shall not exceed the amount of the maximum fine for a Class 2 Misdemeanor.  An alleged 

violator shall be entitled to an administrative hearing on his liability, and review by the 

Board of Supervisors as provided in A.R.S. §11-808.  Pursuant to that statutory section,  

 the Board of Supervisors shall adopt written Rules of Procedures for such hearing and 

reviews. 

 

C. Remedies:  An alleged violator who is served with Notice of Violation subject to civil 

penalty shall not be subject to a criminal prosecution for the same factual situation.  

However, all other remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.  



- 29 - 

The conviction and punishment of any person hereunder shall not relieve such person 

from the responsibility to correct prohibited conditions or improvements nor prevent the 

enforcement, correction or removal thereof.  In addition to the other remedies provided in 

this article, the Board of Supervisors, the County Attorney, the Inspector, or any adjacent 

or neighboring property owner who shall be damaged by the violation of any provision of 

this ordinance, may institute, in addition to the other remedies provided by law, 

injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other appropriate action, proceeding or 

proceedings to prevent or abate or remove such unlawful erection, construction, 

reconstruction, alteration, maintenance or use. 

 

 

SECTION 13.   PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to require changes in the plans, construction 

or designated use of a building for which a lawful permit has been theretofore issued or 

otherwise lawfully authorized.  Beginning with the effective date of this Ordinance, building 

permits as set forth in this Ordinance shall be required. 

 

 

SECTION 14.   RECORDS 

 

 The Building Official shall keep careful and comprehensive records of applications for 

permits, of permits issued, of inspections made, of reports rendered and of notices or orders 

issued.  Further, the Building Official shall retain on file copies of all papers in connection with 

building work for such time as may be required by law. 

  

 

SECTION 15.   REDRESS 

 

 Nothing in this Code precludes any individual, company or corporation from seeking 

redress through the courts concerning any portion of this Code or any ruling made by the 

Department of Building Safety pertaining to the Code. 

 

 

SECTION 16.   AMENDMENT 

 

 A. This Ordinance may be amended from time to time in accordance with the 

provisions of A.R.S. § 11-864. 

 

 B. Amendments may be initiated by the Chief Building Official, the Advisory and 

Appeals Board, or the Board of Supervisors. 

 

 C. The Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission shall hold at least one public 

hearing on the proposed amendments prior to making a recommendation to the Board of 

Supervisors.  Notice of said hearing shall be given by publication of the text of the changes 

pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 11-829C and A.R.S. § 11-861. 

 



- 30 - 

 D. The Board of Supervisors may act upon the proposed amendments pursuant to the 

procedures found in A.R.S. § 11-829C and D. 

 

 

SECTION 17.   ENACTMENT 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective on the first day of October, 1986. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 31 - 

AMENDMENTS 

 
Amended April 5

th
, 2005 (added Section 7.1 Water Conservation) 

 

Amended February 20, 2007 (updated adopted codes and added civil penalties). 

 Effective March 22, 2007 

 

Amended October 23, 2007 (Amended Section 4, Advisory Board, deleted code sections that 

reference Appeal Boards, corrected Seismic Design Category in Table R301.2(1), deleted 

amendments to IRC that regulate location of LPG Appliances, added Investigation Fee to Section 

8, deleted State Plumbing Code in section 1.E, amended Section 1.I.3, Park Model trailers) 

             Effective November 22, 2007 

 

Amended March 17, 2009 (Amended Section 1.C.16, Building Code, referring to Chapter 11 of 

the IRC, to include that chapter except for Section N 1102.1.7, Crawl Space Walls) 

             Effective April 16, 2009 

 

Amended June 28, 2011 (Amended Section 4. ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 

G.Appeals 4. To read “The Advisory and Appeals Board shall hold a public hearing for an 

appeal within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal.  (add) Public notice of the 

hearing shall be posted seven (7) days prior to the hearing date.   

G. Appeals 4. (add sentence) 10. The Board may request that the County Attorney or Deputy 

County Attorney be present at appeal hearings. 

  

 



ARF-645     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: FY 2011 - 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

N/A 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Acceptance of $24,300 Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) Grant

Background Information
The Library District applied for a Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) grant in March 2011, offered by the
Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records Department, for Arizona Centennial activities, programming and
materials at the eight affiliate libraries.  These grants do not require additional matching funds beyond existing
staff. The State Library has notified Library District staff that we have been awarded $24,300 for this grant.

Evaluation
This grant will provide $13,750 for books and materials for each library to expand their Arizona Collections, $6,200
for program presenters, and $4,350 for supplies and promotional materials. This grant amount was reduced by
$5,700 from the grant application from the promotional materials line item.   Each library has identified a month
during 2012 where they will be offering programs and activities and providing displays that highlight Arizona's
Centennial. 

Conclusion
The public libraries in Gila County welcome this opportunity to participate in the Arizona Centennial experience
and provide programming and materials to their residents. This grant allows for each library to offer programming
as well as provide for displays and additional books and materials for these libraries to meet this objective.

Recommendation
Library District staff recommends that the Library District Board of Directors accept this Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) grant from the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records in the amount of $24,300
for materials and programming related to the Arizona Centennial Experience.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors) Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) Grant
in the amount of $24,300 from the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records for a Centennial Experience
Grant for the period of June 16, 2011, through August 3, 2012, and authorize the Chairman to sign related
documents.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Link: Centennial Grant Award Letter
Link: Centennial Grant Certifications
Link: Centennial Grant Assurances



ARIZONA STATE LIBRARY,
ARCHIVES AND PUBLIC RECORDS

A DIVISION OF lHE ARIzONA SECRETARY OF STATE

JANET FISHER, ACTING STATE LIBRARIAN

June 6,2011

Jacque Griffin
Gila County Library District
1400 East Ash
Globe, AZ 85501-1414

Dear Jacque:

I am pleased to inform you that your 2011 Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) grant
application "We Were There 1912-2012" has been approved by the State Library for partial
funding for the total amount of $24,300.00. This award was reduced by cutting the cost of the
lapel pins. Please apply for Centennial Legacy status at http://www.azcentennial.gov.

Please let us know by June 30, 2011, whether this partial award will let you effectively
implement your modified project. If it will, initial the bottom of the revised budget page, and
return it with your certifications. The application that you submitted, along with criteria outlined in
this letter, will be the only contractual documents necessary for the implementation of your
project. Federal funds can only be used as stipulated in the guidelines, application and this
letter, and projects may be monitored periodically by State Library staff.

Enclosed you will find a sheet on "Managing Your LSTA Grant Award." Please refer to this sheet
for information on federal regulations, requesting your grant funds, acknowledging the Arizona
State Library Archives and Public Records and LSTA, and final reports.

Please note that all grant funds must be spent prior to August 3, 2012. Your final report is due
by September 7,2012.

Laura Stone, the LSTA consultant, is responsible for the distribution of funds and any ongoing
administration of the grant award, including the final report. If you have any questions
concerning your application or other supporting documents, please contact Laura at
Istone@lib.az.us or call her at 602-926-3469 or 1-800-255-5841 statewide.

SinCereIY~ ..----
7~

.~~ ~/

/Janet Fisher

STATE CAPITOL
1700 W. Washington, Suite 200 • Phoenix, Arizona 85007 • Home Page: http://www.Iib.az.us

Phone: (602) 926-4035 • FAX: (602) 256-7983 • Email: services@lib.az.us
An Equal Opportunity Employer



State: ARIZONA

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS;

LOBBYING; FEDERAL DEBT STATUS; AND NONDISCRIMINATION

Signature of this form provides for compliance with the statutes and regulations cited below. The
certifications shall be treated as material representations of fact upon which reliance will be placed when
the Institute of Museum and Library Services determines to award Federal funds to State Library
Administrative Agencies.

1. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

The applicant shall comply with 2 CFR Part 3185. The undersigned, on behalf of the applicant, certifies to
the best of his or her knowledge and belief that neither the applicant, nor its principals:

(a) Are presently excluded or disqualified;
(b) Have been convicted within the preceding three years of any of the offenses listed in 2 CFR

section 180.800(a) or had a civil judgment rendered against you for one ofthose offenses within
that time period;

(c) Are presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, state or local) with commission of any ofthe offenses listed in 2 CFR section
180.800(a); or

(d) Have had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated within the
preceding three years for cause or default.

Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall
attach an explanation to this application.

The applicant, as a primary tier participant, is required to comply with 2 CFR Part 180 Subpart C
(Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transactions Doing Business With Other Persons) as a
condition of participation in the award. The applicant is also required to communicate the requirement to
comply with 2 CFR Part 180 Subpart C (Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transactions Doing
Business With Other Persons) to persons at the next lower tier with whom the applicant enters into
covered transactions.

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and implemented at 45 C.F.R. Part 1185, the
undersigned, on behalf ofthe applicant, certifies that the applicant will or will continue to provide a drug-
free workplace by:

(a) publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the action that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: .
(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

State Programs Rev. 10-28-2008



(4) the penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
the workplace;

(c) making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy ofthe statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace not later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) notifying the agency in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has
designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notices shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) taking one ofthe following actions within thirty (30) days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2) with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended (29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.); or

(2) requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or local health law
or other appropriate agency;

(g) making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

The applicant either shall identify the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
project in the application material or shall keep this information on file in its office so that it is available
for Federal inspection. The street address, city, county, state, and zip code should be provided whenever
possible.

3. LOBBYING

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the United States Code, and implemented for persons entering
into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, the applicant certifies to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief that:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of a Federal contract, the making of a Federal grant,
the making of a Federal loan, the entering into of a cooperative agreement, or the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

(b) If any funds other than appropriated Federal funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
(other than a regularly employed officer or employee ofthe applicant) for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall request, complete,
and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its
instructi ons.

State Programs 2 Rev. 10-28-2008



(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

4. FEDERAL DEBT STATUS

The undersigned, on behalf of the applicant, certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that
the applicant is not delinquent in the repayment of any Federal debt.

5. NONDISCRIMINATION

As required by the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Education Amendments
of 1972, and the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as implemented at 45 C.F.R. Part
1180.44, the undersigned, on behalf of the applicant, certifies that the applicant will comply with the
following nondiscrimination statutes and their implementing regulations:

(a) Title VI ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.c. § 2000 et seq.), which provides
that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subject to discrimination
under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance;

(b) Section 504 ofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in Federally-assisted programs;

(c) Title IX ofthe Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.c. §§ 1681-83, 1685-86),
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities receiving
Federal financial assistance;

(d) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.c. § 6101 et seq.),
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in Federally-assisted programs;

The undersigned further provides assurance that it will include the language of these certifications in all
subawards and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with
the above certifications.

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official

Print Name and Title of Authorized Certifying Official

FY-2011
Date Federal Fiscal Year

State Programs 3 Rev. 10-28-2008



ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTIONPROGRAMS
OMS Approval No. 0348-0040

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and BUdget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET.
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such
is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share
of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management
and completion of the project described in this
application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State,
through any authorized representative, access to and
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or
documents related to the award; and will establish a
proper accounting system in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or
presents the appearance of personal or organizational
conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding
agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed
standards for merit systems for programs funded under
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to:
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation

Previous Edition Usable

Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d)
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42
U.S.C. §§61 01-61 07), which prohibits discrimination
on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended,
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug
abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale,
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s)
under which application for Federal assistance is being
made; and, U) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the
application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for
fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or
whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply
to all interests in real property acquired for project
purposes regardless of Federal participation in
purchases.

8. Will comply, as applicable, with provrsrons of the
Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328)
which limit the political activities of employees whose
principal employment activities are funded in whole or
in part with Federal funds.

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form 4246 (Rev. 7·97)

Prescribed by OMS Circular A·102



9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted
construction subagreements.

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of
insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of
environmental quality control measures under the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and
Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of
project consistency with the approved State management
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans
under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as
amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523);
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205).

12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting
components or potential components of the national
wild and scenic rivers system.

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593
(identification and protection of historic properties), and
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.).

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of
human subjects involved in research, development, and
related activities supported by this award of assistance.

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of
1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et
seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of
warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or
other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or
rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133,
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. "

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies
governing this program.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED

Standard Form 4246 (Rev. 7-97) Back



ARF-631     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,

Finance Director
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Finance Department
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Library District FY 2011-2012 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget Process outlines the
budget requirements and timelines for each county's and incorporated city's and town's budgets.  

For the Gila County Library District, the process includes the Library District Board of Directors
adopting a tentative budget and; thereafter, at a future Board meeting, adopting a final budget.  

The Library District's budget is included in the entire budget for Gila County. 

Evaluation
In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors acts as the Board of Directors for the Gila County Library
District.  In order to adopt the Library District's annual tentative budget for fiscal year 2011-2012, the
Board of Supervisors must adjourn as the Board of Supervisors, convene as the Library District Board
of Directors and then take an official action to adopt that tentative budget.  

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative budget will be given by Jacque Griffin, Gila County Assistant
Manager/Librarian, to the Board of Directors.  After a discussion, the Library District Board of
Directors will consider adopting the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for the Gila County
Library District.  (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)



ARF-632     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,

Finance Director
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Finance Department
Presenter's Name: Joe Heatherly 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County FY 2011-2012 Tentative Budget Adoption

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes - Chapter 17-Levy, Article 3-Local Government Budget Process outlines the
budget requirements and timelines for each county's and incorporated city's and town's budgets.

The budget process is for the Board of Supervisors to first adopt a tentative budget and at a future
meeting to adopt the final budget.  There are also statutory newspaper publication requirements to be
applied after the tentative budget has been adopted and before the final budget is adopted.  

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
An overview of the proposed tentative fiscal year 2011-2012 budget for Gila County will be presented by
Joe Heatherly, Finance Director.  After a discussion, the Board of Supervisors will consider adopting
the proposed tentative budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the tentative 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County.  (Don McDaniel)
(Don McDaniel)



ARF-636     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer
Submitted By: Lisa King, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Probation

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4/1/2011 - 3/31/12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Contract No. A11PC00100 between Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County on
behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center.

Background Information
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center has contracted with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs for approximately ten years.  This contract is an excellent source of income for
Gila County.  The detention center provides services for the Bureau of Indian Affairs
by contracting bed space for tribal juveniles at a rate of $131.40 per day per juvenile
from the Truxton Canon Agency, the Colorado River Indian Tribe and the Pascua
Yaqui Tribe.

Evaluation
Contract No. A11PC00100 is a new contract between the Bureau of Indian Affairs and
Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center.  The purpose of
this contract allows Gila County Juvenile Detention Center to provide contracted bed
space to the Bureau of Indian Affairs for juvenile offenders at the negotiated rate of
$131.40 per day per juvenile for the Truxton Canon Agency, Fort Apache Agency,
Colorado River Agency and Salt River Agency, including within the exterior
boundaries of the Indian Reservation(s) and Indian Allotments.   This contract is for
one year beginning April 1, 2011, and ending March 31, 2012, with the option to
renew on a yearly basis ending March 31, 2016.   Funding shall be incorporated by
Modification upon availability of funds. 

Conclusion
Contract No. A11PC00100 allows the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center to
continue providing services to the Bureau of Indian Affairs beginning April 1, 2011,
and ending March 31, 2012, with the option to renew this contract on a yearly
basis ending March 31, 2016.

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends approval of Contract No.



The Gila County Probation Department recommends approval of Contract No.
A11PC00100 between the Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the
Gila County Juvenile Detention Center.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. A11PC00100 between the
Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile
Detention Center, allowing Gila County Juvenile Detention Center to provide
contracted bed space for tribal juvenile offenders for the period of April 1, 2011,
through March 31, 2012, at the negotiated rate of $131.40 per juvenile per day with
the option to renew this contract on a yearly basis ending March 31, 2016.  (Kendall
Rhyne)

Attachments
Link: Contract No. A11PC00100



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract No. A11PC00100 
 

between 
 

Bureau of Indian Affairs 
 

and 
 

Gila County on behalf of the 
 

Gila County Juvenile Detention Center 
 







































































ARF-612     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Date signed by ADOH - June 1, 2013 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Agreement No. 308-11 State of Arizona Department of Housing

Background Information
This is a new contract which will provide funding to the Gila County Housing Program to provide owner occupied
housing rehabilitation to approximately 7 owner-occupied single-family homes located throughout Gila County.

Assistance is reserved for the following incomes: 43% (3 households) at or below 60% of area median income, 57%
(4 households) at or below 50% of area median income.  The program will serve the following priority populations:
28.5 % (2 households) families with children under the age of 18, 28.5% (2 households) elderly (62 years of age and
older), and 43% (3 households) set aside for the physically disabled people.

Arizona Department of Housing agrees to provide $330,000 to Gila County Division of Community Services,
Housing Program to be used to provide above services to eligible residents of Gila County.
 

Evaluation
It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve Contract No. 308-11 as it will allocate funding in the amount
of $330,000 to provide housing rehabilitation to eligible families residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Contract N0. 308-11, the Gila County Community Services Housing Program
will be able to provide housing rehabilitation to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action/Housing Program Manager recommends the Board of Supervisors approve this
contract.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement No. 308-11 between the Arizona Department of
Housing and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Department, whereby the Arizona
Department of Housing will allocate funds in the amount of $330,000 which will be used to help residents who
meet program qualifications with housing rehabilitation for the period effective upon execution by the Arizona
Department of Housing through June 1, 2013.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: Agreement No. 308 Arizona Dept. of Housing



































































































ARF-649     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Provide comment regarding Forest Service proposal to improve ecological conditions on six
grazing allotments.

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors received a scoping letter from the Tonto National Forest, dated June
2, 2011 regarding a proposal to improve ecological conditions and to authorize continued
grazing on six grazing allotments along the Salt River within the Globe and Tonto Basin
Ranger Districts, and providing the opportunity to comment on the proposed actions outlined
in the letter.  Comments are due by July 5, 2011.

Evaluation
The Tonto National Forest is preparing and Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) regarding
this proposal to improve ecological conditions and to authorize continued livestock grazing on
six grazing allotments along the Salt River.  This scoping letter proposes using "a set of tools
that lessens or eliminates disparities between existing conditions and desired conditions in
the project area."  Examples of tools..."include but are not limited to, livestock grazing,
prescribed fire, managed wildland fire, herbicide application, mechanical vegetative removal,
and seeding."  The actual use or application of any of these tools would be consistent with
uses already allowed within the greater "Forest Plan."

The scoping letter also states, " If you do not have comments at this time, but would like to be
informed of this analysis as it progresses, please let us know.  Those who do not respond to
this request will be removed from future mailings regarding this process." 

Conclusion
Official comments to this scoping letter will be considered part of the public record of this
analysis by the Tonto Forest as it moves forward with the Environmental Impact
Statement (EIS), and will be included in the final project record.  Additionally, commenting
will allow for the Board of Supervisors to receive future mailings as this project moves
forward. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors consider issuing official comments to this
scoping letter.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments from the Board
of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding their proposal to improve ecological
conditions and to authorize continued livestock grazing on six allotments along the Salt River
within the Globe and Tonto Basin Ranger Districts, Gila County, Arizona.  (Jacque Griffin)



Attachments
Link: TNF Scoping Letter-File 1950
Link: Draft Comment Letter to TNF











Tommie C. Martin, District I
610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547
(928) 474-2029
tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov

Michael A. Pastor, District II
(928) 402-8753
mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov

Don E. McDaniel, Jr.,
County Manager

(928) 402-4257
dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov

Shirley L. Dawson, District III
(928) 402-8511
sdawson@gilacountyaz.gov

GILA COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1400 E. Ash Street
Globe, Arizona 85501

John F. Nelson,
Deputy County Manager/

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
(928) 402-8754

jnelson@gilacountyaz.gov

June 28, 2011

Tonto National Forest
ATTN: Kathy Nelson, Project Leader
2324 E McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85006

File Code 1950
Re: Comments regarding "Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) on a proposal to improve ecological
conditions and to authorize continued livestock grazing on six grazing allotments along the Salt River
within the Globe and Tonto Basin Ranger Districts, Gila County Arizona."

Dear Ms. Nelson,

The Gila County Board of Supervisors would like to offer comments on the previously referenced proposed actions.
We strongly support the continued Multiple Use Management philosophy, and the inclusion of adaptive management
strategies that allow land managers to be flexible enough to make timely decisions relative to a host of ever changing
conditions.
Within those tools listed in the scoping letter, we strongly support the continued use of livestock grazing as a
management tool to improve habitat, as well as carefully managed fire as a tool to improve habitat.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors has some specific concerns regarding herbicide application on any public
land within the Gila County boundaries. Our position is that herbicides should be considered only as a last resort option
for any area. The toxicity of herbicides to the public, particularly to those with chemical sensitivities, should be noted.
The toxicity of herbicides to the wildlife and surrounding vegetation should also be noted. Ifherbicides are to be used,
we request that the area be clearly posted along with the potential side effects, and the local communities be notified of
the planned use. Further, we request that land owners adjacent to the herbicide application areas be notified prior to
the herbicide use.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors requests to be kept informed as this analysis continues and as the Forest
Service evaluates, reviews and reaches a decision regarding this proposed action.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael A. Pastor,
Chairman



ARF-616     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-11 to 6-30-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Service Agreement No. 6880.102/7-2011 for parking lot sweeping at 4 County locations.

Background Information
The contractor is currently performing parking lot sweeping services at 2 County locations:  Globe
Courthouse and Central Heights Complex.  The Service Agreement will provide for the continued
sweeping at those locations and add the Public Works Complex Administration Building and Facilities
Building for the service.

Evaluation
Gila Sweeping will perform monthly parking lot sweeping services at the following county locations: 
Globe Courthouse (Guerrero Building), Central Heights Complex, Public Works Administration Building
and Facilities/Sign Shop Building.  Parking lots will be swept once per month and on an as-needed
basis upon County request.  Locations may be added and removed during the term of the contract
based upon the needs of the County. 

Conclusion
The parking lots will be swept once per month at the following rate:  Courthouse $150, Central Heights
$75, Public Works Administration $50, and Facilities $50 at a total cost of $325 per month.  The
parking lots will also be swept at other times on an as need basis per County request.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Service Agreement No.
6880.102/7-2011 with Gila Sweeping for parking lot sweeping services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Service Agreement No. 6880.102/7-2011 between Gila
County and Gila Sweeping LLC whereby the contractor will provide parking lot sweeping services from
July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014, in a not to exceed amount of $4,550 per year.
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Executive Summary Form
Link: Agreement No. 6880.102/7-2011



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Parking Lot Sweeping Services 

 
Contract No.: 

 
6880.102/7-2011 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 
 

The contractor will perform parking lot sweeping services for the following County facilities:  Globe 
Courthouse, Central Heights Complex, Public Works Administration Building, and Public Works Facilities 
Building.  Parking lots will be swept once per month and on an as need basis upon County request. 

 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
June 30, 2014 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
          Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
$4,550.00 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Gila Sweeping LLC 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Peggy Lavin 

 
Address: 

 
PO Box 1382 

 
Phone No: 

 
425-0486 

 
City: 

 
Globe 

 
State: 

 
AZ 

 
Fax: 

 
 

 
Email: 

 
 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
Facilities Management 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 6880.341.102.000_4200.10_location #             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 















ARF-641     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Public Service Solar Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Agreement for Schools and Government
Program 

Background Information
On March 29, 2011, the Board was given a presentation by Tom Harris of PV Advanced Concepts
regarding solar energy incentives through the Arizona Public Service (APS) Solar for Schools and
Government program. An overall view of this program was presented to the Board of Supervisors by
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, at this work session. 

On April 19, 2011, the Board approved the application to Arizona Public Service for solar energy
funding in coordination with PV Advanced Concepts at no up-front capital investment by Gila County.

On May 3, 2011, the Board authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals for a contractor to
provide the solar photovoltaic energy generating systems.

Evaluation
The solar photovoltaic energy generating system is designed to offset megawatt hours of energy
consumption or generation over its first three years in use. 

Conclusion
It would benefit Gila County to enjoy energy savings and receive the financial benefits of going solar
with no up-front capital investment, in coordination with PV Advanced Concepts by approving the
Arizona Public Service Company Solar Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Agreement. 

Recommendation
The Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Solar Renewable
Energy Credit Purchase Agreement with Arizona Public Service Company.  The term of this contract is
15 years beginning with the commissioning of the photovoltaic system.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Solar Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Agreement -
Grid-Tied Photovoltaic System (APS Contract #17914) between Gila County and Arizona Public Service
Company for solar energy funding in conjunction with PV Advanced Concepts at no up-front capital
investment by Gila County.
(Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Credit Purchase Agreement































































ARF-643     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

6-28-2011 to 6-27-2014 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Proposals 041111-1 Solar Energy Systems Letter of Intent to Enter into Contract

Background Information
Arizona Public Service Company (APS) awarded a 200 kWh program to Gila County for photovoltaic or
solar electric at no up-front cost. The program offers third party financiers working with solar installers
to install solar panels on top of parking canopy structures around a County building. This would offset
megawatt hours of energy consumption or generation as a cost savings to the County.

Evaluation
After thorough review and evaluation by the selection committee of the three proposals submitted, it
has been concluded that Tioga Energy offers the best savings and professional, reliable installation. A
Letter of Intent is being offered to Tioga Energy to secure the APS award.  After negotiations a contract
with Tioga will follow. The Letter of Intent must be signed by Gila County no later than June 28 in order
to take advantage of the APS Solar Energy Systems award.

Conclusion
Once the Letter of Intent has been approved and a copy sent to APS to secure the incentive, a fee
contract can be negotiated and taken to the Board for the next Board regular meeting.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the  Board of Supervisors approve the Letter of Intent with
Tioga Energy as part of the Solar Energy Systems project and APS incentive award.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Letter of Intent with Tioga Energy whereby Tioga will
provide for privately owned solar photovoltaic (PV) energy generating system(s) to Gila County and to
authorize the Chairman's signature on the Letter of Intent.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Bid Tab 041111-1
Link: Letter of Intent
Link: Information on Letter of Intent
Link: Cost Tabulation for RFP #041111-1
Link: Tioga Presentation 
Link: Tioga Letter of Intent-partially executed



      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:

 

Solar Electric System & Products See Proposal
Reference:             

Evaluation

Reference:             

Evaluation

Reference:             

Evaluation

Solary Energy Systems

041111-1 May 31, 2011

COMMENTS

APS Energy Services                                                                

Solar Power Partners

See Proposal

See Proposal

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

BID TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Kitchell Contractors



 
 
 
 

     

   

 

 
June 24, 2011 
 
Michael A. Pastor 
Chairman  
Gila County 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
  
Re:   Solar Photovoltaic Power Purchase Agreement Letter of Intent 
 

Dear Mr. Pastor: 

On behalf of Tioga Energy, Inc. (“Tioga”), I would like to thank you for selecting Tioga to finance, own 
and operate a solar photovoltaic facility (“Facility”) at the Gila County property in Globe, Arizona for the 
purpose of generating and selling electricity to Company under a long term solar Power Purchase 
Agreement (“PPA”).   

Attachment A to this Letter of Intent (LOI) highlights the proposed key terms of a PPA between Tioga 
and Gila County. 

By signatures affixed to this letter, Tioga and Gila County agree to the following: 

1. Tioga and Gila County will pursue in good faith and expend the necessary resources and time to 
negotiate a definitive PPA which, subject to mutual agreement through negotiation, will be 
generally based on the attached PPA Term Sheet and will include additional provisions 
customarily addressed in power purchase agreements. 

2. Tioga and Gila County will pursue negotiations promptly and diligently so as to enable the 
Facility to qualify for investment tax credit (or U.S. Treasury Grant in lieu of tax credit) under the 
Internal Revenue Code and Arizona Public Service incentives programs.   

3. Tioga will begin processing the necessary paperwork for submittal of the project into Arizona 
Public Service utility‐level incentive program(s). 

4. Tioga will perform a title search of Gila County, Arizona property as part of the due diligence 
associated with permanent financing of the Facility, and Gila County and Tioga will establish a 
plan to resolve any title‐related issues which would otherwise present a barrier to the closing of 
permanent Facility financing. 

5. Tioga will form new a special purpose limited liability company (LLC) which will serve as the 
counterparty to the PPA with Gila County.  

    
  Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105 

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 



 
 
 
 

     

   

6. Gila County will provide financial information necessary for Tioga’s lender to complete a credit 
review as part of the due diligence associated with permanent financing of the Facility. 

7. Gila County will provide site‐related information as requested by Tioga to confirm project 
feasibility, complete incentive application paperwork, and related activities in a timely fashion. 

8. During the period commencing on the date it countersigns this letter through DATE, County will 
negotiate exclusively with Tioga for the provision of services relating to a solar photovoltaic 
Facility at Gila County in Globe, Arizona  site. 

9. Other than as appropriate to satisfy public disclosure requirements or as otherwise mutually 
agreed, Gila County and Tioga shall not disclose any information received from the other to any 
person other than advisors, investors, or lenders involved in the negotiation of a contract or 
financing the Facility.  Gila County and Tioga and their advisors will also not use any information 
received from the other except in connection with evaluation of a possible agreement between 
the parties.  Gila County and Tioga will keep this letter and the fact of their negotiations 
confidential and will require confidentiality from any outside parties with whom they may 
consult.  This confidentiality provision between the parties shall remain in effect for one year 
from the date of this letter.   

10. Each party will be responsible to pay for its own costs in connection with the items agreed to 
above, including costs of consultants, accountants, and attorneys.   

Neither party is obligated to enter into a PPA, and any obligations other than those explicitly agreed to 
herein will arise only in accordance with, and subject to, a definitive PPA, if such an agreement is 
actually executed by Company and Tioga.  If this is all acceptable, please sign and return to me one of 
the two originals of this letter which are enclosed.   

We very much appreciate the opportunity to participate in this exciting project and are prepared to 
move forward quickly. 

Sincerely,              
AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED: 

TIOGA ENERGY, INC.           GILA COUNTY 
 
            _________________________________ 
            Michael A. Pastor 
By:  Marc Roper         Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 
      
Its:    VP Sales and Marketing     Attest: ____________________________ 
            Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
Date:    ________________________    Approved as to Form: 
            __________________________________ 
            Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 

    
  Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105 

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 



 
 
 
 

     

   

 
 

Attachment A 
Solar Photovoltaic Facility Letter of Intent 

Basic Terms and Conditions 
 
This Attachment A outlines key terms under which Tioga Energy, Inc. (Tioga) proposes to enter into a 
solar power purchase agreement (PPA) with Gila County to supply electricity from a photovoltaic (PV) 
system owned by Tioga and installed on the Globe, Arizona property owned by Gila County. 

These terms and conditions are subject to credit review and review of the suitability of the Gila County 
site by Tioga and its lenders.   PPA pricing is subject to securing applicable state‐ and/or utility‐level 
incentives.   

 
Key PPA Terms.   

Provider:    Special purpose limited liability companies owned by Tioga. 

Host:  Gila County 

Facility:  One 200kW DC rooftop photovoltaic system, including interconnections 
required to deliver electricity to Host, installed on the Host’s property at 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona. 

Term:  Fifteen (15) or twenty (20) years. 

Price:  Price Option  Year 1 Price 

15 Year Term  Not offered 

20 Year Term  $0.080/kWh 

Annual Price Escalator:  0% per year 

Incentives, RECs, and non‐
energy attributes: 

Provider is entitled to all available financial incentives, solar renewable 
energy credits (SRECs) and other environmental attributes associated 
with the electricity generated by the Facility.   

Insurance, Operation and 
Maintenance 

Provider will insure the facility as personal property and provide all 
operations and maintenance necessary. 

Early Purchase Options:  The Host shall have the option to purchase the facility from the Provider 
on the 7th, 10th, and 15th anniversary of the commercial operation date, at 
the greater of the Early Termination Amount values shown below or 
Facility’s fair market value at the time of purchase.  (See appendix 1 for 
FMV explanation). 

 

    
  Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105 

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 



 
 
 
 

     

   

 
 

Early Termination Amount:  The amount to be paid (if greater than Fair Market Value) by Host upon i) 
exercise of purchase option, ii) certain circumstances following a 
Relocation Event leading to termination of the PPA, and iii) as part of the 
obligation under a Host Default. 

Project Year Early Termination Amount 
1 $    #### 

2 $    #### 

3 $    #### 

4 $    #### 

5 $    #### 

6 $    #### 

7 $    #### 

8 $    #### 

9 $    #### 

10 $    #### 

11 $    #### 

12 $    #### 

13 $    #### 

14 $    #### 

15 $    #### 

16 $    #### 

17 $    #### 

18 $    #### 

19 $    #### 

20 $    #### 

End of PPA Disposition:  At the end of the PPA Term, the Host shall have the options of entering 
into a new PPA, purchasing the Facility at its fair market value, or having 
the Provider remove the Facility and restore the site to its initial 
functional condition. 

 

    
  Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105 

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 



 
 
 
 

     

   
    
  Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105 

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 

 
 

Appendix 1:  Determining Fair Market Value 
 
At the time when Gila County elects to exercise its buy‐out option, FMV would be determined by an 
independent third‐party appraiser.  This appraiser would use any one of three methods of valuation, or 
some combination of the three methods.  Those methods are: 
 

1. Discounted cash flow analysis (looking at the projected revenue stream less operating and 
maintenance costs discounted back to the time of the analysis.   

2. Replacement cost (what it would cost to buy a functionally equivalent replacement system at 
the time of the analysis); and 

3. Resale value (what the equipment, once removed from the site, could be sold for to a third 
party). 

 
The buyout price would then be determined to be the greater of FMV or the Year‐7, Year‐10, Y‐15, etc. 
terminal value.  Below is an example of a TV chart for a 315 kW system.  The TV represents the sum of 
future electricity sales as per the PPA, the required SREC sales (as per the financial model w/ bank), and 
the residual value of the system.  The TV is also the amount that the host would have to pay in the event 
of a default (on the electricity payments).  Generally, FMV = (TV+5%). 
 
If there is an upfront agreement to a sale in the future for a fixed price, it’s a sales contract.  The IRS 
wants to see that the bank is really intending to own the system & sell the electricity and thereby 
qualifying for the tax credits.  Agreeing to use FMV to determine price for a sale of system in the out 
years ensures that it’s not a sales contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



Tom Harris
PV Advanced Concepts

Tom.Harris@PVAdvancedConcepts.com
(602) 317-0015

mailto:Tom.Harris@PVAdvancedConcepts.com


An LOI is an agreement to enter into 
negotiations exclusively  with one supplier.

If negotiations don’t succeed county can walk 
away. (i.e. no obligations)

Urgency driven by APS incentive deadline.



APS awarded a 200 kW incentive for the Globe 
Courthouse. (400 kW is possible)

RFP process was completed with 
Kitchell/Tioga being the preferred supplier
◦ Low cost
◦ Excellent experience in this type of project
◦ Good reputation. 
◦ Scoring next slide





Best & Final PPA Proposal – Alt #1
- Sites (1):

Globe County Courthouse (Alt #1)

- Project Size:  204.96 kW (DC)  

- PPA Contract Term:  20 yrs

- Pricing Option 1: Savings
Starting Rate:  $0.080/kWh 1st Year:        ($3,645)
Annual Escalation:  0% Cumulative: $149,000

- Pricing Option 2: Savings
Starting Rate:  $0.067/kWh 1st Year:        $458
Annual Escalation:  3% Cumulative: $86,000

- *Pricing assumes exemption to state and local transaction privilege taxes (sales taxes)



Next Steps
Finalize L.O.I. agreement with legal review
Submit L.O.I. to APS to maintain incentive
Negotiate details of contract with 
Kitchell/Tioga
Submit for additional incentives



Annual Electric Charges 
With and Without Solar PPA 

– 0% Escalator Option



Annual Electric Charges 
With and Without Solar PPA 

– 3% Escalator Option



Backup



Alt #1 Savings Analysis – 0% Escalator Option

Presenter
Presentation Notes
EDITOR’S NOTE: Update slide as appropriate.



Alt #1 Savings Analysis – 3% Escalator Option

Presenter
Presentation Notes
EDITOR’S NOTE: Update slide as appropriate.

















































Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 

June 23, 2011

Michael A. Pastor

Chairman of the Board

Gila County Board of Supervisors

1400 E. Ash Street

Globe, AZ 85501

RE: Solar Photovoltaic Power Purchase Agreement Letter of Intent

Mr. Pastor:

On behalf of Tioga Energy, Inc. (“Tioga”), I would like to thank you for selecting Tioga Energy to finance, own and

operate solar photovoltaic facilities (“Facilities”) at select County properties for the purpose of generating and

selling electricity to Gila County under a long term solar Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”).

Attachment A to this Letter of Intent (LOI) highlights the proposed key terms of a Power Purchase Agreement

between Tioga and Gila County.

By signatures affixed to this letter, Tioga and Gila County agree to the following:

1. Tioga and Gila County will pursue in good faith and expend the necessary resources and time to
negotiate a definitive PPA which, subject to mutual agreement through negotiation, will be generally
based on the attached PPA Term Sheet and will include additional provisions customarily addressed in
power purchase agreements.

2. Tioga and Gila County will pursue negotiations promptly and diligently so as to enable the Facility to
qualify for investment tax credit (or U.S. Treasury Grant in lieu of tax credit) under the Internal Revenue
Code, and the Arizona Public Service Solar Energy incentive program.

3. Tioga will perform a title search of Gila County’s properties as part of the due diligence associated with
permanent financing of the Facility, and Gila County and Tioga will establish a plan to resolve any title-
related issues which would otherwise present a barrier to the closing of permanent Facility financing.

4. Prior to the execution of a definitive PPA, Tioga will form a new special purpose limited liability company
(LLC) which will serve as the counterparty to the PPA with Gila County.

5. Gila County will provide financial information necessary for Tioga’s lender to complete a credit review as
part of the due diligence associated with permanent financing of the Facility.

6. Gila County will provide site-related information as requested by Tioga to confirm project feasibility,
complete incentive application paperwork, and related activities in a timely fashion.

7. During the 180 day period commencing on the date it countersigns this letter, Gila County will negotiate
exclusively with Tioga for the provision of services relating to solar photovoltaic Facilities at Gila
County’s properties.



Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 

8. Except as deemed solely by Gila County to be required under Arizona’s Public Records Law, A.R.S. Title
39, Chapter 1, and Open Meeting Law, A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 3, Article 3.1 or other public disclosure
laws or regulations, or as otherwise mutually agreed, Gila County and Tioga shall not:

a. Disclose any information received from the other to any person other than members, agents
and employees of PV Advanced Concepts, an Arizona Limited Liability Company (hereinafter,
collectively, “PV Advanced Concepts”), advisors, investors, or lenders involved in the
negotiation of a contract or financing the Facility.

b. Use any information received from the other except in connection with evaluation of a possible
agreement between the parties.

Gila County and Tioga will require the same standard of non-disclosure from any outside parties with

whom they may consult, provided that this provision shall not apply to Gila County’s contacts with PV

Advanced Concepts, with whom Tioga has entered into a separate non-disclosure agreement. This non-

disclosure provision between the parties hereto shall remain in effect for one year from the date of this

letter.

9. Each party will be responsible to pay for its own costs in connection with the items agreed to above,
including costs of consultants, accountants, and attorneys, provided that Tioga shall be solely
responsible for all monies payable to PV Advanced Concepts, Including, but not limited to, fees, costs,
reimbursements and commissions.

Neither party is obligated to enter into a PPA, and any obligations other than those explicitly agreed to herein

will arise only in accordance with, and subject to, a definitive PPA, if such an agreement is actually executed by

Gila County and Tioga. If this is all acceptable, please sign and return to me one of the two originals of this letter

which are enclosed.

We very much appreciate the opportunity to participate in this exciting project and are prepared to move

forward quickly.

Sincerely,

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED:

TIOGA ENERGY, INC. Gila County

_________________________________

By: Marc Roper By: Michael A. Pastor

Title: VP, Sales and Marketing Title: Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

Date: ____________________ Date: ___________________________

ATTEST:

_________________________________

Marian Sheppard, Clerk, Gila County Board of Supervisors



Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 

Attachment A
Solar Photovoltaic Facility Letter of Intent

Basic Terms and Conditions

This Attachment A outlines key terms under which Tioga Energy, Inc. (Tioga) proposes to enter into a Power

Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Gila County to supply electricity to Gila County from a photovoltaic (PV) Facility

owned by Tioga and installed on the Globe Courthouse (or on alternate County property subject to approval).

The commercial terms summarized in the table on the following page are subject to credit review, securing

applicable federal, state, local, and/or utility incentives as well as review of the proposed site by Tioga and its

lenders. Pricing assumes the following: $0.171/kWh performance based incentive for 15 years through the APS

School & Government Incentive Program, Commercial Operation Date by Dec 15, 2011, and a 1.5% (of the total

contract amount) fee to PV Advanced Concepts by Tioga.

This proposal is made on the conditions (a) that Tioga’s standard form of power purchase agreement will be

used to memorialize our agreement and (b), notwithstanding the Tioga standard form’s treatment of taxes, the

proposed purchase price included in the power purchase agreement will be increased from the proposed

amounts (and adjusted up or down from time to time) to reflect Tioga’s actual cost of state and local transaction

privilege taxes (sales taxes), franchise fee (on sales of electricity), personal property tax, and real property tax, if

and to the extent applicable.



Tioga Energy, Inc. Ι 123 Mission Street, 9th Floor Ι San Francisco, CA 94105

415 625 0700 main Ι 415 513 1645 fax Ι www.TiogaEnergy.com 

Key PPA Terms.

Provider: Special purpose limited liability company owned by Tioga.

Contractor: Kitchell Contractors Inc, of Arizona

Host: Gila County

Facility: One (1) carport mounted 204.96 kW (DC) photovoltaic project, including
interconnections required to deliver electricity to Host, installed on the
Host’s property at 1400 E Ash St., Globe, Arizona 85501 (or alternate property)

Term: Twenty (20) years

Price: Price Option Annual Escalation First Year Purchase Price

Option 1 0% $0.080 per kWh

Option 2 3% $0.067 per kWh

Incentives, SRECs, and non-
energy attributes:

Provider is entitled to all available financial incentives, solar renewable
energy credits (SRECs) and other environmental attributes associated with
the electricity generated by the Facility.

Insurance, Operation and
Maintenance

Provider will insure the facility as personal property and provide all
operations and maintenance necessary.

Early Purchase Options: The Host shall have the option to purchase the facility from the Provider on
the 7th, 10th, and 15th anniversary of the commercial operation date, at the
greater of the Early Termination Amount as detailed in the PPA contract or
Facility’s fair market value at the time of purchase.

End of PPA Disposition: At the end of the PPA Term, the Host shall have the options of entering into
a new PPA, purchasing the Facility at its fair market value, or having the
Provider remove the Facility and restore the site to its initial functional
condition.



ARF-638     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Termination of lease with Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (formerly known as Cyprus Miami Mining
Corporation) for the Armory Property.

Background Information
Gila County has a current lease with Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (formerly known as Cyprus Miami
Mining Corporation) that is for 20 years from September 9, 1997, to  September 9, 2017. 

Evaluation
Attached is the current lease and the first amendment allowing Gila County to sublease a portion of
the Armory to Gila Community College.  Gila County sent a letter to Mr. Jay Spehar of
Freeport-McMoRan giving notice of termination of said lease on May 26, 2011, with a termination date
of July 1, 2011. 

Conclusion
The termination of this lease is necessary as the Facilities Department, currently housed at the Armory
property is moving into their new building.   

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
termination of the lease with Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (formerly known as Cyprus Miami Mining
Corporation).

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a letter to Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc.
(formerly known as Cyprus Miami Mining Corporation) to terminate the County's lease of buildings
known as the "Armory Property" effective July 1, 2011, as provided in A.R.S. §38-511.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Freeport Lease
Link: Amendment to lease to sublease
Link: Termination letter





























ARF-652     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

N/A 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Berthan DeNero 

Information
Request/Subject
Courthouse Security Proposal from the Gila County Courthouse Security Committee

Background Information
In March 2011, a request was made by Honorable Judge Cahill and County Manager Don McDaniel to
make the Courthouse secure within the bounds of reasonableness and budgetary consideration. The
focus was the Globe Courthouse. The Committee divided issues into three areas. The first being
"extremely important" issues, the second being "very important" issues and the third being
"important "issues. The Committee members include the following: Mary Hawkins, Jacque Durbin,
Anita Escobedo, Sadie Tomerlin, Debi Savage, Major Jim Eskew, Lt. Mike Johnson, Steve Stratton,
Robert Hickman, Darryl Griffin, Eloise Price, Ruben Mancha and Berthan DeNero.

Evaluation
It is recognized that there has been an issue in violence in our society and that courts deal with
emotional issues. It is also recognized that the court system deals with a diverse population. These
recommendations are not mandates, but rather they are goals that which courts and local communities
should aspire to ensure safe access to all.

Conclusion
The Gila County Courthouse Security Committee needs approval from the Board of Supervisors to fund
security recommendations. 

Recommendation
At this time, it is recommended by the Gila County Courthouse Security Committee to fund the three
phases of this project.  

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the proposal from the Gila County Courthouse Security
Committee to expend $200,000 for Courthouse security and implement the proposal on July 1, 2011.  (Berthan DeNero)
(Berthan DeNero)



ARF-677     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager
Department: Public Works Division

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

November 16, 2010 to November 16, 2015 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Reconsideration of Contract No. 060110-1 between Gila County and IWC, LLC for janitorial
services in County facilities in Globe, AZ.

Background Information
IWC, LLC won the custodial contract bid in November 2010. They were significantly lower
than the other bidders.

Evaluation
Certain legal issues have arisen regarding the IWC, LLC janitorial services contract. The
County Manager recommends that the Board vote to go into executive session under A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3) to receive legal advice from its legal counsel regarding these legal issues.

Conclusion
The Board should consider going into executive session to consider certain legal issues
regarding the IWC, LLC janitorial services contract.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board consider the legal issues surrounding the IWC, LLC
janitorial services contract, exercise the contract’s 30 day termination clause, authorize staff
to hire temporary janitorial workers, and a authorize staff to prepare a new call for bids for
janitorial services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to exercise the thirty day termination clause in Contract No.
060110-1 between Gila County and IWC, LLC for janitorial services in County facilities in
Globe, AZ, authorize staff to immediately hire temporary workers to perform the required
janitorial work, and authorize staff to prepare a new call for bids for janitorial services in
Globe, AZ.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4), the board may vote to go into
executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney and to instruct its attorney
regarding the board's position.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Contract No. 060110-1
Link: Amendment #1 Contract No. 060110-1













































































ARF-650     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Fireworks Display Application for Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc.-Miami Operations

Background Information
For many years a local copper mining company, presently known as Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc.-Miami
Operations, has provided the local community with a 4th of July fireworks display at the location of the mine in
Claypool.

Evaluation
All applications are submitted to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, which are ultimately presented to the Board
of Supervisors for approval.  Fireworks Productions of Arizona has submitted an application on behalf of
Freeport-McMoRan for its July 4th fireworks display.

Conclusion
The required certificate of insurance is attached to the application; Sheriff John Armer has signed the
application; and AJ Howell, Tri-City Fire District Batallion Chief, has submitted a letter approving of this fireworks
display; therefore, all of the required information is attached for the Board of Supervisors' review/decision.

Recommendation
The Board of Supervisors' approval of this application is recommended by the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Fireworks Display submitted by Fireworks Productions of Arizona on behalf of
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc.-Miami Operations to provide a fireworks display on July 4th at
Freeport-McMoRan's minesite.

Attachments
Link: Fireworks Display Application for Freeport-McMoRan















ARF-651     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Rimside Grill & Cabins' Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio/Premises Permit

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an Application for Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located. 
The application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the premises/patio where serving liquor is
permitted by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (Department).  The local governing body
usually has established internal procedures for review and approval of the application.  The Department has final
approval of all recommendations submitted by the local governing body.  

Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures, LLC dba Rimside Grill & Cabins submitted an application to temporarily extend
the premises/patio of the Rimside Grill for the following events:  August 5-6, 2011 - Fire on the Rim Mountain Bike
Race Event to benefit the Pine-Strawberry Fuels Reduction Project, and August 21, 2011 - Steak Fry to benefit the
Strawberries Elite Charity.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board, and staff of the Community
Development Division have viewed the proposed extended area for liquor to be served on the requested dates.

Conclusion
This application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a decision.  The Board's recommendation
will then be sent to the Department for a final decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval recommendation to the Department.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures,
LLC dba Rimside Grill & Cabins to temporarily extend the Rimside Grill patio area in order to serve liquor in that
area on August 5-6, 2011, and August 21, 2011, during special events.

Attachments
Link: Rimside Grill Temporary Patio Permit Extension Application













ARF-624     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Eloise Price, Court Information Systems Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court MIS

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

6-28-2011 to 6-27-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Service Agreement for implementation of the Liberty Court Recording Software and Maintenance for
Superior Court.

Background Information
JCG Technologies will provide integrated digital media solutions to Gila County Superior Court in order
to produce a record of their proceeding/meetings.  The software will aid the courts on the creation,
management, and distribution of recorded events and proceedings.

Evaluation
JCG Technologies will provide digital recording equipment and maintenance to the following county
locations:  Division II Courtroom B, Payson East Main Courtroom, Globe Hearing Room, Division I
Courtroom A, and the Payson West (Jail) Courtroom.  The system will give Superior Court a complete
and functional, integrated media system.  
The Recorder enables the user to capture multiple channel digital audio, add the notes to the recording,
monitor the progress of the recording, and add bookmarks at differents in the recording.  The Player
software will allow the user to control the playback of the audio and copy recorded audio.  It will run on
any PC with WIndows 98 or later and uses the PC's standard sound card.

JCG will provide Superior Court with a binder containing manufacturers manuals, warranty cards, and
any other pertinent pieces of documentation.

Once installation of the system is complete JCG will provide comprehensive on site training of the sytem
and features to the court staff.  

Conclusion
JCG technologies is forecasting the delivery, installation, testing and commissioning of the proposed
system to be complete no later than 30 days from the notice to proceed from the county.  The total cost
for installation, software and maintenance at all the lcoations shall be $40,557.01

Recommendation
The Superior Court MIS department recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the agreement
with JCG Technologies for the Liberty Court Recording Solution installation and maintenance.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Service Agreement between Gila County and JCG Technologies whereby JCG Technologies
will be provide for the installation, software and maintenance of the Liberty Court Recording Solution
System for Gila County Superior Court in the amount of $40,557.01 from June 28, 2011, to June 27,
2012.



Attachments
Link: JCG Service Agreement



































ARF-623     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Liz Fetterman, Victim Witness Advocate
Submitted By: Liz Fetterman, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Victim Assistance Grant Agreement VA-12-020

Background Information
This Grant has been in effect for more than 10 years and is a renewal grant that has received
matched funding in the past 10 years.  On May 19, 2011, the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission approved grant funding for FY2012 in the amount of $17,600.  The grant match
amount for the FY2012 is $17,600.  This grant funding covers the salary of the Victim
Witness Advocate/Victim Compensation Coordinator (50% grant funds with 50% match
covered by general fund. ) This position is a required position in the Gila County Attorney's
Office. 

Evaluation
The Victim Assistance Program provides effective victim assistance services to victims of crime
in Gila County.  Direct assistance to crime victims may include assistance with monitoring
restitution payments, information on the criminal justice process, notification of court
proceedings, accompaniment to court proceedings and attorney interviews, guidance with
Victim Impact Statement and referrals to community resources to address victims' needs in
the aftermath of crime.

Administration of this funding is an integral part of the Gila County Attorney's Office as the
funding supports the salary of the crime victim advocate.  In addition, the advocate is
responsible for coordinating the Victim Compensation Program.  That program assists victims
with financial assistance to pay for funeral expenses, medical bills, mental health counseling,
wage loss and crime scene clean-up.

Conclusion
It is imperative for the Gila County Attorney's Office of Victim Services to continue to receive
these grant funds.  The criminal justice system can be traumatic for most victims and it is
important for the department to provide the mandated services to those victims.  It is a
priority of the Victim Services Department to insure that enforcement of victims' rights are
adhered and complied with under the law.

The advocate acts as the liaison between the victim, the Prosecutor and the Court.  The



The advocate acts as the liaison between the victim, the Prosecutor and the Court.  The
advocate plays a key role to insure that victims are treated with fairness, dignity and respect
throughout the criminal justice system.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office of Victim Services recommends that the Board approve the
existing Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Grant Agreement VA-12-020 in the amount of
$17,600 for FY 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval to accept a Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No. VA-12-020)
between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $17,600
for the period of July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012. 

Attachments
Link: VA 12-020



  
ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 

CRIME VICTIM ASSISTANCE 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020  

State Funded Grant Program 
 

This Grant Agreement is made this 6th day of June, 2011 by and between the ARIZONA CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE COMMISSION hereinafter called “COMMISSION” and Gila County, through the Gila County 
Attorney's Office hereinafter called “GRANTEE”.  The COMMISSION enters into this Agreement 
pursuant to its authority under the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-2405 (B)(6), and having satisfied itself 
as to the qualification of GRANTEE; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties as follows: 

 
1. This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2011 and terminate on June 30, 2012.  This 

Agreement expires at the end of the award period unless prior written approval for an 
extension has been obtained from the COMMISSION.  A request for an extension must be 
received by the COMMISSION sixty (60) days prior to the end of the award period.  The 
COMMISSION in its sole discretion shall approve an extension that further the goals and 
objectives of the program and shall determine the length of the extension. 

 
2. The GRANTEE agrees that grant funds will be used to provide services to victims of crime as 

stated in the grant application. 
 

3. The COMMISSION will monitor the performance of the GRANTEE against goals and 
performance standards outlined in the grant application.  Sub-standard performance as 
determined by the COMMISSION will constitute non-compliance with this Agreement.  The 
GRANTEE shall operate in a manner consistent with and in compliance with the provisions and 
stipulations of the approved grant application and this Agreement.  If the COMMISSION finds 
non-compliance, the GRANTEE will receive a written notice which identifies the area of non-
compliance, and the appropriate corrective action to be taken.  If the GRANTEE does not 
respond within thirty (30) calendar days to this notice, and does not provide sufficient 
information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct the problem, the 
COMMISSION may suspend funding or permanently terminate this Agreement or revoke the 
grant.  Any deviation or failure to comply with the purpose and/or conditions of this 
Agreement without prior written COMMISSION approval may constitute sufficient reason for 
the COMMISSION to terminate this Agreement, revoke the grant, require the return of all 
unspent funds, perform an audit of expended funds, and require the return of any previously 
spent funds which are deemed to have been spent in violation of the purpose or conditions of 
this grant. 

 
4. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by the Authorized 

Official or by persons designated by the Authorized Official on behalf of the COMMISSION and 
GRANTEE.  Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
considered to have been given when actually received by the following addressee or their 
agents or employees: 
A. If to the COMMISSION: 

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attn: Program Manager 

  
 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 2 
 

 
  B. If to the GRANTEE: 
 

Gila County Attorney's Office 
1400 E. Ash Street  
Globe, AZ 85501 

Attn: The Honorable Daisy  Flores 
 

5. The GRANTEE agrees to submit in writing all budget adjustment requests for approval by the 
COMMISSION.  Written approval from the COMMISSION is required before any fund 
expenditures are made from adjusted budget categories. 

  
APPROVED LINE ITEM PROGRAM BUDGET 

Personnel:  
Salaries  
Fringe Benefits (for salaries/overtime)  
Overtime  
Professional & Outside/Consultant & Contractual Services  
Travel In-State  
Travel Out-of-State  
Confidential Funds  
Operating Expenses:  
Supplies  
Registration/Training  
Other  
Equipment:  
Capital 
Non-Capital 
 
TOTAL 

$17,000.00
$600.00

Not Approved
Not Approved
Not Approved
Not Approved
Not Approved

Not Approved
Not Approved
Not Approved

Not Approved
Not Approved

$17,600.00
Personnel Positions Funded: 
Victim Assistance Staff   

 
6. It is agreed and understood that the total to be paid by the COMMISSION under this 

Agreement shall not exceed $17,600.00 in State funds.  An additional 17600 in local matching 
funds will be supplied by the GRANTEE from General Funds. 

 
7. The GRANTEE understands that grant funds will be paid in quarterly allotments through the 

grant period of award.  
 

8. Every payment obligation of the COMMISSION under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the COMMISSION.  No liability shall accrue to the COMMISSION in the event 
this provision is exercised, and the COMMISSION shall not be obligated or liable for any future 
payments or for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

 
9. The GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, files and other records, (paper 

and/or electronic) relating to this Agreement and the performance of this Agreement for no 
less than five (5) years from the last financial report submitted to the Commission.  All such 
documents shall be subject to inspection and audit at reasonable times. 

 
10. For the purpose of this grant, a capital expenditure is $5,000 or above.  If the GRANTEE’S 

policy defines a capital expenditure as less than $5,000, the GRANTEE will use its own policy. 
 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 3 
 

11. The GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant funds 
and perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least every two 
years or more frequently based on GRANTEE policy. The GRANTEE agrees that funds will not 
be used for the construction of new facilities.  

 
12. The GRANTEE agrees to keep time and attendance sheets signed by the employee and 

supervisory official having first hand knowledge of the work performed by the grant funded 
employees. 

  
13. The GRANTEE agrees that it will submit financial and activity reports to the COMMISSION on 

forms/format provided by the COMMISSION, documenting the activities supported by these 
grant funds and providing an assessment of the impact of these activities.  In the event 
reports are not received on or before the indicated date(s), funding will be suspended until 
such time as delinquent report(s) are received.  These reports are submitted according to the 
following schedule:  

Report Period: Due Date: 
July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011 
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 
January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2012 
April 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012 
Annual Report 

October 31, 2011 
January 31, 2012 
April 30, 2012 
August 15, 2012 
August 15, 2012 

More frequent reports may be required for GRANTEES who are considered high risk. 
 

14. All goods and services must be received, or have reasonable expectations thereof, and placed 
in service by the GRANTEE by the expiration of this award. 

 
15. All goods and services must be paid by the GRANTEE within 60 days of the expiration of this 

award. 
 

16. The GRANTEE agrees to obtain COMMISSION approval for all sole-source procurements in 
excess of $100,000. 

 
17. The GRANTEE agrees to obtain COMMISSION approval prior to the expenditure of grant funds 

for consultant fees in excess of $450 per day.  
 

18. The GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Computer Hardware and Software Vendor Guidelines 
distributed by the COMMISSION when purchasing hardware and software with grant funds. 

 
19. The GRANTEE agrees not to use grant funds for food and/or beverage unless explicitly 

approved in writing by the COMMISSION. 
 

20. No funds shall be used to supplant Federal, State, county or local funds that would otherwise 
be made available for such purposes. Supplanting means the deliberate reduction of State or 
local funds or positions because of the existence of available grant funds. 

 
21. The GRANTEE assigns to the COMMISSION any claim for overcharges resulting from antitrust 

violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services applied by third 
parties to the GRANTEE in exchange for grant funds provided under this Agreement. 

 
22. The parties agree to use arbitration in the event of disputes in accordance with the provisions 

of A.R.S. § 12-1518 et seq. The laws of the State of Arizona apply to questions arising under 
this Agreement and any litigation regarding this Agreement must be maintained in Arizona 
courts, except as pertaining to disputes which are subject to arbitration. 

 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 4 
 

23. The GRANTEE understands that grant funds will not be released until all required reports and 
reversion of funds from the prior year grant are submitted to the COMMISSION. 

 
24. The GRANTEE agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any indirect costs that may 

be incurred by GRANTEE for administering these funds unless explicitly approved in writing by 
the COMMISSION. This may include, but is not limited to, costs for services such as 
accounting, payroll, data processing, purchasing, personnel, and building use which may have 
been incurred by the GRANTEE. 

 
25. Each party (as Indemnitor) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party (as 

Indemnitee) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses, 
(including reasonable attorneys fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as Claims) arising out 
of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent 
that such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are cased by 
the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indeminitor, its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, or volunteers. If the GRANTEE is a State agency this paragraph 
does not apply. 

 
26. Unless GRANTEE is a State agency, GRANTEE shall cause its contractor(s), if any to indemnify 

defend, save and hold harmless the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter 
referred to as Indemnitee) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 
losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as Claims ) for bodily injury or personal 
injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or 
alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
GRANTEES contractor or any of it owners, officers, directors, agents, or employees or 
subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to 
any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims 
arising solely from the negligence or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be 
indemnified by contractor from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that contractor will 
be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this 
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this grant, the contractor agrees 
to waive all rights of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its officers, officials, agents and 
employees for losses arising from the work performed by the contractor for the State of 
Arizona. Insurance requirements for any contractor used by GRANTEE are incorporated herein 
by this reference and attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. 

 
27. If the GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE agrees to utilize the 

Data Dictionary, approved and distributed by the COMMISSION, as the data entry standard for 
information systems when improving or updating an existing Information System. The 
GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Data Dictionary as the data entry standard in any new system 
or when an existing Information System is replaced. Currently not available on-line. Call for 
copy, we will email. 

 
28. If the GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE agrees to utilize the 

National Information Exchange Model/Global Justice XML Data Model (NIEM/GJXDM) an object 
oriented data model that specifies a representation structure for the Global Justice XML Data 
Dictionary (GJXDD), approved by the COMMISSION as the standard for information sharing 
when improving, updating, or replacing an existing Information System. Link: OJP IT GJXDM 
http://www.it.ojp.gov 

 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 5 
 

29. If the GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE should integrate their 
information sharing systems with other information sharing systems and networks within the 
state using existing networks as the backbone to achieve interstate connectivity. Unless the 
GRANTEE can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the COMMISSION that this requirement 
would not be costs effective or would impair the functionality of an existing or proposed 
information sharing system. 

 
30. If the GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE should, to the extent 

possible and practical share criminal justice information with other authorized criminal justice 
agencies. The process control number (PCN) shall be used in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-
1750 when sharing data with other criminal justice agencies as electronic data systems are 
developed or improved. 

 
31. If the GRANTEE is a state agency and the award is for technology development projects, for 

more than $25,000 the GRANTEE must complete a Project Investment Justification (PIJ) and 
submit the justification to the Arizona Government Information Technology Agency (GITA), 
with a copy to the COMMISSION. Additionally, the GRANTEE agrees to submit required project 
status reports to GITA using their forms by the required due date with copies to the 
COMMISSION. 

 
32. The GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that the 

project official is replaced during the award period.  
 

33. No rights or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by GRANTEE without prior written 
approval of the COMMISSION. 

 
34. The GRANTEE agrees that no funds provided, or personnel employed under this Agreement 

shall be in any way or to any extent engaged in conduct of political activities in violation of 
U.S.C. Title 5, Part II, Chapter 15, section 1502. 

 
35. The GRANTEE certifies that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire any 

financial interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of services required under this Agreement. 

 
36. The GRANTEE agrees to cooperate and participate with any and all assessments, evaluation 

efforts or information and data collection requests, and acknowledges that the state grantor 
agency has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish or use data provided under this award and 
may authorize others to receive and use such information. 

 
37. The GRANTEE shall provide the COMMISSION with a copy of all interim and final reports and 

proposed publications (including those prepared for conferences and other presentations) 
resulting from this Agreement. Submission of such materials must be prior to or simultaneous 
with their public release. 

 
38. The GRANTEE agrees to abide by State laws and provide accounting, auditing and monitoring 

procedures to safeguard grant funds and keep such records to assure proper fiscal controls, 
management and the efficient disbursement of grant funds. 

 
39. The GRANTEE agrees to follow its own agency equipment disposition policies when the 

equipment is no longer needed for the grant program. If the GRANTEE has no policy, 
reference the Uniform Accounting Manual for Arizona Counties authorized by the Auditor 
General for disposition guidelines and guideline development. Link: Uniform Accounting 
Manual for Arizona Counties http://www.auditorgen.state.az/ 

 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 6 
 

40. The GRANTEE agrees expend all encumbered funds within 60 days of expiration of this award 
and to remit all unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION within 30 days of written 
request received from the COMMISSION. 

 
41. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with the non-discrimination requirements of the Omnibus 

Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended; 42 USC 3789(d); Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended;  Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;  
Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990);  Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 and the Department of Justice regulations 28 CFR Part 54;  
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975;  Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 
28 CFR Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, G and I; Department of Justice regulations on disability 
discrimination 28 CFR Part 35;  all applicable state laws of A.R.S. § 41-1463; and Executive 
Orders 1999-4 and 2000-4 and 2009-9.  These laws prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, sex and national origin including Limited English Proficiency (LEP) in the 
delivery of service.  In the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State 
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing against 
the GRANTEE, the GRANTEE will forward a copy of the findings to the Office for Civil Rights, 
Office of Justice Programs and the COMMISSION.  

 
42. The GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding privacy 

during the course of the award.  All information relating to clients is to be treated with 
confidentiality in accordance with 42 USC section 3789g or 42 U.S.C. 1432(b)(3) that are 
applicable to the collection, disclosure, use and revelation of data information.  The GRANTEE 
further agrees to submit a privacy Certificate that is in accordance with requirements of 28 
CFR Part 22 if applicable to the program. 

 
43. The GRANTEE agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, Immigration and 

Naturalization Form (I-9).  This form is to be used by recipients to verify that persons are 
eligible to work in the United States. Additionally the GRANTEE ensures compliance with ARS 
41-4401. 

 
44. The GRANTEE acknowledge that immigration laws require them to register and participate 

with the E-Verify program (employment verification program administered by the United 
States Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any 
successor program) as they both employ one or more employees in this state.  The GRANTEE 
warrants that they have registered with and participate with E-Verify.  If the GRANTOR later 
determines that the GRANTEE has not complied with E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant 
GRANTEE by certified mail of the determination and of the right to appeal the determination. 

 
45. Pursuant to ARS 35-391.06 and ARS 35-393.06, the GRANTEE hereby warrant, and represent 

that they do not have, and its subcontractors do not have, and during the term hereof will not 
have a scrutinized business operation in either Sudan or Iran. 

 
46. The GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding privacy 

during the course of the award. All information relating to clients is to be treated with 
confidentiality. 

 
47. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with all grant management criteria included in the latest 

version of the ACJC Grant Management Reference Manual. Link: ACJC Grants Management 
Reference Manual http://azcjc.gov/Grants/ 

 
48. The GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant funds 

and perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least every two 
years or more frequently based on GRANTEE policy.  

 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 7 
 

49. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with the applicable laws and provisions of the Arizona Crime 
Victim Assistance Program Rules, R10-4-201 through R10-4-204 of the Crime Victim 
Assistance program administered by the COMMISSION. 

 
50. The GRANTEE assures that it will collect and maintain information on victim services provided 

by ethnicity, sex, age and disability. 
 

51. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. § 38-511. This 
Agreement may also be cancelled at the COMMISSIONS discretion if not returned with 
authorized signatures to the COMMISSION within 90 days of commencement of the award. 

 
52. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid the remainder of the Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



Crime Victim Assistance ACJC Grant Number VA-12-020                                  Page 8 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed the Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

 
 
FOR GRANTEE: 
 
 

 
Board of Supervisors , Chairperson        Date 

 
 

Printed Name and Title          
 
 
Approved as to form and authority to enter into Agreement: 
 
 

 
Legal Counsel for GRANTEE        Date 
 
 

 
Printed Name and Title          
 
Statutory or other legal authority to enter into Agreement: 
 
 

 
Appropriate A.R.S., ordinance, or charter reference 
 
 
FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION: 
 
 

 
John A. Blackburn Jr., Executive Director       Date 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

 



ARF-625     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer
Submitted By: Sylvia Hernandez, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Probation

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

07/01/2011 - 06/30/2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-06-05 authorizing participation in the FY 2011-12 Family Counseling Program
through the Arizona Supreme Court.

Background Information
For the past ten years, Gila County has been providing a matching fund requirement for the Gila
County Probation Department to participate in the Family Counseling Program through the Arizona
Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division.  

Evaluation
As required in A.R.S. 8-261 (4) and 8-265 (A), the county may provide matching funds not in excess of
twenty-five percent of state monies distributed by the supreme court for the purpose of strengthening
family relationships and prevention of juvenile delinquency.

Conclusion
The monies for this program provide services for strengthening family relationships and preventing
juvenile delinquency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends the adoption of Board Resolution No.
11-06-05 certifying that the Board of Supervisors will provide $2,308 in matching funds for the
participation in the Family Counseling Program.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-06-05 authorizing the Gila County Probation Department's
participation in the FY 2011-2012 Family Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court,
Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying that a matching
fund requirement of $2,308 for the Program will be provided by the County. 

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-06-05



 
 

ARIZONA SUPREME COURT 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS 

JUVENILE JUSTICE SERVICES DIVISION 
 

FAMILY COUNSELING 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012 
Board Resolution No. 11-06-05 

 
 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby elects to have the county participate in the Family 
Counseling Program as provided for in A.R.S. Section ' 8-261 through ' 8-265 for fiscal year 2011-
2012. 
 
The Board of Supervisors resolves that $ 2,308 in matching funds will be provided by this county’s 
Board of Supervisors for Gila County, Arizona. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ ____________________________ 
 

Clerk of the Board Date 
 
_____________________________________________ ____________________________ 
 

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors Date 
 
 
Please file with: 
 
Arizona Supreme Court     Approved as to form: 
Administrative Office of the Courts 
Juvenile Justice Services Division 
Attention: Susan Alameda, Program Specialist        
1501 West Washington Street, Suite 337   Bryan Chambers  
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-3231    Chief Deputy County Attorney 
         
 



ARF-614     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer
Submitted By: Lisa King, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Probation

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

October 29, 2010 - October 28, 2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 with the United States
Marshals Service.

Background Information
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center is currently providing services to the
United States Marshals Service by contracting bed space for the custody and care of
Federal detainees at a rate of $131.40 per day per detainee.  This service generates
additional revenue for Gila County.

Evaluation
The purpose of Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 between
Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and the United
States Marshals Service is to address the United States Marshals Service's need to
exceed the estimated detainee days and cost indicated in Limited Use Agreement No.
08-99-0015.  Note that this is not a new contractural agreement but merely
notification that Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 estimates are insufficient to
meet current United States Marshals Service juvenile housing demands.  Limited Use
Agreement No. 08-99-0015 currently has a listed guideline/estimate of 150 detainee
days at a cost of $19,710.  The existing guidelines/estimate for both detainee days
and cost have been and will continue to be exceeded in order to accommodate the
operational needs of the United States Marshals Service.  At minimum, the
anticipated needs will be twice the original guideline/estimate.  The per diem rate will
remain at $131.40 per day per detainee.

Conclusion
Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 between Gila County, on



Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 between Gila County, on
behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and the United States Marshals
Service allows Gila County Juvenile Detention Center to continue providing detention
services to the United States Marshals Service by increasing the detainee days and
cost indicated in the original Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 by at least twice
the original guidline/estimate of 150 days and $19,710.00 resulting in additional
income for Gila County. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends the approval of Attachment No.
1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 with the United States Marshals Service.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Attachment No. 1 to the Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 between
Gila County, on behalf of Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and the United
States Marshals Service to increase the detainee days and cost indicated in the
original Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 by at least twice the original estimate
of 150 detainee days and cost of $19,710 in order to meet the juvenile housing
demands of the United States Marshals Service.

Attachments
Link: Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015
Link: Original Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015



LIMITED USE AGREEMENT
Between The United States Marshals Service and Gila County Juvenile Center

Attachment # 1

United States Marshals Service
405 W. Congress St., #2300
Tucson, AZ 85701

Gila County Juvenile Center
1425 E. South St.
Globe, AZ 85501

Purpose:
The purpose of this attachment to the existing Limited Use Agreement (LUA) is to address the U.S. Marshals Service's
need to exceed the estimated prisoner days and cost indicated in the agreement. Note that this is not a new contractual
agreement but merely notification that original LUA estimates are insufficient to meet current U.S. Marshals Service
juvenile housing demands.

Article I - Total Prisoner Days and Contract Amount:
1. The existing LUA currently has a listed guideline/estimate of 150 prisoner days at a cost of$19,710.00.
2. It is recognized that the existing guideline/estimate for both prisoner days and cost have been and will continue to

be exceeded in order to accommodate the operational needs of the United States Marshals Service.
3. At minimum, the anticipated needs will be twice of the original guideline/estimate.

Article II - Per Diem:
1. The per diem rate will remain at $131.40 per juvenile.

#C:>/I
DateBoard Of Supervisors Date

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman



Bryan B. Chambers,
Chief Deputy County Attorney







ARF-615     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Partnership for

Rural America
Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

2010-2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Approve payment of Invoice #SRS-2011-004 in the sum of $2,851 for Gila County's Service
Fee from Partnership for Rural America.

Background Information
Coconino County Supervisor Liz Archuleta and Yavapai County School Superintendent Tim
Carter formed the “Arizona Secure Rural Schools Coalition Action Team," an alliance of local
elected officials committed to advocating for a long-term reauthorization of the Secure Rural
Schools.

The Forest Counties Schools Coalition and  National Association of Counties (NACo) joined to
lead the Secure Rural Schools (SRS) reauthorization effort and formed a Partnership for Rural
America, a group of consultants who worked with the counties to get the reauthorization in
the President’s budget. The Partnership requested each state association County Supervisors
Association (CSA) and Arizona Association of Counties (AACo) to form a Coalition Action
Team. Supervisor Liz Archuleta and AACo President Tim Carter asked at least one supervisor
from each county to help serve on the Team. Consequently, Supervisor Tommie Martin was
appointed to represent Gila County.

The Partnership for Rural America contracted with a consultant to coordinate the nationwide
effort to ask Congress for an extension of SRS. In order to fund the activities of this
consultant, the Partnership is asking each county that receives SRS payments to make a
financial contribution based on its share of Arizona’s SRS payments. (Calculation is 1/10th of
1% of the FY08 timber receipt payment to Gila County).

Evaluation
Efforts to extend SRS made progress, the President’s budget for fiscal year 2012 includes a
reauthorization of Secure Rural Schools. While the reauthorization is not at current levels, it
is a good first step. The President’s budget for fiscal year 2012 proposes a five-year extension
of SRS. However, the budget calls for 2012 to be funded at approximately the same level as
2011 and then ramping down payments over the next four years (decrease of 20% in 2013,
10% in 2014, 25% in 2015, and a final 25% in 2016.

Conclusion
While Arizona’s counties are facing challenging financial times, the cost of this contribution
pales in comparison to the potential loss of SRS funding if efforts fail due to a lack of support.



Recommendation
Staff recommends payment of Invoice SRS-2011-004 in the sum of $2,851 to Partnership for
Rural America.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Invoice No. SRS-2011-004 in the sum of $2,851 for Gila County’s Service Fee to
the Partnership for Rural America for the Reauthorization of Secure Rural Schools funding.

Attachments
Link: SRS Invoice 2011-004
Link: SRS Action Team e-mail
Link: Timber Receipt Payments













ARF-644     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: David Caddell, GEST

Program Manager
Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Program
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Waiver of Fees for the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for GEST Program

Background Information
The Demonstration Project began in 1975 and was founded on the principle of "Acceptance."  Establishing
community acceptance of the individuals with disabilities is and always will be their priority.  In 1996 the program
name was changed to Gila Employment and Special Training (G.E.S.T.) but their goal remains the same as they
provide daily living skills and employment supports to all G.E.S.T. clients.

Their Mission Statement is "Improving the Quality of Life for all Residents through Self Sufficiency."   The G.E.S.T.
Program coordinates with County, State and Federal Governments in a joint effort to better the citizens of Gila
County.

Evaluation
The use of the Fairgrounds kitchen area will give the G.E.S.T. clients and staff a place to prepare the food they will
be serving at their cookout the next day.

Conclusion
This waiver of fees for the use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall kitchen area will greatly assist the G.E.S.T. clients
and staff.

Recommendation
The management staff recommends approval of the waiver of fees for the use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall
kitchen area for the G.E.S.T. program event.

Suggested Motion
Approval of request submitted by the Gila Employment & Special Training (GEST) Department to waive fees for use
of the Fairgrounds' Exhibit Hall in order to conduct a GEST program event on June 30, 2011.

Attachments
Link: GEST Application











ARF-620     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services Program Manager
Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

07/01/11-6/30/2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement HG854565 Amendment No 5 with Arizona Department of Health Services

Background Information
The Tuberculosis (TB) Control Program is a required service of the Gila County Office of Health.  This is the
5th amendment to Contract No. HG854565 covering the period July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2013.  This grant provides for
testing, treatment, case management and communicable disease investigations regarding TB in Gila County.  This amendment
extends the contract through June 30, 2012, and adjusts budget line items, but there is no change in the total amount of the
previous amendment.

Evaluation
This funding will allow Gila County to provide Tuberculosis services and education in Gila County.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would not be able to provide Tuberculosis services to Gila County residents.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health Services Program Manager that the Board of Supervisors approve the Intergovernmental
Agreement Amendment, contract number HG854565 amendment 5 with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount
of $12,000 to provide tuberculosis control services for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG854565) with the Arizona Department of
Health Services in the amount of $12,000 to provide continued Tuberculosis Control Program services for the period July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Original TB IGA
Link: TB Amendment 5



















































ARF-549     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Jendean Sartain, Deputy Director of Health Services
Submitted By: Matthew Bolinger, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 thru June 30, 2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Renewal of Real Estate Lease Agreement with the High Desert Humane Society for the Rabies Control Facility located at 700 W.
Hackney Rd., Globe, AZ 85501. 

Background Information
Gila County has been in a Lease Agreement with the Desert High Humane Society, Inc. since July 1, 2001, (previous name on
Lease Agreement Gila Humane Society). The previous Lease Agreement term was for July 1, 2001, through June 30, 2006. The
previous annual lease payment for the facility was $1,200 or $100 per month. The new lease term will begin July 1, 2011, and will
terminate on June 30, 2012. The annual lease payment will be $6,000 or $500 per month. Payment is to be made in one lump sum
or in quarterly payments for the fiscal year 2012. The premises may only be used for conducting Gila County's Rabies Control
Program. Gila County will be responsible for any remodeling, structural improvements, and maintanence to maintain the
premises in good repair at all times and is responsible to maintain liability insurance in a total aggregate sum of at least
$1,000,000.
 

Evaluation
It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve this Lease Agreement between the High Desert Humane Society, Inc. and
Gila County for the facility located at 700 W. Hackney Rd., Globe, AZ which is used for impound services so that dogs captured
in southern Gila County and surrounding areas can remain in a safe enviroment, thus giving them a better chance of being
returned to their owner.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving the Lease Agreement for Impound Services between the High Desert Humane Society, Inc.
and Gila County, animals captured in southern Gila County and surrounding areas will remain close to their owners reducing the
occurrence of adoptions and euthanasias. Gila County will be responsible to pay $1500 quarterly to the High Desert Humane
Society.   This contract will be in effect from July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Recommendation
The Director of the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
Real Estate Lease Agreement renewal between Gila County and High Desert Humane Society, Inc. for the period of July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the renewal of a Real Estate Lease Agreement between High Desert Humane Society, Inc. and Gila County at a cost of
$500 per month for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Original Lease-July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2006
Link: Renewal Lease-July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012



















ARF-647     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Elections Department

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

3-24-2011 to 3-23-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Maintenance Agreement for Live Video Recording of Elections Ballots with VBrick Systems Inc.

Background Information
A.R.S. 16-612(c) provides that for any statewide, county or legistative election, the office in charge of
elections shall provide for a live video recording of the custody of all ballots while the ballots are present
in a tabulation room in the counting center.  The live video recording shall include date and time
indicators and shall be linked to the secretary of state's website.

Evaluation
The equipment the Elections Department utilizes was purchased from VBrick.  Additionally, VBrick
has provided service and maintenance, as well as the live video recording/streaming since 2008.  The
maintenance agreement would allow Elections to continue to use VBrick's ongoing service and
maintenance.

Conclusion
The agreement will allow VBrick to continue to provide ongoing service and maintenance services for the
required live video recording of the custody of ballots for Gila County Electons from March 24, 2011, to
March 23, 2014.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the agreement with VBrick
for service and maintenance of the live video recording system of ballots for a period of three years.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Maintenace Agreement between Gila County and VBrick Systems Inc. whereby VBrick will
provide for the maintenace of the live video recording system used in the recording of ballots while in
the tabulation room in the counting center in the amount of $8,167.06 from March 24, 2011, to March
23, 2014. 

Attachments
Link: VBrick Systems Inc Maintenance Agreement

























ARF-648     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Fiscal Year: 2009 - 2010 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4/01/2011 - - 9/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Transit Agreement with San Carlos Tribe. 

Background Information
During the Board of Supervisors' January 18, 2011, meeting, the Board recommended the distribution
of funds from the LTAF (Local Area Transportation Funds) II account.

Evaluation
Attached is the Transit Agreement with the San Carlos Tribe for the distribution of LTAF II funds as
recommended by the Board of Supervisors.  

Conclusion
The distribution of these funds is necessary to keep within the LTAF II program guidelines. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
attached Transit Agreements for the distribution of LTAF II funds. 

Suggested Motion
Authorization for the Chairman to sign a Transit Agreement between Gila County and the San Carlos
Apache Tribe for the distribution of LTAF II (Local Transportation Area Funds) funds to the San Carlos
Tribe Transit Program in the amount of $5,000.  

Attachments
Link: Transit Agreement Tribe



















ARF-611     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- M     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

6-30-2011 to 7-31-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 6510.526.REC04/8-2010 for the Pine Creek Canyon Road Project to
extend contract period.

Background Information
Effective September 21, 2010, Gila County and C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc. entered into a contract
whereby CL Williams agreed to provide engineering services related to final roadway and major drainage
improvements for Pine Creek Canyon Road located within the unincorporated area of Gila County
known as Pine, Arizona.  The contract will expire June 30, 2011.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to the contract will allow the contract period to be extended to July 31, 2012.  There
have been numerous conflicts with utilities and easements that have caused delays in completing the
contract scope of work for this project. 

Conclusion
Extending the contract to July 31, 2012 will allow CL Williams Consulting the ability to complete the
engineering portion of the project.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1
to Contract No. 6510.526.REC04/8-2010 to extend to July 31, 2012, for engineering services of the
Pine Creek Canyon Road Project.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
6510.526.REC04/8-2010 between Gila County and C.L. Williams Consulting Inc. to extend the contract
period to July 31, 2012, for engineering services on the Pine Creek Canyon Road Project.  Contract
term, July 1, 2011, through July 31, 2012. 

Attachments
Link: Original CL Williams Contract
Link: Amendment No. 1 Contract 6510.526.REC04/8-2010





























ARF-613     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- N     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: 2009 - 2010 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4/1/2011 - 9/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
2 IGAs with City of Globe (Globe Sr. Center & Arizona Eastern Copper Spike Train Excursion) & Payson
Senior Center Transit Agreement

Background Information
During the Board of Supervisors' January 18, 2011, meeting, the Board recommended the distribution
of funds from the LTAF (Local Area Transportation Funds) II account.

Evaluation
Attached are two Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs) and one Transit Agreement for the distribution
of LTAF II funds as recommended by the Board of Supervisors. The two IGAs are with the City of Globe
Senior Center, and City of Globe Arizona Eastern Copper Spike Train Excursion and the Transit
Agreement is with the Payson Senior Center.

Conclusion
The distribution of these funds is necessary to keep within the LTAF II program guidelines. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
attached three IGA/Transit Agreements for the distribution of LTAF II funds. 

Suggested Motion
Authorization for the Chairman to sign two separate Intergovernmental Agreements and a Transit
Agreement for the distribution of LTAF II (Local Area Transportation Funds) to the following
entities: City of Globe Senior Center in the amount of $10,000; City of Globe Arizona Eastern Copper
Spike Train Excursion in the amount of $10,000; and the Payson Senior Center in the amount of
$10,000. 

Attachments
Link: IGA Globe Senior
Link: IGA Globe Train Excursion
Link: Globe resolutions for IGA's
Link: Transit agreement w/Payson Senior
Link: Payson Senior Addendum







































ARF-589     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- O     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Date signed by both Parties-June 30, 2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C051-09-02 with Arizona Dept. of Commerce, Energy Office.

Background Information
This contract has been in existence since August 2009.  Eligibility requirements for services are as follows: income
must be at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines and the person must reside in Gila County.

Priority for services will be given to the elderly, the disabled, families with children and high residential energy
users and households with a high energy burden.

Funding will be used to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Exhibit A will revise line item amounts in the following ways: administrative costs from the original amount
of $11,232 to the revised amount of $13,936; training and technical assistance (T&TA) from the original amount of
$21,923 to the revised amount of $794.36; and program operations from the original amount of $79,161 to
the revised amount of $124,624.64.  The total budget amount will change from $112,316 to $139,355.

Original Commerce Contract C051-09-02 was signed by Chairman Shirley L. Dawson on 8/11/2009.
Amendment No. 1 was signed by Chairman Michael A. Pastor on 8/16/2010.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 2, Exhibit A will allow the revision of budget line items from the original amounts as noted in the
background information section.  This revision will allow for changing funding amounts in line items for
administration costs, training and technical assistance, and program operations.

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 2,  Exhibit A, line item amounts will be adjusted to provide more funding under line
items administration costs, program operation costs and a decrease in funding for line item technical and training
assistance, which will allow the Gila County Weatherization Assistance Program to continue to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action/Housing Manager recommends approval of Amendment No. 2,  Exhibit A to
Contract No. C051-09-02.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2,  Exhibit A, to Contract No. C051-09-02 between the State of Arizona, Department of
Commerce Energy Office, and the Gila County Community Services Division, Weatherization Assistance Program,
which allocates revision of line item fund amounts for administration costs, training and technical assistance, and
program operations to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the
period effective June 28, 2011, through June 30, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 2 Contract No. C051-09-02
Link: Amendment No. 1 Contract No. C051-09-02
Link: Original Contract No. C051-09-02







































































































ARF-599     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- P     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Date of signature by both parties-3/31/2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. C037-09-02 State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office

Background Information
This contract has been in existence since May 2009.  The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 was
enacted to preserve and create jobs and promote economic recovery, assist those most impacted by the recession,
provide investments needed to increase economic efficiency by spurring technological advances in science and
health, invest in transportation, environmental protection, and other infrastructure that will provide long-term
economic benefits, stabilize State and local government budgets, in order to minimize and avoid reductions in
essential services and counterproductive State and Local tax increases.  Recipients shall use grant funds in a
manner that maximizes job creation and economic benefit.

Eligibility requirements are as follows; income must be at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines,
must reside in Gila County, excluding Indian Reservations.  Priority will be given to identifying and providing
weatherization assistance to the following eligible households: elderly persons, persons with disabilities, families
with children, and high residential energy users and households with a high energy burden.

Amendment No. 3 will provide the following line item revisions; training and technical assistance (T&TA) from
$330,100 to $155,048.02, program operations from $1,313,204 to $1,488,255.98.  Total budget amount will stay at
$1,744,457.

Contract Commerce C037-09-02 was signed by Chairman Shirley L. Dawson on May 19, 2009.
Amendment No. 1 was signed by Chairman Dawson on March 23, 2010.
Amendment No. 2 was signed by Chairman Michael A. Pastor on August 16, 2010.

Evaluation
Along with changes in portions of the terms and conditions sections, Amendment No. 3 will replace Exhibit A to
allow for revisions of budget line items from the original amounts as noted in the background information section. 
This revision will allow for changing funding amounts in line items for training and technical assistance and
program operations.

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 3, which along with other changes includes Exhibit A, line item amounts will be
adjusted to provide more funding under program operations which will allow Gila County Weatherization Program
to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action/Housing Manager recommends approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No.
C037-09-02.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. C037-09-02 between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce
Energy Office and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Weatherization Assistance Program,
which allocates the revision of line item fund amounts for training and technical assistance and program
operations to continue to provide weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period
effective upon signatures by both parties through March 31, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 3 to C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office



Link: Amendment No. 3 to C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
Link: Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C037-09-02
Link: Amendment No. 1 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce of Energy Office
Link: Original Contract No. C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office





























































































































































ARF-600     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- Q     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA Department Program Manager
Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Reappointments of members to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board.

Background Information
Under the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998 (Section 117), it is a requirement that Local Workforce
Investment Boards (LWIBs) recommend and approve membership under the category set forth in WIA and then
forwarded to the chief elected officials for final approval.

Evaluation
The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board recommended and approved reappointments at its February 24, 2011,
meeting.  Reappointments to the board are then forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for final approval.

Conclusion
The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board has recommended and approved reappointments for the following:  

Ed Carpenter-Representing Private Sector - retroactive May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2014
Cliff Potts-Representing Private Sector - retroactive May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2014
Jeri Byrne-Representing Private Sector - July 1, 2011 - July 1, 2015
Diana Russell-Representing WIA Dislocated Worker Program - retroactive January 1, 2011 - January 1, 2015
Charlie Estrada-Representing Labor Organization - April 1, 2011 - April 1, 2015

Recommendation
Recommendation to accept the reappointments to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board for Ed Carpenter -
Private Sector for an additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015; Cliff Potts - Private
Sector for an additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015; Jeri Byrne - Private Sector,
for an additional four-year term from July 1, 2011 - July 2015; Diana Russell - WIA Dislocated Worker Program, for
an additional four-year term retroactive January 1, 2011 - January 1, 2015; Charlie Estrada - Labor Organization,
for additional four year term retroactive from April 1, 2011 - April 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of reappointments to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board for Ed Carpenter - Private Sector for an
additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015; Cliff Potts - Private Sector for an additional
four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011 - May 8, 2015; Jeri Byrne - Private Sector, for an additional four-year
term from July 1, 2011 - July 2015; Diana Russell - WIA Dislocated Worker Program, for an additional four-year
term retroactive January 1, 2011 - January 1, 2015; and Charlie Estrada - Labor Organization, for additional four
year term retroactive from April 1, 2011 - April 2015.

Attachments
Link: WIB Reappointments Spreadsheet



(GILA/PINAL WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD) 
MAY 2011 

 
NAME OF MEMBER  TYPE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
 

Mark with A, B, C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A ‐for existing vacancy or 
B ‐to fill a vacancy created by (provide 
name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and 
include number of years served 

DATES OF TERM  LENGTH OF TERM  
(# of years) 

ED CARPENTER  C  C (5/8/07)  11  May 8, 2007 – May 8, 2011  4 
CLIFF POTTS  C  C (5/8/07)  11  May 8, 2007 – May 8, 2011  4 

JERI BYRNE  C  C (5/8/07)  11  July 1, 2007– July 1, 2011  4 

CHARLIE ESTRADA  C  C (5/8/07)  10  April 1, 2007 – April  1, 2011  4 
MARIAN SHEPPARD  C  C (3/18/08)  11   January 1, 2008 – January 1, 2012  4 
DIANA RUSSELL  C  C (5/8/07)  9   January 1, 2007 – January 1, 2011   4 
BERNADETTE KNIFFIN  C  C (5/8/07)  4   March 22, 2007 – March 22, 2011  4 
BRAD MCCORMICK  C  C (6/9/09)  2  October 1, 2008 – October 1, 2012   4 
BILLIE LAVIN  C  C (6/9/09)  2  October 1, 2008 – October 1, 2012  4 
CINDY FLETCHER  C  C (5/8/07)  10  January 1, 2007 – January 1, 2011  4 
BRIAN TAPP  C  A (4/19/11)    December 28, 2010 – December 28, 2014  4 
JOAN MOORE  C  A  (4/19/11)    December 28, 2010 – December 28, 2014  4 
Other WIB members that represent Pinal 
County are appointed by Pinal County 
BOS. 
 

Per Gila/Pinal Bylaws‐when a member resigns there isn’t a person appointed to serve out their term; a new 
person is appointed for a new 4‐year term. 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appoint. 
 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.   
 
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 



ARF-630     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- R     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-2011 to 6-30-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Service Agreement for satellite service on the Sheriff's Office mobile command trailer.

Background Information
Tachyon Networks Inc. will provide voice communication services via satellite for the Gila
County Sheriff's Office mobile command trailer.

Evaluation
Tachyon Networks shall provide the Sheriff's Office with two-way satellite-based broadband
network access service for the mobile command trailer.  Also provided will be customer
premise equipment and maintenance for use with the communications service.  Service and
equipment include:  (1) 1544Kbps downlad x 512Kbps upload, (2) DID numbers, and (1) VOIP
500.

Conclusion
Tachyon Networks will provide the satellite service and equipment for a monthly fee of $325. 
Agreement term will be from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the agreement
with Tachyon Networks Inc. to provide satellite service for the mobile command trailer for one
year.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Service Agreement between Gila County and Tachyon Networks Inc. whereby
Tachyon Networks will provide voice communications via satellite for the Sheriff's Office
mobile command trailer in the amount of $325 per month from July 1, 2011, to June 30,
2012.

Attachments
Link: Tachyon Networks Service Agreement

















ARF-626     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- S     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-2011 to 6-30-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.HP/4-2011 for Hillcrest Peak Radio Equipment

Background Information
The Sheriff's Office leases from ACP Inc., a site and radio equipment located at Hillcrest
Peak in Payson, Arizona. 

Evaluation
Hillcreast Peak is located at 902B Hillcrest Drive, Payson, AZ.  The agreement allows the
Sheriff's Office to lease radio equipment at the site for its communications needs for a period
of 3 years.

Conclusion
The County shall pay ACP, Inc. the amount of $252.36 per month for lease of the site
and radio equipment.  The monthly fee shall include the response and repair of any problems
encountered with defective items on the antenna system.

Lease period shall be from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014, with a renewal option period for 2
additional 1-year periods.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Site Lease
Agreement No. 1005.340.HP/4-2011 for Hillcreast Peak radio equipment for 3 years.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Site Lease Agreement 1005.340.HP/4-2011 between Gila County and ACP Inc.,
whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the site and radio equipment for $252.36 per month
from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014.

Attachments
Link: Hillcreast Site Lease Agreement









ARF-627     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- T     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-2011 to 6-30-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.RC/4-2011 for Five Mile Hill Radio Equipment

Background Information
The Sheriff's Office leases radio equipment at the Five Mile Communication site located in
Coconino National Forest.

Evaluation
Five Mile Hill communication site is located in Coconino County, Arizona.  The agreement
allows the Sheriff's Office to lease radio equipment at the site for its communications needs. 
The lease agreement would allow the Sheriff's Office to lease the site and equipment for a term
of 3 years.

Conclusion
For the site lease the County shall pay Rim Communications the amount of $975 per month
for 12 months.  At each anniversary date thereafter there will be a 4% increase to the monthly
fee: 2012-2013 $1,014 monthly, 2013-2014 $1,054.56 monthly.

Lease period shall be from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014, with a renewal option period of 2
additional 1-year periods.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Site Lease
Agreement No.1005.340.RC/4-2011 for Five Mile Hill radio equipment for a 3-year period.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.RC/4-2011 between Gila County and Rim
Communications whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the site and radio eqiupment for $975
per month from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014.  The monthly fee shall be increased 4% at the
end of each 1-year term.

Attachments
Link: Five Mile Hill Site Lease Agreement









ARF-628     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- U     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: John Armer,

Sheriff
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-2011 to 6-30-2014 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.DPM/5-2011 for Diamond Point Mountain Radio
Equipment

Background Information
The Sheriff's Office leases from R&M Repeater LLC, a site and radio equipment at Diamond
Point Mountain for its communications needs.

Evaluation
The lease agreement would allow the Sheriff's Office to lease the radio equipment at the site
for a period of 3 years from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014. 

Conclusion
The County shall pay R&M Repeater, LLC, the amount of $325 per month for each transmitter
located on the premises.  Currently the County is leasing 2 sites for $650 per month..  At
each anniversary date thereafter there will be a 4% increase to the monthly fee;  2012-2013
$676 monthly, 2013-2014 $703 monthly.

Lease period shall be from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014, with a renewal option period of 2
additional 1-year periods.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Site Lease
Agreement No. 1005.340.DPM/5-2011 at Diamond Point Mountain radio equipment for 3
years.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.341.DPM/5-2011 between Gila County and R&M
Repeater LLC, whereby the Sheriff's Office will lease the site and radio equipment for $650 per
month from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014.  The monthly fee shall be increased 4% at the
end of each 1 year term.

Attachments
Link: Diamond Point Site Lease Agreement















ARF-679     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- V     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Submitted For: David Caddell, GEST

Program Manager
Submitted By: David Caddell, Community Services

Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Program

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Extended Supported Employment Services Contract No. E5345511 Amendment No. 11 with Arizona Economic
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration

Background Information
This Amendment will extend our current contract No. E5345511, which expires on June 30, 2011, from July 1,
2011, to September 30, 2011. The rates are not adjusted for the extension period and shall remain the same as for
the previous contract period. We currently have one client in Payson that we serve under this contract.

Evaluation
This contract allows the Gila County GEST (Gila Employement and Special Training) Program to provide Extended
Supported Employment Services to those clients whose Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES),
Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) authorization indicated a specific need for this service.

Conclusion
This amendment allows GEST to continue to provide Extended Supported Employment Services to those
ADES/RSA clients who are authorized and have indicated a specific need for this service. This amendment will
extend the current contract until September 30, 2011. The rates are not adjusted for the extension period and shall
remain the same as for the previous contract period.

Recommendation
The GEST Program Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 11 to Contract
No. E5345511 for Extended Supported Employment Services, which will enable GEST to continue to provide
employment services to Vocational Rehabilitation clients in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Extended Supported Employment Services Contract No. E5345511 between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, and Gila County, dba Gila
Employment and Special Training (GEST), to provide extended supported employment services to vocational
rehabilitation clients through September 30, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Amendment 11 Letter
Link: Amendment 11
Link: Gila County Signature Page
Link: Original Contract No. E5345511



From:                              White, Benjamin, R [BenjaminWhite@azdes.gov]
Sent:                               Wednesday, June 22, 2011 11:51 AM
To:                                   Caddell, Dave
Cc:                                   Pasalic, Vanja; Spanier, Karen, D   
Subject:                          Contract Extension Amendment
Attachments:                 E5345511 A11 - GILA COUNTY dba Gila 
Employment and Special Training.doc
 
Importance:                   High

 

 

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/dcaddell/Desktop/RSA/ESE%20Contract%20E5345511/Contract%20Extension%20Amendment.htm

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/dcaddell/Deskt...ract%20E5345511/Contract%20Extension%20Amendment.htm (1 of 2) [6/23/2011 1:11:50 PM]

 

 
 
 
 
Janice K. Brewer
Governor

  
Clarence H. Carter

Director

 
June 22, 2011
 
David Caddell, Divisional Pgm Mgr, Ofc of Community Svcs

GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Training
5515 S Apache St, Ste 200
Globe, AZ  85501

 
RE:        Contract E5345511

 
Dear Mr. Caddell,

Attached is a copy of amendment 11 to your contract E5345511 with the Department of Economic Security, 
Rehabilitation Services Administration.  Please complete the RIGHT side of the signature block on the 
amendment form by adding the name and title of the person who will be signing the amendment, then print two 
(2) copies and have both signed and dated.

In order to proceed with the extension, mail both copies of the Amendment within five (5) business days of 
receiving this letter to:

                        DES/RSA Contracts Unit



file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/dcaddell/Desktop/RSA/ESE%20Contract%20E5345511/Contract%20Extension%20Amendment.htm

                        PO Box 6123 Site Code 930A
                        Phoenix, AZ  85005-6123
Because of the shortness of time, as Proof of Intent you may FAX one copy of the signed and dated 
amendment and the insurance to (602) 542-3705 or scan them and return them by email.  It will still be 
necessary for you to mail the original signature amendments to the address above.  If you 
have any questions, please call Benjamin White at (602) 364-0842.

Sincerely
 
 

Vanja Pasalic, RSA Contracts Unit Manager
Service Summary:  SSBG - Extended Supported Employment

cc:       contract file
 

NOTICE: This e-mail (and any attachments) may contain PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL information and is intended only 
for the use of the specific individual(s) to whom it is addressed. It may contain information that is privileged and 
confidential under state and federal law. This information may be used or disclosed only in accordance with law, and you 
may be subject to penalties under law for improper use or further disclosure of the information in this e-mail and its 
attachments. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the person named above by reply e-mail, 
and then delete the original e-mail. Thank you.

file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/dcaddell/Deskt...ract%20E5345511/Contract%20Extension%20Amendment.htm (2 of 2) [6/23/2011 1:11:50 PM]



 
 
 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
1.    CONTRACTOR (Name and address) 2.    CONTRACT ID NUMBER 
 

GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Training 
5515 S Apache St, Ste 200 
Globe, AZ  85501 

 

 E5345511 
 
3.    AMENDMENT NUMBER 

11 
 

4. THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT 
 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-2537, the above referenced contract is extended for the period of July 01, 2011 through 
September 30, 2011. 
 
The rates are not adjusted for the extension period and shall remain the same as for the previous contract period. 
 

 
 

5. In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-393.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in 
Iran.  

 In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-391.06, the Contractor certifies that the Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in 
Sudan.  

6.     EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AS HERETOFORE CHANGED AND/OR 
AMENDED REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.  THE AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE 
OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN.  BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE 
SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTRACT. 

7. 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY 

8.    NAME OF CONTRACTOR 
 GILA COUNTY dba Gila Employment and Special Training 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL 
 
 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL 
 
 

TYPED NAME 
Elizabeth G. Csaki, CPPB 

TYPED NAME 
Michael A. Pastor 

TITLE 
Contract Administration Manager 

TITLE 
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

DATE 
 
 

DATE 
 
 

 

COAS2  Bi-lateral Amendment 
Revised:  4/1/09 



 
 

Gila County Community Services Division 
“A Community Action Agency” 

5515 S. Apache Ave. suite 200, Globe, AZ 85501 
(928) 402- 8650 

"Improving the Quality of Life for all Residents, one life at a time"  
 

 

 
David Fletcher 
Director 
 

 

Amendment number 11 to contract E5345511 (Extended Supported Employment) between 
Gila County, dba Gila Employment and Special Training and Department of Economic 
Security, (DES) Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA), to extend the current 
contract from July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011. The rates are not adjusted for the 
extension period and shall remain the same as for the previous contract terms. 
 
 
 
 

Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 

__________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

        Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 

 
 

    
 















































































































ARF-673     Item #:  5- W     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Reporting Period: May 3, 2011, BOS Meeting Minutes
Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer,

Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer,

Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
May 3, 2011, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 3, 2011, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
Link: BOS 05-03-11 Meeting Minutes





















ARF-634     Item #:  5- X     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for March 2011
Submitted For: Kimberly Rust,

Constable Clerk
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,

Constable - Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for March 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the March 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Constable

Attachments
Link: Globe Constable Report 03/11
Link: Globe Constable Report 03/11







































ARF-635     Item #:  5- Y     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for April 2011
Submitted For: Kimberly Rust,

Constable Clerk
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,

Constable - Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for April 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the April 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Constable

Attachments
Link: Globe Constable Report for 04/11



































ARF-633     Item #:  5- Z     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  
Reporting Period: Payson regional Constable Monthly Report for May 2011
Submitted For: Colt White, Payson

Regional Constable
Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,

Constable - Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for May 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable

Attachments
Link: Payson Constable Report for 05/11



















































ARF-584     Item #:  5- AA     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 06/28/2011  

Reporting Period: Human Resources reports for June 14, 2011, June 21, 2011 and June
28, 2011

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for June 14, 2011, June 21, 2011 and June 28, 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of Human Resources reports for June 14, 2011, June 21, 2011, and June 28, 2011.

Attachments
Link: 06/14/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 06/21/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 06/28/11 Human Resources Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 14, 2011 

 
 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Thomas R. Kaufman – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 
07/05/11 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing Mark Warden 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. William R. Flower – Payson Justice Court – Temporary Justice of the Peace Pro-
Tem – 05/02/11 – General Fund 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

3. Christopher Beamon – Probation – Juvenile Detention Shift Supervisor – 
05/29/11 – General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

4. Ramona Scales – Health Department – Public Health Nurse I – 05/02/11 – 
Change to exempt status 

5. Leona Bowman – Community Services – Community Services Worker Senior – 
05/23/11 – Change in number of hours worked from 32 hours per week to 40 
hours per week 

6. Roland Boyer – Public Works – Materials Tester/Safety Representative – 
07/01/11 – Change in fund codes 

7. Cecilia Bejarano – Community Services – Executive Administrative Assistant – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

8. Malissa Buzan – Community Services – Housing Services Program Manager – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

9. Martin Clay – Community Services – Business Services Representative/One Stop 
Manager – 05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

10. Roxanne Dennhardt – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

11. Denise Dickison – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

12. Michele Epperson – Finance – Payroll Specialist – 05/23/11 – Change in fund 
codes 

13. David Fletcher – Community Services – Director of Community Services – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

14. Dave Franquero – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

15. Sally Fulmer – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist Senior 
– 05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

16. Carolyn Haro – Community Services – Manager Community Services – 05/23/11 
– Change in fund codes 

17. Lisa Lane – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 05/23/11 
– Change in fund codes 

18. Diana Russell – Community Services – REPAC Program Manager – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 



 
HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
June 14, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 

19. Celina Salinas – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

20. Laurie Sauro – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

21. Donna Smith – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist Senior 
– 05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

22. Shane Stuler – Health Department – Environmental Health Manager – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

23. Melvina Takala-Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

24. Christina Throop – Community Services – Deputy REPAC Program Manager – 
05/23/11 – Change in fund codes 

25. Dana True – Community Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

26. Barbara Valencia – Community Services – WIA Program Manager – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

27. Breena York – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 05/23/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVI CE: 
 

28. Thomas H. Buckner – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Part Time – 06/27/11 – 
General Fund – DOH 07/26/06 – Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

29. Melissa Ann Brown – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/05/11 – General 
Fund – Replacing Cynthia Taylor 

30. Casper Taki – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/05/11 – General Fund – 
replacing George Fishel 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 21, 2011 

 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Renee Omstead – Health Department – Accounting Clerk – 06/17/11 – Various 
Funds – DOH 07/12/10 – Resignation 

2. Stephanie Levario Mata – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 06/17/11 – General Fund – DOH 09/27/04 – Resignation 

3. Donna Smith – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist Sr. – 
06/17/11 – Various Funds – DOH 08/31/92 – break off of Mohave/La Paz  
REPAC Consortium 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

4. Dawna VanPraag – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 07/05/11 – 
WIA Workforce Investment Act Fund 

5. Joshua Gosnell – County Attorney – Administrative Clerk Temporary – 06/20/11 
– General Fund 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

6. Renee Omstead – Health Department – Accounting Clerk – 06/06/11 – Various 
Funds 

7. Jeremy Thurman – Finance – Accountant – 06/06/11 – General Fund 
8. Amanda Roady – Finance – Accountant Senior – 06/06/11 – General Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 28, 2011 

 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Vino Burnette – Recorder – Voter Outreach Assistant– 06/17/10 – General Fund – 
DOH 01/24/11 – Resignation 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Justin P. Flores – BOS – Temporary Laborer – 07/05/11 – Constituent Services II 
Funds 

3. Eduard J. Gonzales – BOS– Temporary Laborer – 07/05/11 – Constituent 
Services II Funds 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

4. Carolyn Borcherding – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – 
05/30/11 – Longevity step increase 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

5. Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – Vacated by Max Coombs – 
Vacated on January 31, 2011 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 

6. Matthew J. Hill – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 06/27/11 – General Fund – 
DOH 08/31/09 - Resignation 


	Agenda
	Item2.0A.  Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to Officer Brian Hudson of the Globe Police Department.
	Item2.0B.  May's Spotlight on Employees Program
	Item2.0C.  County Supervisors Association Update of Activities
	Item2.0C._Att1_CSA Year-End Report
	CSA’s Purpose
	The CSA is a non-partisan forum for Arizona’s  55 county supervisors to address important issues facing local constituents, providing a mechanism to share information and to advance a proactive state and federal policy agenda.
	Executive Committee Membership
	Hon. David Tenney, Navajo County
	President
	Hon. Max W. Wilson, Maricopa County
	President Elect
	Hon. Lenore Stuart, Yuma County
	First Vice President
	Hon. Richard Lunt, Greenlee County
	Second Vice President
	Hon. David Snider, Pinal County
	Third Vice President
	Hon. Elizabeth Archuleta, Coconino County
	Immediate Past President
	CSA Professional Staff
	Craig A. Sullivan, Executive Director
	Todd Madeksza, Dir. of Legislative Affairs
	Penny Adams, Dir. of Finance & County Services
	Rod Ross, Legislative Associate
	Anabel Abarca, Research Analyst
	Yvonne M. Ortega, Administrative Assistant
	Core Goals
	 Protect and enhance county authorities and resources in order to promote efficient, responsive constituent services.
	 Develop and disseminate information to assist state and local decision-making.
	Core Capabilities
	Strategies

	Item2.0C._Att2_CSA Impact Handout
	Item2.0C._Att3_CSA 6-28-11 Presentation to BOS
	Slide Number 1
	County Supervisors Association
	CSA County Services
	County Direction to CSA
	New Legislature, New Challenges
	Lawmakers Focused on “Getting in the Black”
	Competing Budget Proposals
	County Officials Respond to Budget Proposals
	Adopted FY12 State Budget
	Adopted FY12 State Budget
	State Budget Impacts (FY08 – FY12)
	Budget Eliminates Structural Deficit Through FY13
	CSA Legislative Agenda
	Legislation Amended by CSA
	Legislation Opposed by CSA
	Legislation Opposed by CSA
	Legislation Opposed by Counties
	Next Steps
	Policy Development Process
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	Item3.0A.  Ordinance No. 11-02 Amending Ordinance No. 98-01-Open Outdoor Fire
	Item3.0A._Att1_Ordinance 11-02 Public Hearing Notice
	Item3.0A._Att2_Ordinance 11-02 with proposed changes
	Item3.0A._Att3_Ordinance 11-02 - Final
	Item3.0B.  Ordinance No. 11-03 Amending Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance
	Item3.0B._Att1_Ordinance 11-03 Public Hearing Notice
	Item3.0B._Att2_Ordinance 11-03 with proposed changes
	Item3.0B._Att3_Ordinance 11-03-Final
	Item3.0C.  Adoption of Resolution No. 11-06-07 Re_ P&Z Dept. Case No. CUP-11-01
	Item3.0C._Att1_CUP-11-01 Legal Ad
	Item3.0C._Att2_Staff Report
	Item3.0C._Att3_Resolution No. 11-06-07
	EXHIBIT “A” 
	 Conditional Use Permit


	Item3.0D.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 11-04 Amending the Gila County Building Code Ordinance 
	Item3.0D._Att1_Ordinance No. 11-04
	Item3.0D._Att2_Display ad
	Item3.0D._Att3_Building Code Ordinance w_red lines
	Item3.0D._Att4_Building Code Ordinance
	Item4.0A.  Acceptance of $24,300 Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) Grant  
	Item4.0A._Att1_Centennial Grant Award Letter
	Item4.0A._Att2_Centennial Grant Certifications
	Item4.0A._Att3_Centennial Grant Assurances
	Item4.0B.  Gila County Library District FY 2011-2012 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Item4.0C.  Gila County FY 2011-2012 Tentative Budget Adoption
	Item4.0D.  Contract No. A11PC00100 between Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County
	Item4.0D._Att1_Contract No. A11PC00100
	Item4.0E.  Agreement No. 308-11 State of Arizona Department of Housing
	Item4.0E._Att1_Agreement No. 308 Arizona Dept. of Housing
	Item4.0F.  Provide comment regarding Forest Service proposal to improve ecological conditions on six grazing allotments
	Item4.0F._Att1_TNF Scoping Letter-File 1950
	Item4.0F._Att2_Draft Comment Letter to TNF
	Item4.0G.  Service Agreement No. 6880.102_7-2011 for Parking Lot Sweeping Services
	Item4.0G._Att1_Executive Summary Form
	Item4.0G._Att2_Agreement No. 6880.102_7-2011
	Item4.0H.  Arizona Public Service Solar Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Agreement
	Item4.0H._Att1_Credit Purchase Agreement
	Item4.0I.  Request for Proposals No. 041111-1 Solar Energy Systems Letter of Intent to Enter into Contract
	Item4.0I._Att1_Bid Tab 041111-1
	Item4.0I._Att2_Letter of Intent
	Item4.0I._Att3_Information on Letter of Intent
	Gila County Solar RFP:�Request for Authorization to enter into LOI 
	Request for approval to enter into a Letter of Intent (L.O.I.)
	Activities to date
	Results RFP Evaluation Matrix
	Best & Final PPA Proposal – Alt #1
	Next Steps
	Annual Electric Charges �With and Without Solar PPA �– 0% Escalator Option
	Annual Electric Charges �With and Without Solar PPA �– 3% Escalator Option
	Slide Number 9
	Alt #1 Savings Analysis – 0% Escalator Option
	Alt #1 Savings Analysis – 3% Escalator Option

	Item4.0I._Att4_Cost Tabulation for RFP _041111-1
	Item4.0I._Att5_Tioga Presentation 
	Item4.0I._Att6_Tioga Letter of Intent-partially executed
	Item4.0J.  Termination of lease with Freeport-McMoRan Miami Inc. (formerly known as Cyprus Miami Mining Corporation) for Armory Property
	Item4.0J._Att1_Freeport Lease
	Item4.0J._Att2_Amendment to lease to sublease
	Item4.0J._Att3_Termination letter
	Item4.0K.  Courthouse Security Proposal from the Gila County Courthouse Security Committee
	Item4.0L.  Reconsideration of Contract No. 060110-1 between Gila County and IWC, LLC for janitorial services in County facilities in Globe, AZ. 
	Item4.0L._Att1_Contract No. 060110-1
	Item4.0L._Att2_Amendment _1 Contract No. 060110-1
	Item5.0A.  Fireworks Display Application for Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, Inc.-Miami Operations
	Item5.0A._Att1_Fireworks Display Application for Freeport-McMoRan
	Item5.0B.  Rimside Grill & Cabins' Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio_Premises Permit
	Item5.0B._Att1_Rimside Grill Temporary Patio Permit Extension Application
	Item5.0C.  Service Agreement for Liberty Court Recording Solution Implementation
	Item5.0C._Att1_JCG Service Agreement
	Item5.0D.  Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Victim Assistance Grant Agreement VA-12-020
	Item5.0D._Att1_VA 12-020
	Item5.0E.  Resolution No. 11-06-05 authorizing participation in the FY 2011-12 Family Counseling Program
	Item5.0E._Att1_Resolution No. 11-06-05
	Item5.0F.  Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015 with the United States Marshals Service
	Item5.0F._Att1_Attachment No. 1 to Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015
	Item5.0F._Att2_Original Limited Use Agreement No. 08-99-0015
	Item5.0G.  Approve payment of Invoice _SRS-2011-004 in the sum of $2,851 for Gila County's Service Fee from Partnership for Rural America.
	Item5.0G._Att1_SRS Invoice 2011-004
	Item5.0G._Att2_SRS Action Team e-mail
	Item5.0G._Att3_Timber Receipt Payments
	Item5.0H.  Request for Waiver of Fees for the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for GEST Program
	Item5.0H._Att1_GEST Application
	Item5.0I.  Intergovernmental Agreement HG854565 Amendment No 5 with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Item5.0I._Att1_Original TB IGA
	Item5.0I._Att2_TB Amendment 5
	Item5.0J.  Real Estate Lease Agreement with High Desert Humane Society, Inc. 
	Item5.0J._Att1_Original Lease-July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2006
	Item5.0J._Att2_Renewal Lease-July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012
	Item5.0K.  Maintenance Agreement for Ballot Live Video Recording with VBrick Systems Inc
	Item5.0K._Att1_VBrick Systems Inc Maintenance Agreement
	Item5.0L.  Transit Agreement with San Carlos Apache Tribe Transit Program
	Item5.0L._Att1_Transit Agreement Tribe
	Item5.0M.  Amendment No.1 to Contract No. 6510_526.REC04_8-2010 for Pine Creek Canyon Road Project 
	Item5.0M._Att1_Original CL Williams Contract
	Item5.0M._Att2_Amendment No. 1 Contract 6510.526.REC04_8-2010
	Item5.0N.  2 IGAs with City of Globe (Globe Sr. Center & Arizona Eastern Copper Spike Train Excursion) & Payson Senior Center Transit Agreement
	Item5.0N._Att1_IGA Globe Senior
	Item5.0N._Att2_IGA Globe Train Excursion
	Item5.0N._Att3_Globe resolutions for IGA's
	Item5.0N._Att4_Transit agreement w_Payson Senior
	Item5.0N._Att5_Payson Senior Addendum
	Item5.0O.  Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C051-09-02 with Arizona Dept. of Commerce, Energy Office
	Item5.0O._Att1_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. C051-09-02
	Item5.0O._Att2_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. C051-09-02
	Item5.0O._Att3_Original Contract No. C051-09-02
	Item5.0P.  Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. C037-09-02 State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office
	Item5.0P._Att1_Amendment No. 3 to C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
	Item5.0P._Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C037-09-02
	Item5.0P._Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce of Energy Office
	Item5.0P._Att4_Original Contract No. C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
	Item5.0Q.  Reappointments to the Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Board
	Item5.0Q._Att1_WIB Reappointments Spreadsheet
	Item5.0R.  Service Agreement for Satellite Service on Mobile Command Trailer
	Item5.0R._Att1_Tachyon Networks Service Agreement
	Item5.0S.  Hillcrest Peak Radio Equipment Site Lease Agreement 1005.340.HP_4-2011
	Item5.0S._Att1_Hillcreast Site Lease Agreement
	Item5.0T.  Five Mile Hill Radio Equipment Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.RC_4-2011
	Item5.0T._Att1_Five Mile Hill Site Lease Agreement
	Item5.0U.  Diamond Point Mountain Radio Equipment Site Lease Agreement No. 1005.340.DPM_5-2011
	Item5.0U._Att1_Diamond Point Site Lease Agreement
	Item5.0V.  Extended Supported Employment Services Contract No. E5345511 Amendment _ 11 with Arizona Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
	Item5.0V._Att1_Amendment 11 Letter
	Local Disk
	file:///C|/Documents%20and%20Settings/dcaddell/Desktop/RSA/ESE%20Contract%20E5345511/Contract%20Extension%20Amendment.htm


	Item5.0V._Att2_Amendment 11
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT

	Item5.0V._Att3_Gila County Signature Page
	Item5.0V._Att4_Original Contract No. E5345511
	Item5.0W.  May 3, 2011, BOS Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0W._Att1_BOS 05-03-11 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0X.  Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for March 2011
	Item5.0X._Att1_Globe Constable Report 03_11
	Item5.0X._Att2_Globe Constable Report 03_11
	Item5.0Y.  Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for April 2011
	Item5.0Y._Att1_Globe Constable Report for 04_11
	Item5.0Z.  Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for May 2011
	Item5.0Z._Att1_Payson Constable Report for 05_11
	Item5.AA.  Human Resources reports for June 14, 2011, June 21, 2011 and June 28, 2011
	Item5.AA._Att1_06_14_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item5.AA._Att2_06_21_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item5.AA._Att3_06_28_11 Human Resources Agenda



